
CITY COUNCIL  
SPECIAL AND REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Tuesday, February 11, 2014 
7:00 P.M. 

701 Laurel Street, Menlo Park, CA 94025 
City Council Chambers 

7:00 P.M. REGULAR SESSION  

ROLL CALL – Carlton, Cline, Keith, Ohtaki, Mueller 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

A. PRESENTATIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS

A1. Proclamation recognizing the Friends of the Library 

B. COMMISSION/COMMITTEE VACANCIES, APPOINTMENTS AND REPORTS - None

C. PUBLIC COMMENT #1 (Limited to 30 minutes)
Under “Public Comment #1”, the public may address the Council on any subject not listed
on the agenda and items listed under the Consent Calendar.  Each speaker may address
the Council once under Public Comment for a limit of three minutes.  Please clearly state
your name and address or political jurisdiction in which you live.  The Council cannot act
on items not listed on the agenda and, therefore, the Council cannot respond to non-
agenda issues brought up under Public Comment other than to provide general
information.

D. CONSENT CALENDAR

D1. Adopt a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute the First Amended Joint Exercise of 
Powers Agreement for the San Mateo Operational Area Emergency Services 
Organization (Staff report #14-025) 

D2. Authorize the Public Works Director to accept the work performed by W. Bradley Electric, 
Inc., for the traffic signal modification at the intersection of Sand Hill Road and 
Branner Drive (Staff report #14-021) 

D3. Adopt a resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an updated Maintenance 
Agreement with the State of California for the Ringwood Pedestrian 
Overcrossing (Staff report #14-020)

D4. Authorize the City Manager to submit supplemental revisions on the Draft Housing 
Element to the State Department of Housing and Community 
Development (Staff report #14-024) 

D5. Accept Council minutes for the meeting of January 28, 2013 and accept Errata to correct 
minutes for the meeting of June 4, 2013 (Attachment)

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS – None

PAGE 1



February 11, 2014 
Agenda Page 2 

F. REGULAR BUSINESS

F1. Consideration to rename the San Mateo Drive Bike Bridge in Honor of Mike 
Harding (Staff report #14-026) 

F2. Authorize staff to proceed with the Preparation of the Request for Proposal (RFP) for 
consultant services for the General Plan update and M-2 Area Zoning Update 
(Staff report #14-028) 

G. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT – None

H. WRITTEN COMMUNICATION – None

I. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

I1. Economic Development Quarterly Update (Staff report #14-027) 

I2. Quarterly Financial Review of General Fund Operations as of December 31, 
2013  (Staff report #14-023) 

I3. Review of the City’s investment portfolio as of December 31, 2013 (Staff report #14-022)

J. COUNCILMEMBER REPORTS

K. PUBLIC COMMENT #2 (Limited to 30 minutes)

Under “Public Comment #2”, the public if unable to address the Council on non-agenda
items during Public Comment #1, may do so at this time.  Each person is limited to three
minutes.  Please clearly state your name and address or jurisdiction in which you live.

L. ADJOURNMENT

Agendas are posted in accordance with Government Code Section 54954.2(a) or Section 54956.  Members of the public can view electronic 
agendas and staff reports by accessing the City website at HHUUhttp://www.menlopark.orgUUHH  and can receive e-mail notification of agenda and staff 
report postings by subscribing to the “Home Delivery” service on the City’s homepage.  Agendas and staff reports may also be obtained by 
contacting the City Clerk at (650) 330-6620.  Copies of the entire packet are available at the library for viewing and copying.  (Posted: 
02/6/2014)   

At every Regular Meeting of the City Council, in addition to the Public Comment period where the public shall have the right to address the 
City Council on the Consent Calendar and any matters of public interest not listed on the agenda, members of the public have the right to 
directly address the City Council on any item listed on the agenda at a time designated by the Mayor, either before or during the Council’s
consideration of the item.   
At every Special Meeting of the City Council, members of the public have the right to directly address the City Council on any item listed on 
the agenda at a time designated by the Mayor, either before or during consideration of the item.  

Any writing that is distributed to a majority of the City Council by any person in connection with an agenda item is a public record (subject to 
any exemption under the Public Records Act) and is available for inspection at the Office of the City Clerk, Menlo Park City Hall, 701 Laurel 
Street, Menlo Park, CA 94025 during regular business hours.  Members of the public may send communications to members of the City 
Council via the City Council’s e-mail address at HUcity.council@menlopark.orgUH.  These communications are public records and can be viewed 
by any one by clicking on the following link: HUhttp://ccin.menlopark.orgUH   

City Council meetings are televised live on Government Access Television Cable TV Channel 26.  Meetings are re-broadcast on Channel 26 
on Thursdays and Saturdays at 11:00 a.m.  A DVD of each meeting is available for check out at the Menlo Park Library.  Live and archived 
video stream of Council meetings can be accessed at HHUUhttp://menlopark.granicus.com/ViewPublisher.php?view_id=2UUHHUU   

Persons with disabilities, who require auxiliary aids or services in attending or participating in City Council meetings, may call the City Clerk’s
Office at (650) 330-6620. 

PAGE 2

http://www.menlopark.org/
mailto:Ucity.council@menlopark.orgU
http://ccin.menlopark.org/
http://menlopark.granicus.com/ViewPublisher.php?view_id=2


 

OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER 
  

 
 Council Meeting Date: February 11, 2014 

 Staff Report #: 14-025 
 

 Agenda Item #: D-1 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: Adopt a resolution authorizing the Mayor to 

execute the First Amended Joint Exercise of 
Powers Agreement for the San Mateo Operational 
Area Emergency Services Organization 

 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution authorizing the Mayor to 
execute the First Amended Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement for the San Mateo 
Operational Area Emergency Services Organization. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Multi-agency and multi-jurisdictional responses to emergencies in California are 
required by the California Emergency Services Act (ESA) to use the Standardized 
Emergency Management System (SEMS). In addition, local government entities must 
use SEMS in order to be eligible for any reimbursement of response-related costs under 
the state’s disaster assistance programs.  
  
Local government is one of the five response levels within the Standardized Emergency 
Management System. The basic role of a local government is to manage and 
coordinate the overall emergency response and recovery activities within its jurisdiction. 
The next level is the Operational Area, which consists of a county and all political 
subdivisions within the county boundary.  
  
Over 30 years ago, San Mateo County cities and towns, and the County of San Mateo 
decided to manage the San Mateo County Operational Area (SMCOA) through a Joint 
Powers Agreement (JPA) that established the San Mateo Operational Area Emergency 
Services Organization and outlined the operational structure of and funding formula for 
the SMCOA. The SMCOA is governed by the Emergency Services Council (ESC), 
which is made up of one representative from each City Council and one representative 
from the County Board of Supervisors.  
 
ANALYSIS 
 
In January 2013, at the direction of the ESC, a working group made up of emergency 
management professionals from multiple agencies within San Mateo County was 

AGENDA ITEM D-1

PAGE 3



Staff Report #: 14-025 
 

formed and met several times over the past six months to draft a new JPA Agreement 
to replace the one adopted in 1997.  
 
The focus of the group was to:  
 

 Modernize the agreement to include relevant language and address the issue of 
compliance with the Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS, 
California) and the National Incident Management Systems (NIMS), which was 
agreed to by the County and all participating cities.  
 

 Outline the overarching responsibilities for the ESC and define the roles of the 
participants.  

  
During the review and revision process, it was determined that:  
 

 The original JPA document is not properly on file with the California Secretary of 
State, which is required under the Government Code.  
 

 No Conflict of Interest Code has been adopted by the Authority and no Form 
700s have been filed by Authority members representing their position on this 
particular Board.  

  
Substantive Changes to the proposed First Amended JPA Agreement include:  
 

 The document has been revised in a format that is consistent with other Joint 
Powers Agreements.  
 

 Recitals have been added to provide clear explanation of the mission of the ESC.  
 

 Definitions have been updated to reflect current language used in the provision of 
emergency services and homeland security prevention, protection, response and 
recovery. 
 

 Minimum recommended training requirements for Authority members have been 
added to include ICS 100, 700 and 402, which will ensure an understanding of 
the NIMS compliance obligations as well as provide a background in basic 
emergency management.  
 

 Specific responsibilities of the Council have been added to include designation of 
a person or persons to participate in the Emergency Services Association 
meetings and activities (staff level participant). 
  

 Non-voting member participants have been updated to include representatives 
from:  

o American Red Cross  
o San Mateo County Police and Fire Chiefs Association  

PAGE 4



Staff Report #: 14-025 
 

o Water Districts  
o Sanitary Districts  
o Harbor Districts  
o Port Authority  
o Transit Districts  
o Pacific Gas and Electric Company  
o San Mateo County Office of Education  
o Hospital Consortium  

 
 The Advisory Committee has been expanded to include a Board Member from 

the Emergency Managers Association to allow for coordination and collaboration 
with the operations and planning staff. 
 

 The Director of Emergency Services role has been re-defined to include the role 
of Grant Program Administrator in addition to the previous responsibilities. 
 

 A general provisions section has been added to further define the purpose and 
member/partner participation of the Authority. 
 

 Emergency Preparedness and planning metrics have been added to the 
agreement to provide defined common preparedness responsibilities for all 
jurisdictions. 
 

 Basic training and exercise requirements have been included to provide 
guidance to ensure NIMS compliance for all participants. 
 

 A section has been added to provide specific explanation of the expectation of 
participation by cities, as well as consequences for non-participation. 
 

 The responsibilities of both local coordinators (city/jurisdiction staff) and Op Area 
coordinators (County staff) have been spelled out. 
 

 More detail has been added regarding the financial obligation should a member 
withdraw. 
 

 Regular review and revision dates have been included to ensure compliance with 
established guidelines such as NIMS.  

  
The draft document was presented to the County Police Chiefs, Fire Chiefs, City 
Managers and legal counsel as appropriate, as well as the County Emergency 
Managers Association. The Conflict of Interest Code was reviewed by the County 
Counsel. All feedback received was incorporated into the final agreement. The Office of 
Emergency Services (OES) is now requesting that participating agencies in San Mateo 
County each provide this document to their respective governing bodies and obtain 
approval in order to formally execute the document effective March 31, 2014. 
 

PAGE 5



Staff Report #: 14-025 
 

IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 
There is no fiscal impact to this action and there have been no changes to the funding 
formula. 
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
The recommendation does not represent any change to existing City policy. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this agenda item being 
listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. 1997 Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement for the San Mateo Operational 
Area Emergency Services Organization 

 
B. 2014 Proposed First Amended Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement for the 

San Mateo Operational Area Emergency Services Organization 
 
C. Resolution 

 
Report prepared by: 
Clay J. Curtin 
Assistant to the City Manager 

PAGE 6



ATTACHMENT A

PAGE 7



PAGE 8



PAGE 9



PAGE 10



PAGE 11



PAGE 12



PAGE 13



PAGE 14



PAGE 15



PAGE 16



PAGE 17



PAGE 18



PAGE 19



PAGE 20



PAGE 21



PAGE 22



PAGE 23



PAGE 24



PAGE 25



PAGE 26



 

 
  

First Amended  
Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement 

San Mateo Operational Area Emergency Services Organization 
 
   
This Agreement which supersedes in its entirety the San Mateo County Operational Area Joint 
Powers Agreement as revised on the 3rd day of April, 1997, which established the San Mateo 
Operational Area Emergency Services Organization, pursuant to the provisions of the Joint 
Exercise of Powers Act (Title 1, Division 7, Article 1, 6500 et seq. of the California Govt. 
Code),is by and between the County of San Mateo and those cities and towns within the County 
of San Mateo and other identified partners who become signatories to this agreement, and relates 
to the joint exercise of powers among the signatories hereto.  
 

RECITALS 
 
Whereas the Members want to establish a unified emergency services organization; and, 
 
Whereas the Members agree that the purpose of this organization will be to operate pursuant to 
Presidential Directive 5, the National Response Framework,  National Incident Management 
System (NIMS), Presidential Directive 8, the National Preparedness Goal and California’s 
Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) and local adopted Emergency Operations 
Plans and Annexes; and, 
 
Whereas the Members agree that the participants within this organization will include all local 
governments within the geographic area of the County, special districts, unincorporated areas, 
and participating non-governmental entities; and,     
 
Whereas the Members agree that the collective goal is to provide coordinated plans for the 
protection of persons and property based on the four phases of emergency management, 
prevention, protection, response, and recovery; and, 
 
Whereas the Members agree to provide support for certain communications systems, to include 
the Regional Public Alerting and Notification Systems, such as SMC Alert and TENS, as well as 
other Situational Awareness Tools; and  
 
Whereas the Members are committed to cooperatively addressing the challenges of sustaining 
and managing a hazardous materials emergency response program; and, 
 
Whereas the Members have the authority to enter into this Agreement under the Joint Exercise 
of Powers Act, California Government Code Section 6500 et seq. (the "Act"). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals and mutual obligations of the Members as 
herein contained, the Members agree as follows: 
 
 
Article I - GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
1.01 Purpose. 
This Agreement creates an entity to exercise the powers shared in common by its Members to 
engage in local and regional cooperative planning, coordination and delivery of services.  As part 
of this Agreement purpose, Members seek to meet or enhance the current Emergency Response 
Planning and Management Capabilities within the Operational Area.  Further, Members seek to 
support existing regional Public Information and Notification systems, and to continue to support 

ATTACHMENT B

PAGE 27



 

 
  

the regional hazardous materials emergency response program.  Such purposes are to be 
accomplished and the Members’ common powers exercised as set forth in this Agreement. 
 
1.02 Creation of Authority. 
Pursuant to the Joint Exercise of Powers Act, the Members hereby create a public entity to be 
known as the "San Mateo Operational Area Emergency Services Authority" (the "Authority"). 
The Authority shall be a public entity separate and apart from the Members. The geographic 
jurisdiction of the Authority is all territory within the geographic boundaries of the Members; 
however the Authority may undertake any action outside those geographic boundaries as is 
necessary and incidental to accomplishing its purpose. 
 
1.03 Membership in the Authority. 
Membership in the Authority is limited to public entities, as defined by the Joint Exercise of 
Powers Act, located or operating in San Mateo County  that have approved and executed this 
Agreement, and contributed resources of any kind toward establishing and supporting the 
Authority (including, but not limited to financial, personnel, equipment, or other resources), as 
approved by the Council 
 
1.04 Participating Members/Partners in the Authority.  Participation in the Authority is to 
ensure cooperative emergency planning and response, all participating members and partners are 
expected to attend all regular and special meetings of the Area Emergency Services Council, 
agree to active participation by their jurisdictions in the development of plans and training 
programs, drills, exercises and training opportunities, and otherwise assist in supporting the 
implementation of this agreement.  Each member jurisdiction shall identify and designate at the 
beginning of each fiscal year, a local coordinator for regular participation in San Mateo County 
Emergency Managers Association Meetings and all other activities.  Should the identified 
Coordinator change at any time during the year, the member jurisdiction shall notify the Director 
of Emergency Services within 30 days.  If a member jurisdiction participates in a protection 
district contract relationship for the provision of emergency services, they are still required to 
name a local coordinator who will assure the continuity of communication between the member 
agency, the County Office of Emergency Services and the Emergency Services Council. 
 
Article II- COMMON TERMINOLOGY 
 
2.1 All-Hazards: “Grouping classification encompassing all conditions, environmental or 
manmade, that have the potential to cause injury, or death; damage to or loss of equipment, 
infrastructure services, or property; or alternately causing functional degradation to societal, 
economic or environmental aspects. Annotation: All hazards preparedness ensures that if a 
disaster occurs, people are ready to get through it safely, and respond to it effectively. FEMA 
began development of an Integrated Emergency Management System with an all-hazards 
approach that included ‘direction, control and warning systems which are common to the full 
range of emergencies from small isolated events to the ultimate emergency – war.” (DHS, 
Lexicon, October 23, 2007, p. 1) 
2.2Catastrophe: An event in which a society incurs, or is threatened to incur, such losses 
to persons and/or property that the entire society is affected and extraordinary resources 
and skills are required, some of which must come from other nations. 
2.3Community Emergency Response Team (CERT): “Community Emergency 
Response Team” (CERT) training is one way for citizens to prepare for an emergency. 
CERT training is designed to prepare people to help themselves, their families and their 
neighbors in the event of a catastrophic disaster. Because emergency services personnel 
may not be able to help everyone immediately, residents can make a difference by using 

 

PAGE 28



 

 
  

the training obtained in the CERT course to save lives and protect property.” (DHS, National 

Response Framework (Comment Draft). DHS, September 10, 2007, p. 18) 
2.4 Command: “Command comprises the IC [Incident Commander] and the Command Staff. 
Command staff positions are established to assign responsibility for key activities not 
specifically identified in the General Staff functional elements. These positions may include the 
Public Information Officer (PIO), Safety Officer (SO), and Liaison Officer (LNO), in addition to 
various others, as required and assigned by the IC.” (DHS, NIMS, 2004, p. 13) 
2.5 Emergency: Any incident, whether natural or manmade, that requires responsive action to 
protect life or property. Under the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance 
Act, an emergency means any occasion or instance for which, in the determination of the 
President, federal assistance is needed to supplement state and local efforts and capabilities to 
save lives and to protect property and public health and safety or to lessen or avert the threat of a 
catastrophe in any part of the United States. 
2.6 Emergency Management: As subset of incident management, the coordination and 
integration of all activities necessary to build, sustain and improve the capability to prepare for, 
protect against, respond to, recover from or mitigate against threatened or actual natural 
disasters, acts of terrorism or other manmade disasters. 
2.7 Emergency Operations Center (EOC): The physical location at which the coordination of 
information and resources to support incident management (on-scene operations) activities 
normally takes place. An EOC may be a temporary facility or may be located in a more central 
or permanently established facility, perhaps at a higher level of organization within a 
jurisdiction. EOCs may be organized by major functional disciplines (e.g., fire, law enforcement 
and medical services), by jurisdiction (e.g., federal, state, regional, tribal, city, county) or some 
combination thereof. 
2.8 Incident: An occurrence or event, natural or manmade, which requires a response to protect 
life or property. Incidents can, for example, include major disasters, emergencies, terrorist 
attacks, terrorist threats, civil unrest, wild land and urban fires, floods, hazardous materials spills, 
nuclear accidents, aircraft accidents, earthquakes, hurricanes, tornadoes, tropical storms, 
tsunamis, war-related disasters, public health and medical emergencies and other occurrences 
requiring an emergency response. 
2.9 Incident Command System (ICS): A standardized on-scene emergency management 
construct specifically designed to provide for the adoption of an integrated organizational 
structure that reflects the complexity and demands of single or multiple incidents, without being 
hindered by jurisdictional boundaries. ICS is a management system designed to enable effective 
incident management by integrating a combination of facilities, equipment, personnel, 
procedures and communications operating within a common organizational structure, designed 
to aid in the management of resources during incidents. It is used for all kinds of emergencies 
and is applicable to small as well as large and complex incidents. ICS is used by various 
jurisdictions and functional agencies, both public and private, to organize field-level incident 
management operations. 
2.10 Local Emergency: The duly proclaimed existence of conditions of disaster or extreme peril 
to the safety of persons and property within territorial limits of a county, city and county, or city 
caused by such conditions as fire, flood, storm, epidemic, riot, drought, sudden and severe 
energy shortage, plant or animal infestation or disease, earthquake, tsunami or other conditions 
which are likely to be beyond the control of the services, personnel, equipment and facilities of 
that local political subdivision to combat.  

PAGE 29



 

 
  

2.11 Local Government: A county, municipality, city, town, township, local public authority, 
school district, special district, intrastate district, council of governments (regardless of whether 
the council of governments is incorporated as a nonprofit corporation under state law), regional 
or interstate government entity or agency or instrumentality of a local government; an Indian 
tribe or authorized tribal entity, or in Alaska a Native Village or Alaska Regional Native 
Corporation; a rural community, unincorporated town or village or other public entity. See 
Section 2 (10), Homeland Security Act of 2002, P.L. 107−296, 116 Stat. 2135 (2002). 
2.12 Mitigation: Activities providing a critical foundation in the effort to reduce the loss of life 
and property from natural and/or human-caused disasters by avoiding or lessening the impact of 
a disaster and providing value to the public by creating safer communities. Mitigation seeks to 
fix the cycle of disaster damage, reconstruction, and repeated damage. These activities or 
actions, in most cases, will have a long-term sustained effect. 
2.13 National Incident Management System (NIMS): System that provides a proactive 
approach guiding government agencies at all levels, the private sector and nongovernmental 
organizations to work seamlessly to prepare for, prevent, respond to, recover from, and mitigate 
the effects of incidents, regardless of cause, size, location or complexity, in order to reduce the 
loss of life or property and harm to the environment. 
2.14 National Response Framework: This document establishes a comprehensive, national, all-
hazards approach to domestic incident response. It serves as a guide to enable responders at all 
levels of government and beyond to provide a unified national response to a disaster. It defines 
the key principles, roles, and structures that organize the way U.S. jurisdictions plan and 
respond. 
2.15 Operational Area: An intermediate level of the state emergency services organization, 
consisting of the County and all political subdivisions within the county area.  In a state of 
emergency, the operational area shall serve as a link in the system of communications and 
coordination between the political subdivisions comprising the operational area and the Regional 
or State Emergency Operations Center.  
2.16 Preparedness: Actions that involve a combination of planning, resources, training, 
exercising and organizing to build, sustain and improve operational capabilities. Preparedness is 
the process of identifying the personnel, training and equipment needed for a wide range of 
potential incidents and developing jurisdiction-specific plans for delivering capabilities when 
needed for an incident. 
2.17 Recovery: The development, coordination and execution of service- and site-restoration 
plans; the reconstitution of government operations and services; individual, private-sector, 
nongovernmental and public-assistance programs to provide housing and to promote restoration; 
long-term care and treatment of affected persons; additional measures for social, political, 
environmental and economic restoration; evaluation of the incident to identify lessons learned; 
post incident reporting and development of initiatives to mitigate the effects of future incidents. 
2.18 Resources: Personnel and major items of equipment, supplies and facilities available or 
potentially available for assignment to incident operations and for which status is maintained. 
Under the National Incident Management System, resources are described by kind and type and 
may be used in operational support or supervisory capacities at an incident or at an emergency 
operations center. 
2.19 Response: Immediate actions to save and sustain lives, protect property and the 
environment, and meet basic human needs. Response also includes the execution of plans and 
actions to support short-term recovery. 

PAGE 30



 

 
  

2.20 Standardized Emergency Management System: The Standardized Emergency 
Management System (SEMS) is the cornerstone of California’s emergency response system and 
the fundamental structure for the response phase of emergency management. SEMS is required 
by the California Emergency Services Act (ESA) for managing multiagency and 
multijurisdictional responses to emergencies in California. The system unifies all elements of 
California’s emergency management community into a single integrated system and standardizes 
key elements. SEMS incorporates the use of the Incident Command System (ICS), California 
Disaster and Civil Defense Master Mutual Aid Agreement (MMAA), the Operational (OA) Area 
concept and multiagency or inter-agency coordination. State agencies are required to use SEMS 
and local government entities must use SEMS in order to be eligible for any reimbursement of 
response-related costs under the state’s disaster assistance programs. 
 
Article III - Authority of Members. 
 
3.01 Composition of the Council 
The Authority shall be administered by the Emergency Services Council (the "Council") 
consisting of the following: 
 

a) A member of the San Mateo County Board of Supervisors, who shall be designated by 
the Supervisors. 

b) The Mayor of each City or, in the case of his/her inability to attend, an alternate may be 
selected by the City from the City Council to represent the jurisdiction.   

c) The Chair of the Emergency Services Council shall be the representative from the Board 
of Supervisors unless a majority of the Council vote to select another of their members to 
be the chair and an alternate vice-chair shall be selected by the Council by the 
membership. 

 
3.02 Minimum Recommended Training Requirements  
To ensure NIMS Compliance among the Authority the following training curriculum is being 
proposed. 

a) ICS-100: Introduction to ICS or equivalent 
b) FEMA IS 700.a: NIMS An Introduction 
c) ICS-402:Incident Command System (ICS) Overview for Executives/Senior 

Officials(G402)  
 

3.03 General Purpose of the Joint Powers Authority. 
The general purpose of the Authority is to: 

a) Provide structure for administrative and fiscal oversight; 
b) Identify and pursue funding sources; 
c) Set policy; 
d) Maximize the utilization of available resources; and 
e) Oversee all Committee activities. 

 
3.04 Specific Responsibilities of the Authority. 
The specific responsibilities of the Authority shall be as follows: 

a) To review and recommend adoption by the Board of Supervisors and City Councils of 
each City, Emergency Plans, programs and agreements, in addition to the basic 
agreements as determined necessary to carry out the purpose of the Emergency Services 
Organization. 

b) To approve an annual budget in an amount necessary to carry out the purposes of the 
Emergency Services Organization.  Upon review and approval  of the annual budget by 
the by the Authority, each member shall recommend the budget to the governing body of 

PAGE 31



 

 
  

the county and each of the cities for the purpose of securing from each of the 
appropriations in accord with each party’s identified allocation. 

 
3.05 Meetings of the Authority. 

a) Regular Meetings. The Authority shall approve a schedule for its regular meetings 
provided, however, that the Authority shall hold at least one regular meeting quarterly. 
The Authority shall fix the date, hour and location of regular meetings by resolution and 
the Secretary shall transmit a copy of the resolution to each Member. 

b) Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Authority may be called by the Chair. 
c) Call, Notice and Conduct of Meetings. All meetings of the Authority, including without 

limitation, regular, adjourned regular and special meetings, shall be noticed, held and 
conducted in accordance with the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act, California 
Government Code section 54950 et seq. As soon as practicable, but no later than the 
time of posting, the Secretary shall provide notice and the agenda to each Member. 

 
3.06 Minutes. 
The Secretary shall cause to be kept minutes of the meetings of the Council and shall, as soon as 
practicable after each meeting, cause a copy of the minutes to be made available to each the 
Chair, the Members and other interested parties upon request.  The audio recording of all 
meetings will be posted on the SMC OES Website. 
 
The written minutes shall consist of a summary of the information provided to and any actions 
taken by the Authority.  
 
3.07 Voting. 
All voting power of the Authority shall reside in the Council. Each Member shall have one vote. 
An alternate member may participate and vote in the proceedings of the Authority only in the 
absence of that alternate's member. No absentee ballot or proxy is permitted. 
 
3.08 Quorum; Required Votes; Approvals. 
A majority of the Members (shall be one more than half) shall constitute a quorum of the 
Council for the transaction of business. The affirmative votes of a quorum of the Members shall 
be required to take any action by the Authority.  
 
Article IV – PARTICIPATING PARTNERS, EMPLOYEES AND ADVISORY 
COMMITTEES 
 
4.01 Participating Partners. 
In order to ensure cooperative emergency planning and response, the following may be invited to 
attend, as non-voting members, all regular and special meetings of the Area Emergency Services 
Council, participate in the development of plans and training programs, and otherwise assist in 
supporting the implementation of this agreement: 

a) A representative of the American Red Cross to be appointed by the Chair with the 
approval of the Council. 

b) One representative each from the San Mateo County Fire Chiefs Association and the San 
Mateo County Police Chiefs Association as may be appointed by the Chair with approval 
of the Council. 

c) One representative for Water Districts as may be appointed by the Chair with approval of 
the Council. 

d) One representative for Sanitary Districts as may be appointed by the Chair with approval 
of the Council. 

e) One representative for Harbor District as may be appointed by the Chair with approval of 
the Council. 

PAGE 32



 

 
  

f) One representative for the Port Authority as may be appointed by the Chair with approval 
of the Council. 

g) One representative for Transit District as may be appointed by the Chair with approval of 
the Council. 

h) One representative for Pacific, Gas and Electric Company as may be appointed by the 
Chair with approval of the Council. 

i) One representative for the Office of Education as may be appointed by the Chair with 
approval of the Council. 

j) One representative for the Hospital Consortium as may be appointed by the Chair with 
approval of the Council. 

k) One representative for the EMS Agency as may be appointed by the Chair with approval 
of the Council. 

l) One representative for the San Mateo Emergency Managers Association as may be 
appointed by the Chair with approval of the Council. 
 

 
Should other interested parties be identified for participation, the Authority shall consider a 
written request for participation and may be appointed by the Chair with approval of the Council.  
 
4.02 Treasurer. 
The Treasurer and Tax Collector of the County of San Mateo shall be the Treasurer of the 
Authority.  
 
The Treasurer shall be the depository, shall have custody of the accounts, funds and money of 
the Authority from whatever source, and shall have the duties and obligations set forth in the 
Joint Exercise of Powers Act. There shall be a strict accountability of all funds and report of all 
receipts and disbursements.  
 
4.03 Auditor. 
The Controller of the County of San Mateo shall be the Auditor of the Authority.  
 
The Auditor shall perform the functions of auditor for the Authority and shall make or cause an 
independent annual audit of the accounts and records of the Authority by a certified public 
accountant, in compliance with the requirements of the Joint Exercise of Powers Act and 
generally accepted auditing standards. 
 
4.04 Legal Counsel. 
The San Mateo County Counsel shall be the legal counsel for the Authority. To the extent 
permitted by the Joint Exercise of Powers Act, the Authority may change, by resolution, the 
Legal Counsel of the Authority.  
 
4.05 Secretary to the Authority.   
The San Mateo County Office of Emergency Services shall provide a Secretary and 
administrative support to the Authority.   
 
4.06 Other Employees. 
The Authority shall have the power by resolution to appoint and employ such other officers, 
employees, consultants and independent contractors as may be necessary to carry-out the 
purpose of this Agreement.  Those Officers of the Authority who have charge of, handle or have 
access to any property of the entity shall be designated by the Authority and shall file a bond in 
an amount to be fixed by the contracting parties. 
 
4.07 Administrative Committee. 
The Authority shall establish the Administrative Committee.   

PAGE 33



 

 
  

a) The Administrative Committee shall consist of the County Manager, 4 City 
Manager/Administrators selected from among the city managers and city administrators 
of the participating cities, and a Board Member of the San Mateo County Emergency 
Management Association. 

b) The Administrative Committee shall be representative of the identified Zones within the 
County, to include North, Central, South and County.  All participants shall be 
indentified at the beginning of each fiscal year. (June meeting)   

c) The Director of Emergency Services, as herein after established, who shall act as the 
Secretary, ex-officio. 

 
The Administrative Committee reviews and makes recommendations to the Area Emergency 
Services Council on budgets, projects, work plans, training and exercise, collaborative planning 
efforts, and other policy issues that come before the Council.   
 
4.08 Director of Emergency Services.  
The Sheriff or his/her designee shall be the Director of Emergency Services.  The Director will 
be responsible for the on-going operation and administration of the Area Office of Emergency 
Services including:  

a) Emergency Response- coordination and planning during any regional emergency in 
accordance with adopted emergency plans. 

b) Plans and Operations- preparation, development, coordination, and integration of 
compatible and complimentary unified area wide emergency plans for approval by the 
State of California and adoption by the Council. 

c) Communications- coordination, development and maintenance of an area-wide 
emergency communications service, including public alert and warning, and other 
situational awareness tools. 

d) Public Education and Information- coordination and support of an area-wide public 
education and information program. 

e) Training and Exercise-coordination and assistance in the training and exercising of all 
County employees identified as Disaster Service Workers, as defined by Sect. 3100CGC 
and volunteers.  The member cities will be responsible for the training and exercise of 
their identified employees; however OES will provide needed support as requested.  

f) Grant Program Administration- coordination and assistance with designated emergency 
coordinators within the Operational Area in the securing and distribution of grant funds 
for regional emergency management initiatives and program support. 

g) General Administration- coordination and assistance in the procurement and inventory of 
emergency equipment, management of, maintenance and distribution of area-wide 
inventories of vital supplies and equipment. 

 
The Director of Emergency Services shall be furnished with staff as is necessary, and authorized 
by the Council, to carry out the identified duties.  The Director of Emergency Services is not the 
EOC Director unless the circumstances dictate so.  

 
The Area Emergency Services Staff shall be civil service employees of the County of San Mateo 
and shall be appointed by the Sheriff.  Necessary personnel, administrative, fiscal and logistic 
support shall be furnished by the County subject to reimbursement by the Emergency Services 
Council. 
 
Article V – MUTUAL RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
5.01 Emergency Preparedness and Planning Standards- The county and cities shall each 
accept primary responsibility for the readiness within their respective jurisdictions and 
development of disaster preparedness plans which shall be compatible with and complimentary 
to the area-wide emergency planning and organization, formulated pursuant to this agreement.  

PAGE 34



 

 
  

As such, the following common preparedness responsibilities and basic measurement standards 
to insure a comparable level of readiness among all of the jurisdictions has been developed to 
include: 

a) Adopt an Emergency Operations Plan and Annexes, review and update no less than every 
three years 

b) Have a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, internally reviewed annually and provide updates 
as required, and approved by FEMA. (Currently no less than every five years) 

c) Participate in the Op Area Multi-Year Training/Exercise Planning  
d) Use NIMCAST to report Readiness (a self assessment tool from Homeland Security) 
e) Adopt use of the Homeland Security Exercise and Evaluation Program 
f) Participate in Meetings and activities including the Emergency Managers Association 
g) Participate in Training and Exercises 
h) Prepare and maintain necessary plans and agreements to facilitate emergency sheltering   

 
Each member of the Council shall report on the Standards annually at the September meeting to 
ensure all efforts towards compliance are being made.   
 
5.02 Training and Exercise- A Training and Exercise Plan is a means to establishing a standard 
of readiness and initiates a basic knowledge and capability skill set.  Full participation by JPA 
Member Emergency Managers and other Op Area stakeholders is important to developing a 
multi-year training program.  An annual planning workshop is facilitated to put the plan together 
and accommodates the needs of the stakeholders.   Full commitment and participation by the JPA 
Member Agencies and participating partners will also be expected in the annual exercise, in 
some capacity, to ensure the preparedness level of our Operation Area. Further, Members agree 
to support the NIMS compliance of each of their jurisdictions. 
 
5.03-Local Coordinator Responsibilities- As all Members have joined this Authority with a 
commitment to engage in local and regional cooperative planning, coordination and delivery of 
services.  Each jurisdiction will provide local support of the emergency management effort 
through staff with primary or secondary responsibilities that will include but are not limited to 
the following: 

a) Management/Coordination of the Local Emergency Operations Center (EOC) – 
(functional and support services) 

b) Provide liaison support to the Emergency Operations Center (EOC) Director or his/her 
designee in emergency or disaster situations. 

c) Participate with a Planning and Exercise Design Team as well as complete a 3-5 year 
Training and Exercise Program that is HSEEP compliant. 

d) Training various department personnel to establish and operate a department Operating 
Center (D.O.C.) 

e) Oversee the preparation and prepare and modify elements of the local Emergency 
Operations Plan and Disaster Recovery Plan to ensure compatibility with the Operational 
Area Emergency Operations Plan and Annexes. 

f) Develop relationships with representatives of local departments, public and private 
support and relief agencies, business, educational, homeowners' and other groups 
regarding   emergency services; prepare specialized plans designed to meet the needs of 
various sections of the community. 

g) Prepare and disseminate training materials to ensure effective response in a disaster 
situation; 

h) Develop, train and maintain a Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) system  

PAGE 35



 

 
  

i) Develop relationships with representatives of state and federal agencies; review 
legislation, regulations and other documentation to ensure that the City is in compliance 
with such regulations and avails itself of all financial and other resources. 

j) Respond to the Emergency Operations Center when it is activated; ensures that 
appropriate documents are available at the center and provides liaison and coordinative 
support as required. 

 
5.04 Operational Area Coordinator Responsibilities- In addition to the roles and 
responsibilities identified in Section 4.08, The Director of Emergency Services will provide staff 
in direct support of the Local Coordinators.  These Operational Area Coordinators are not 
intended to replace local staff as they do not have the required authority within local jurisdictions 
to operate as the primary coordinators.  They will however provide the following services which 
include but are not limited to:  

a) Develop, review and update emergency operations plans. 
b) Develop, review and update detailed standard operating procedures, checklists and 

resource documents. 
c) Compile data and prepare program papers and progress reports for the jurisdictions 

served. 
d) Compile and review jurisdictional data in support of the annual Standards Review. 
e) Support a Planning and Exercise Design Team as well as complete a 3-5 year Training 

and Exercise Program that is HSEEP compliant. 
f) Act as information, education and/or resource officer for the jurisdictions served. 
g) Speak to civic groups, clubs, and organizations to promote emergency services programs 

encouraging public understanding and support. 
h) Work cooperatively with other office staff on area-wide projects and in training 

programs. 
5.05 Supplemental Operations Support – In an effort to provide advanced training and to 
support emergency mutual aid during localized disasters/events, the Director of Emergency 
Services (Director) will pilot an Emergency Management Support Team (EMST).  The desired 
end state of the EMST is to have a group of trained individuals who can support, not supplant or 
replace, local city/county EOC staff during isolated incidents.  The recruitment, training and 
exercise schedule for EMST will be determined by the Director.  Participation in and support of 
the EMST is completely voluntary by the Members; however, only those Members who 
participate in the EMST to the satisfaction of the Director will be entitled to receive no-cost 
support of the EMST upon request.  In general, the number of participants on the EMST from 
Members will be based on population as follows: 
 

Member population Member staff on EMST 
Under 25,000 1-2 

25,000-100,000 2-3 
100,000-250,000 3-5 

 
Participation in the EMST does not guarantee a Member agency support during an incident; the 
Director will be responsible for evaluating the size/complexity of the incident and determining 
whether or not EMST members will be deployed. 

PAGE 36



 

 
  

Article VI – BUDGET and COST-SHARING 
In consideration of the mutual promises herein contained it is hereby agreed that the cost of 
maintaining the Area Emergency Services Organization will be shared as described below. 
 

a) From the total amount of the annual budget there shall be deducted estimated revenue 
from federal “matching funds”, state grants, and other service revenues. 

b) The balance of the annual budget remaining after anticipated revenues have been 
deducted shall be paid as follows: 

1. The county shall pay 50% of the remaining balance. 
2. The cities shall pay the remaining 50% of the balance, apportioned in accordance 

with the following formula: 
i. One half of said 50% to be apportioned by people units or population. 

a) Total population of all member cities divided into one-half of the 
total of the cities share of the budget equals a factor in cents. 

b) Population of each member city times the factor in cents equals the 
share for each city. 

ii. The remaining one-half of said 50% to be apportioned on the basis of 
assessed valuation as follows: 

a) Total assessed value of real and personal property in all member 
cities divided into one-half of the total of the cities share of the 
budget equals a factor in mils 

b) Assessed value of real and personal property of each member city 
times the factor in mils equals the share for each city 

c) For the purpose of this agreement the total assessed valuation of real and personal 
property in all contracting cities shall be the most recent such total maintained by the 
offices of the County Assessor. 

d) The figures used for population in each city shall be determined by a method and from a 
source that is mutually acceptable to the majority of members. 

e) It is understood and agreed that the financial obligations incurred by the county and the 
member cities under the provisions of this agreement will be incurred annually, subject to 
the limitation that the county and cities are financially able to make funds available. 

f) If the members representing 25% or more of the county’s population do not approve the 
budget in any fiscal year, the proposed budget will be referred back to the Area 
Emergency Services Coordinator and the Administrative Committee for revision and 
recommendation.  If no resolution can be reached by the committee, the members may 
proceed to adopt budgets that provide those services they deem necessary for adequate 
emergency services protection as a whole, but any member shall be financially 
responsible for that portion of the budget unilaterally adopted.  Any member which does 
not meet its financial commitment under an adopted budget will lose its voting status and 
such other privileges of membership as the Council shall determine. 
 

Article VII-INSURANCE 
a) The County shall add the Emergency Services Organization to its existing excess liability 

insurance coverage and shall maintain such coverage in full force and effect during the 
life of the agreement.  Said excess liability insurance coverage has a $250,000 self-
insured retention by the County.  Unless the Area Emergency Services Council decides 
otherwise, County shall provide for the defense of any claims or litigation within the 
$250,000 self-insured retention.  Legal representation by the County will ordinarily be 
provided by the County Counsel. 

b) Any out of pocket expense or loss, by way of judgment or settlement, arising out of the 
operation of this Agreement, within the limits of the County’s $250,000 self-insured 
retention shall be shared by the parties in accordance with the formula as described in 
Article VI (b). 
 

PAGE 37



 

 
  

Article VIII- EFFECTIVENESS 
This agreement shall be effective upon its execution by all member cities and the Board of 
Supervisors.  It is effective as to new members upon adoption and approval by the Area 
Emergency Services Council and by the new member’s legislative body.  This agreement shall 
continue in effect until terminated as provided herein. 
 
Article IX - WITHDRAWAL AND TERMINATION 
 
9.01 Withdrawal by Members. 

a) This agreement may be terminated as to any of the parties by written notice given by such 
party to all other parties which notice shall be given at least 120 days prior to the 
commencement of the fiscal year in which it is to take effect.  For the purpose of such 
notice a fiscal year is defined as July 1 of a calendar year through June 30 of the 
succeeding calendar year.  

b) Any former or prospective member may enter or re-enter the organization by petition to 
the Area Emergency Services Council by its governing body, and majority approval of 
the petition by the Area Emergency Services Council.  Upon approval, the new member 
must agree in writing to all terms of this agreement.  

c) Should a jurisdiction withdraw after the start of a fiscal year, they will be responsible for 
the contribution as per the formula and no refund will be owed. 

d) Should a member give required notice, the contribution of that city funding will be 
divided equally by formula among the remaining cities. 

 
9.02 Termination of Authority and Disposition of Authority Assets. 
This agreement shall terminate effective upon a vote of the Area Emergency Services Council by 
the County and by at least eleven (11) cities representing the majority of the population of the 
County. Upon termination of this agreement, title to all property acquired by the Area 
Emergency Services Organization or with any funds of the Area Emergency Services 
Organization shall remain with the County for use on a county wide basis.  Surplus funds will be 
returned to each party in proportion to the contribution made. 
 
Article X - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
10.01 Notices. 
It shall be the responsibility of the Director of Emergency Services or his/her designee to ensure 
all notices are provided to members and posted in compliance with the legal requirements of the 
JPA. 
 
10.02 Amendment. 
This Document will be reviewed for content no less than every five years. 
 
10.03 Severability. 
If any one or more of the terms, provisions, promises, covenants, or conditions of this Agreement 
were, to any extent, adjudged invalid, unenforceable, void, or voidable for any reason 
whatsoever by a court of competent jurisdiction, each and all of the remaining terms, provisions, 
promises, covenants, and conditions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby and shall be 
valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. 
 
10.04 Successors. 
This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the successors of each 
Member. 
 
10.05 Assignment. 

PAGE 38



 

 
  

No Member shall assign any rights or obligations under this Agreement without the prior written 
consent of the Authority. 
 
10.06 Governing Law. 
This Agreement is made and to be performed in the State of California, and as such California 
substantive and procedural law shall apply.  Venue for any litigation under this Agreement shall 
be in the County of San Mateo. 
 
10.07 Headings. 
The section headings herein are for convenience only and are not to be construed as modifying or 
governing the language of this Agreement. 
 
10.08 Counterparts. 
This Agreement may be executed in counterparts. 
 
10.09 No Third Party Beneficiaries. 
This Agreement and the obligations hereunder are not intended to benefit any party other than 
the Authority and its Members, except as expressly provided otherwise herein. No entity that is 
not a signatory to this Agreement shall have any rights or causes of action against any party to 
this Agreement as a result of that party's performance or non-performance under this Agreement, 
except as expressly provided otherwise herein. 
 
10.10 Filing of Notice of Agreement. 
Within 30 days after the Effective Date, the Secretary shall cause to be filed with the Secretary of 
State the notice of Agreement required by the Act.  Within 30 days after any amendment to this 
Agreement, the Secretary shall file the amendment with the Secretary of State. 
 
10.11 Conflict of Interest Code. 
The Authority shall adopt a conflict of interest code as required by law. 
 
10.12 Indemnification. 
The Authority shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless each Member (and each Member's 
officers, agents, and employees) from any and all liability, including but not limited to claims, 
losses, suits, injuries, damages, costs and expenses (including attorney's fees), arising from or as 
a result of any acts, errors or omissions of the Authority or its officers, agents or employees. 
 
Each Member shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the other Members (and their officers, 
agents, and employees) from any and all liability, including but not limited to claims, losses, 
suits, injuries, damages, costs and expenses (including attorney's fees), arising from or as a result 
of any acts, errors or omissions of that party or its officers, agents or employees.   
 
10.13 Dispute Resolution/Legal Proceedings. 
Disputes regarding the interpretation or application of any provision of this Agreement shall, to 
the extent reasonably feasible, be resolved through good faith negotiations between the Members 
and/or the Authority. 
 
10.14 Confirmation of Jurisdictional Authority. 
By signing this Agreement, the participating partners retain all authority granted to them by the 
State and/or their respective Charters.  The powers and/or authority granted pursuant to this 
Agreement shall in no way serve to limit or restrict an individual partner’s jurisdictional 
authority. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each Member has caused this Agreement to be executed and attested 
by its proper officers thereunto duly authorized, its official seals to be hereto affixed, as follows: 

PAGE 39



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 40



RESOLUTION NO. 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MENLO PARK APPROVING THE FIRST AMENDED 
JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT FOR THE 
SAN MATEO OPERATIONAL AREA EMERGENCY 
SERVICES ORGANIZATION.  

  
WHEREAS, the twenty cities located within the San Mateo Operational Area have 
entered into a Joint Powers Agreement (“JPA”) in order to provide Emergency Services 
countywide; and  
  
WHEREAS, the existing JPA agreement from 1997 is outdated and in need of revision 
to adequately address the dramatic changes to the Homeland Security and Emergency 
Services field that have occurred since 2001; and  
  
WHEREAS, the First Amendment has been updated to reflect the current relationships 
between the County of San Mateo, participating cities, and other partners to provide a 
clear understanding of the responsibilities of the Emergency Services Council and the 
Emergency Coordinators within the County, participating cities, and other partner 
agencies/jurisdictions; and  
  
WHEREAS, the First Amendment includes relevant language that complies with the 
Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS, California) and the National 
Incident Management Systems (NIMS, Federal) that outline the overarching 
responsibilities for the Emergency Services Council and define roles of the cities.  
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Menlo Park hereby 
approves the First Amended Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement for the San Mateo 
Operational Area Emergency Services Organization and authorizes the Mayor to 
execute the agreement. 
 
I, Pamela Aguilar, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and 
foregoing Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting 
by said Council on the eleventh day of February, 2014, by the following votes:  
  
AYES:  
  
NOES:  
  
ABSENT:  
  
ABSTAIN:  
  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of 
said City on this eleventh day of February, 2014.  
  
 ____________ _  
Pamela Aguilar  
City Clerk  

ATTACHMENT C

PAGE 41



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 42



 

PUBLIC WORKS  DEPARTMENT 
  

 

 Council Meeting Date: February 11, 2014 

 Staff Report #: 14-021 
 

 Agenda Item #: D-2 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: Authorize the Public Works Director to Accept the 

Work Performed by W. Bradley Electric, Inc., for 
the Traffic Signal Modification at the Intersection 
of Sand Hill Road and Branner Drive 

 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
Authorize the Public Works Director to accept the work performed by W. Bradley 
Electric, Inc., for the Traffic Signal Modification at the Intersection of Sand Hill Road and 
Branner Drive. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 

On June 11, 2013, the City Council awarded a contract for the Traffic Signal 
Modification at the Intersection of Sand Hill Road and Branner Drive to W. Bradley 
Electric, Inc.  The project consisted of mobilization and traffic control, removing a traffic 
signal pole and mast arm including its signal heads and foundation, furnishing and 
installing new traffic signal poles, constructing new foundations for the new traffic signal 
poles, furnishing and installing new 12” traffic signal heads with 12” LED lamps,  
furnishing and installing new pedestrian pushbuttons, furnishing and installing LED 
pedestrian countdown signal heads, furnishing and installing new conductors and 
conduits, replacing 8” traffic signal heads with 12” traffic signal heads, and doing all 
appurtenant work in place and ready to go.  
 
ANALYSIS 
 

The work for the Traffic Signal Modification at the Intersection of Sand Hill Road and 
Branner Drive. The project has been completed in accordance with the plans and 
specifications.  A notice of completion will be filed accordingly.  The project was 
completed within the approved project budget.   
 
Contractor:  W. Bradley Electric, Inc. 
 90 Hill Road 
 Novato, CA 94945 
 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM D-2

PAGE 43



Staff Report #: 14-021  

IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 
Construction Contract Budget 
 
 Construction Contract $ 61,000 
 Contingency $  6,100 
 Total Construction Budget $ 67,100 
 
Construction Expenditures 
 
 Construction Contract $ 67,100 
 Construction Contract Expenditures $ 61,480 
 Balance Remaining $ 5,620 
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
There are no policy issues associated with this action.  The one-year construction 
warranty period starts upon City’s acceptance 

 

 ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
The project is categorically exempt under Class I of the current State of California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines.  
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this agenda item being 
listed at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

None 
 

Report prepared by: 
René Baile 
Transportation Engineer 
 
Jesse T. Quirion 
Transportation Manager 
 
 
 

PAGE 44



 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT   
 

 Council Meeting Date: February 11, 2014 

 Staff Report #: 14-020 
 

 Agenda Item #: D-3 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR: Adopt a Resolution Authorizing the City Manager 

to Execute an Updated Maintenance Agreement 
with the State of California for the Ringwood 
Pedestrian Overcrossing 

 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution authorizing the City 
Manager to execute an updated Maintenance Agreement with the State of California for 
the Ringwood Pedestrian Overcrossing. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 

On April 17, 1958, the City of Menlo Park entered into a Freeway Maintenance 
Agreement with the State of California to maintain the Ringwood Pedestrian 
Overcrossing.  This agreement obligated the City to maintain the overcrossing in its 
entirety, with the only exception being if the structure was damaged by freeway 
vehicular traffic. 
 
On December 18, 2007, the City Council accepted the California Department of 
Transportation’s plan to replace the aging Ringwood Pedestrian Overcrossing. 
 
During 2008, 2009, and 2010, public outreach was conducted to solicit neighborhood 
input and develop the final design of the new Ringwood Pedestrian Overcrossing.  On 
August 23, 2011, the City Council approved the transfer of right-of-way to the State of 
California to facilitate the construction of the new Ringwood Pedestrian Overcrossing.  
Construction of the new Ringwood Pedestrian Overcrossing was substantially 
completed in 2012, with some outstanding construction items resolved in 2013. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 

The existing Freeway Maintenance Agreement between the City of Menlo Park and the 
State of California for the Ringwood Pedestrian Overcrossing effectively places all 
maintenance responsibility onto the City.  During the process of replacing the 
overcrossing, City staff has been working with State staff to secure an updated 
Maintenance Agreement with terms more favorable to the City.  State staff has agreed 
to modify maintenance responsibility for the Ringwood Pedestrian Overcrossing as 
follows: 
 

 The State of California will maintain, at State’s expense, the entire structure of 
the pedestrian overcrossing. 
 

AGENDA ITEM D-3

PAGE 45



Staff Report #: 14-020  

 The City of Menlo Park, at City’s expense, will maintain the deck surfacing and all 
portions of the structure above the bridge and ramp deck. The above deck 
portions include, but are not limited to, chain link railing, lighting installations, all 
traffic service facilities provided for the benefit or control of pedestrian-traffic such 
as guide and regulatory signs, bollards and striping, and debris and graffiti 
removal.  The City will not be responsible for any maintenance that requires 
access from the Freeway. 
 

 For the area between the soundwall and frontage roads, the City of Menlo Park 
shall be responsible for maintenance of the sidewalk, any plantings or other 
types of roadside development, and removal of graffiti from the surface of the 
Ringwood Pedestrian Overcrossing structure and the City side of the soundwall. 

 
While the City will continue to be responsible for the appearance (graffiti and debris 
removal, landscaping, signage) and day-to-day functionality of the facility, the City will 
no longer be responsible for the structural integrity of the overcrossing. 
 

IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 

As the 1958 Freeway Maintenance Agreement between the City of Menlo Park and the 
State of California obligates the City to fully maintain the Ringwood Pedestrian 
Overcrossing, the reduction in the scope of maintenance of this updated agreement will 
have a positive impact on City resources. 
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
The revisions proposed to the existing maintenance agreement support existing City 
policies. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
Environmental review was completed for the project in 2008 by the State of California.  
Separate environmental review for the maintenance agreement is not required. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this agenda item being 
listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Resolution 
 

Report prepared by: 
Roger K. Storz 
Senior Civil Engineer 

PAGE 46



   
RESOLUTION NO.  

 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO 
PARK AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN 
UPDATED MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA FOR MAINTENANCE  OF THE RINGWOOD 
PEDESTRIAN OVERCROSSING 

 
WHEREAS, on December 18, 2007, at Caltrans’ request, the City Council voted to 
support having the Ringwood Pedestrian Overcrossing re-constructed as part of the 
Caltrans’ Highway 101 Auxiliary Lane Expansion Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, on August 23, 2011, the City Council approved the transfer of right-of-way 
to the State of California to facilitate the construction of the new Ringwood Pedestrian 
Overcrossing; and 
 
WHEREAS, construction of the new Ringwood Pedestrian Overcrossing is now 
complete; and 
 
WHEREAS, the State has requested the City to enter into an updated Maintenance 
Agreement for maintenance of the Ringwood Pedestrian Overcrossing. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Menlo Park 
that said Council does hereby authorize and direct the City Manager to execute an 
updated Maintenance Agreement with the State of California for maintenance of the 
reconstructed Ringwood Pedestrian Overcrossing. 

 
I, Pamela Aguilar, City Clerk of the City of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above 
and foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting by 
said Council on this eleventh day of February, 2014, by the following votes: 

 
AYES:   

NOES:  

ABSENT:   

ABSTAIN:   

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of 
said City on this eleventh day of February, 2014. 
 

 
 

________________________________ 
Pamela Aguilar 
City Clerk 
 

ATTACHMENT A

PAGE 47



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 48



 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT   
  

 

 Council Meeting Date: February 11, 2014 

 Staff Report #: 14-024 
 

 Agenda Item #: D-4 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: Authorize the City Manager to Submit 

Supplemental Revisions on the Draft Housing 
Element to the State Department of Housing and 
Community Development 

 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends that the City Council authorize the City Manager to submit 
supplemental revisions to the Draft Housing Element to the State Department of 
Housing and Community Development as shown in Attachment A. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 

Housing Element Update 
 
Following the City Council’s December 10, 2013 review and comment on the 
Preliminary Draft Housing Element, staff incorporated comments and prepared the Draft 
Housing Element.  On December 12, 2013, the City of Menlo Park submitted its Draft 
Housing Element to the State Department of Housing and Community Development 
(HCD).  This commenced a 60-day review period by the State.  The draft is available on 
the Housing Element project page and hard copies are available for review at the 
Community Development Department and the Main Library.   
 
Members of the public are welcome to submit comments in writing with a deadline of 
Monday, February 10, 2014 at 5:00 p.m.  Comments may be submitted by email 
(athome@menlopark.org), letter (Community Development Department, 701 Laurel 
Street, Menlo Park CA 94025), or fax (650-327-1653).  Based on this feedback, staff will 
prepare a Final Draft of the Housing Element for consideration by the Housing 
Commission, Planning Commission and ultimately the City Council in the Spring of 
2014. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 

Revisions 
 
At is January 28, 2014 meeting, the City Council authorized the City Manager to submit 
revisions to the Draft Housing Element to address feedback staff received from State 

AGENDA ITEM D-4

PAGE 49

http://www.menlopark.org/departments/pln/he/he/20130530/Menlo_Park_Draft_HE_12_12_13_Large_with_appendix.pdf
http://www.menlopark.org/projects/comdev_heu.htm
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_97/2014/01/23/file_attachments/265013/D1%2B-%2BDraft%2BHousing%2BElement__265013.pdf


Staff Report #: 14-024  

HCD.  The revisions were submitted to HCD on January 29 and subsequently, staff has 
been in communication with HCD staff on a few additional items that need to be 
addressed to meet the statues of California Government Code in order to achieve State 
certification. 
 
As such, staff has prepared Supplemental Revisions to the Draft Housing Element to 
serve as an addendum to the January 28, 2014 revisions to the December 12, 2013 
submittal.  HCD has indicated that if the City submits the revisions following the 
February 11 City Council meeting, then HCD would consider this material as part of its 
formal comment letter that it will provide to the City by mid February 2014.  By 
addressing some of these more technical aspects at this stage, it will enable the City to 
better focus on the larger policy issues related to the zoning ordinance amendments. 
 
The Supplemental Revisions to the Draft Housing Element is included as Attachment A. 
HCD’s comments pertain to two items, including 1) clearly defining affordable housing 
within specific implementation programs and 2) providing additional analysis regarding 
realistic capacity for non-vacant and non-residential sites. These changes provide 
additional technical detail, but do not affect the general policy direction.   
 
Schedule Update 
 
The City has met all of the milestones in the Council approved work program to date.  A 
summary of the remaining meetings and milestones are as follows: 
 

 2/10/14:  Planning Commission study session on secondary dwelling unit and 
accessory building/structure Zoning Ordinance Amendment (continued from 
1/27/14) 

 2/12/14 (revised): Release of Negative Declaration 

 2/25/14: Council action on a water service priority policy for affordable housing 

 2/27/14:  Housing Element Steering Committee (if needed) 

 3/5/14:  Housing Commission recommendation 

 3/17/14:  Planning Commission recommendation 

 4/1/14:  Council action on the Negative Declaration, Housing Element, and 
introduction of Zoning Ordinance Amendments 

 4/29/14:  Council action on adoption of Zoning Ordinance amendments 
 

IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 

The work program requires both staff resources dedicated to the project, as well 
consultant services. The Council budgeted $100,000 for Fiscal Year 2012-13 for the 
Housing Element Update, and this funding has been carried over to Fiscal Year 2013-
14. In addition, funding is available for implementation of programs for the 2007-2014 
Housing Element from the previously approved budget. 

PAGE 50



Staff Report #: 14-024  

 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
The Housing Element update and implementation of programs consider a number of 
policy issues including how to address zoning for the homeless and transitional and 
supportive housing for compliance with SB2 and the conversion of accessory structures 
into secondary dwelling units. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
The Housing Element update and the Zoning Ordinance amendments associated with 
the implementation programs are subject to the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA).  Without the need for rezoning for high density housing, the preparation and 
issuance of an initial study and negative declaration would be appropriate.  The City 
prepared drafts of the documents for review by the Planning Commission and City 
Council in November and December 2013, respectively.  The City is in the process of 
preparing final versions of the documents with an anticipated release in February 2014 
for a formal public comment period. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Public notification consisted of publishing a notice in the local newspaper. In addition, 
the City has prepared a project page for the project, which is available at the following 
address: http://www.menlopark.org/athome. This page provides up-to-date information 
about the project, allowing interested parties to stay informed of its progress. The page 
allows users to sign up for automatic email bulletins, notifying them when content is 
updated and meetings are scheduled. 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Supplemental Revisions to the Draft Housing Element 
 

Report prepared by: 
Deanna Chow 
Senior Planner 
 
Justin Murphy 
Development Services Manager 
 
 

PAGE 51

http://www.menlopark.org/athome


THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 52



Supplemental Revisions to the City of Menlo Park Draft Housing Element (Dated December 12, 2013) 

 
 

Prepared for the February 10, 2014 City of Menlo Park City Council Meeting  

 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL REVISIONS  
City of Menlo Park Draft Housing Element (Dated December 12, 2013) 
Prepared for the February 11, 2014 Menlo Park City Council Meeting 
 
Note: Text shown in italics reflects comments from the California Department of Housing and 
Community Development (HCD).  Text shown in underline reflects proposed changes from the 
December 12, 2013 Draft Housing Element and January 28, 2014 Revisions.  
 

Pages 27-50 
Clarify Use of the Term “Affordable Housing”: The housing element includes several programs, 
including, but not limited to Programs H1.A, H1.H, H2.A, H4.B, and H4.H, that refer to “affordable 
housing.” The programs should clarify that “affordable housing” means housing affordable to 
extremely low-, very low-, low-, and moderate-income households.  
 
Modification to Page 27:  
Modify Program H1.A to clarify affordable housing, as follows: 
 
H1.A Establish City Staff Work Priorities for Implementing Housing Element Programs.  As 

part of the annual review of the Housing (see Program H1.B), establish work priorities to 
implement the Housing Element related to community outreach, awareness and input on 
housing concerns and striving to ensure that all City publications, including the City’s Activity 
Guide, include information on housing programs. City staff work priorities specific to the 
Housing Element include: 

 
a. Conduct the annual review of the Housing Element.  
b. Review options for funding housing affordable to extremely low-, very low-, low- and 

moderate-income households. 
c. Make recommendations to City Commissions on strategies for housing opportunity 

sites and for funding. 
d. Provide follow-up on housing opportunity sites and funding based on directions 

provided by the City Council, including working with the community and 
implementing Housing Element programs. 

e. Conduct community outreach and provide community information materials through 
an open and non-advocacy process. 

f. Engage property owners in identifying opportunities for the construction of housing 
affordable to extremely low-, very low-, low- and moderate-income households. 

PAGE 53

vmalathong
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A

vmalathong
Typewritten Text



Supplemental Revisions to the City of Menlo Park Draft Housing Element (Dated December 12, 2013) 

 
 

Prepared for the February 10, 2014 City of Menlo Park City Council Meeting  

g. Pursue unique opportunities where the City can participate in the construction of 
affordable housing, either on City-owned sites, or through funding or regulatory 
means.  

h. Develop ongoing and annual outreach and coordination with non-profit housing 
developers and affordable housing advocates. 

i. Continue to participate in ongoing regional activities related to housing, including 
participation in ongoing efforts as part of the Countywide 21 Elements effort. 

 
Responsibility: City Commissions; Planning Division; City Manager; City Council 
Financing: General Fund  
Objectives: Establish staff priorities for implementing Housing Element programs.  
Timeframe: Participate in ongoing regional planning activities throughout the 

Housing Element planning period and develop a work program as part 
of the annual review of the Housing Element (see Program H1.B). 

 
 
Modification to Page 31:  
Modify Program H1.H to clarify affordable housing, as follows: 
 
H1.H Utilize the City’s Below Market Rate (BMR) Housing Fund. The City will administer and 

no longer than every two years advertise the availability of funds in the Below Market Rate 
(BMR) Housing Fund as it applies to residential, commercial and industrial development 
projects.   

 
Responsibility: City Commissions; Planning Division; City Attorney; City Manager; 

City Council 
Financing: Below Market Rate Housing Fund and General Fund  
Objectives: Accumulate and distribute funds for housing affordable housing. to 

extremely low-, very low-, low- and moderate-income households. 
Timeframe: Ongoing 

 
Modification to Page 47:  
Modify Program H4.B to clarify affordable housing, as follows: 
 
H4.B  Implement Inclusionary Housing Regulations.  Continue to administer the Below Market 

Rate (BMR) Housing Program for Commercial and Industrial Developments and the Below 
Market Rate (BMR) Housing Program for Residential Developments.  

 
Responsibility: Planning Division; City Attorney; City Commissions; City Council 
Financing: General Fund  
Objectives: Implement requirements to assist in providing housing affordable to 

extremely low-, very low-, low- and moderate-income households 
housing opportunities in Menlo Park. 

Timeframe: Ongoing  

PAGE 54



Supplemental Revisions to the City of Menlo Park Draft Housing Element (Dated December 12, 2013) 

 
 

Prepared for the February 10, 2014 City of Menlo Park City Council Meeting  

 
Modification to Pages 49-50:  
Modify Program H4.H to clarify affordable housing, as follows: 
 
H4.H   Work with Non-Profits and Property Owners on Housing Opportunity Sites.  Work with 

non-profits and property owners to seek opportunities for an affordable housing 
development. Undertake the following actions on sites zoned R-4-S and/or AHO to 
encourage development of multi-family housing affordable housing to extremely low-, very 
low-, low- and moderate-income households: 
a. Work closely with non-profit housing developers and property owners to identify housing 

development opportunities, issues and needs. 
b. On larger sites with multiple properties the City will strive to identify opportunities for 

parcel consolidation to ensure a minimum density of 20 units/acre is achieved and 
integrated site planning occurs by (1) identifying sites where common ownership occurs, 
(2) contacting property owners of contiguous vacant and underutilized sites, (3) 
conducting outreach to affordable housing developers, and (4) offering the incentives 
contained in the R-4-S and AHO zoning to promote lot consolidation.  

c. Undertake community outreach as part of the rezoning and, as appropriate, in 
coordination with the potential developer and property owner. 

d. Use the affordable housing overlay zone (when adopted — see Program H4.C) to 
incentivize housing affordable housing to extremely low-, very low-, low- and moderate-
income households and lot consolidation on specific sites. 

e. Complete site-planning studies, continue community outreach, and undertake regulatory 
approvals in coordination with the development application. 

f. Facilitate development through regulatory incentives, including the establishment of 
housing as a “permitted use,” the reduction or waiver of City fees, enable the processing 
of affordable housing development proposals to, as best as possible, fit with the varied 
financing requirements for the housing affordable to extremely low-, very low-, low- and 
moderate-income households units, use of affordable housing funds, implementation of 
other Housing Element Programs, and other assistance by City Planning staff in 
development review.  

g. Target sites in Downtown and surrounding infill areas and, especially properties where 
lot consolidation is possible and provide incentives for lot consolidation and property 
redevelopment with housing.  

h. Investigate the potential for development of new housing on underutilized commercial 
and industrial sites, including the creation of residential overlay zoning, to allow for 
residential development in selected, underutilized industrial areas. 

i. Establish specific mechanisms to expedite processing of permits for housing projects 
that include on-site residential units affordable to persons of lower or moderate income.  
This may include granting priority in scheduling such proposals for public review and 
priority in plan check and subsequent issuance of building permits. 

j. Encourage the use of funding techniques such as mortgage revenue bonds, mortgage 
credit certificates, and low-income housing tax credits to facilitate the development of 

PAGE 55



Supplemental Revisions to the City of Menlo Park Draft Housing Element (Dated December 12, 2013) 

 
 

Prepared for the February 10, 2014 City of Menlo Park City Council Meeting  

housing affordable housing to extremely low-, very low-, low- and moderate-income 
households.  
 
Responsibility: City Commissions; Planning Division; City Attorney; City Council 
Financing:  General Fund  
Objectives:  Identify incentives and procedures to facilitate development of housing 

affordable housing to extremely low-, very low-, low-, and moderate-
income households on higher density housing sites. 

Timeframe:  Ongoing 
 
 
Page 113 
Description of Realistic Capacity for Non-Vacant and Non-Residential Sites: Describe the 
methodology used to estimate the realistic capacity, particularly for the non-vacant and non-
residential sites within the planning period. For example, an updated description of realistic capacity 
from the 4th cycle housing element, page 109 of the prior element, could be used. 
 
Modification to Page 113:  
Expand the analysis under Composite of Housing Element Approach to Housing Sites on page 113 
to address realistic capacity for non-vacant and non-residential sites, to read as follows: 
 
“The sites analysis must cover potential zoning, environmental, infrastructure and other potential 
development constraints to determine whether there are barriers to development. The Housing 
Element must also establish a realistic development potential under current zoning. Higher density 
sites covered under the El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan have appropriate zoning, as do 
higher density sites located outside of the downtown area that are now zoned R-4-S and R-4-S 
(AHO). Infill opportunities around the Downtown also have zoning to enable development of higher 
density housing. The El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan sites and sites located in the infill 
area around the downtown are listed in Appendix A of the Housing Element. These areas provide 
the opportunity for up to 750 units of higher density housing to be built. The Specific Plan area is 
limited to a 680-unit cap on additional development, but bonuses would apply to individual sites as 
they are proposed. However, the overall development potential of 680 additional housing units 
under the Specific Plan cannot be exceeded without additional environmental review.  
 
The minimum density in the R-4-S zone is 20 units/acre. The Haven Avenue sites, Hamilton 
Avenue sites and the two MidPen Housing Gateway Apartments sites comprise a total of 27.94 
acres and would result in a minimum of 559 units. By including the VA site (60 units), the minimum 
total number of units is 619 units, which still enables the City to provide adequate sites for lower 
income housing consistent with the City’s Regional Housing Needs Allocation. 
 
The sites rezoned previously to R-4-S are all relatively flat and have minimal development 
constraints. There has also been a significant degree of property owner and developer interest in 
the development of multifamily housing on these sites. Overall market trends, such as significant 
recent increases in rents and local job growth, have created a high demand for housing on these 
sites. The Haven Avenue sites include current uses such as outside storage, warehousing, 

PAGE 56



Supplemental Revisions to the City of Menlo Park Draft Housing Element (Dated December 12, 2013) 

 
 

Prepared for the February 10, 2014 City of Menlo Park City Council Meeting  

mulching, etc. that would not impede redevelopment of the site to residential use. There is an active 
development proposal for development of approximately 10 acres of the Haven Avenue sites. The 
Hamilton Avenue sites are in much the same condition, with sites either being vacant or having light 
industrial uses. There is one parcel included with the Hamilton Avenue sites that contains 8 
residential units (Mt. Olive). Lot consolidation is preferred by the City to achieve more coordinated 
site planning. The Hamilton Avenue sites are also located near to the Facebook campus.  
 
The MidPen and VA sites are different from Haven Avenue and Hamilton Avenue due to ownership 
and site conditions. Even though the MidPen sites are developed with multifamily residential uses, 
the owner (MidPen) is seeking funding to redevelop the site at a higher density. All of the units 
proposed would be affordable to lower income households. For the VA/Core site, the VA has 
selected Core Affordable Housing, which is pursuing a development for very low income veterans. 
 
The map in Appendix A shows a composite of the City’s approach to providing adequate sites for a 
variety of housing types and needs. Specifically, these include sites rezoned for higher density 
housing, lots around the downtown area that have additional development potential, second units 
and the El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan area. At least 50% of the City’s lower income 
need must be accommodated on sites designated for residential use with only ancillary commercial 
or other uses to support the development and reduce trips. Following the composite map are pages 
showing higher density housing sites located outside of the El Camino Real/Downtown Specific 
Plan and the surrounding infill areas. 
 
Appendix A also lists all the separate properties for the VA site, MidPen sites, Haven Avenue sites 
and Hamilton Avenue sites by Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) and provides information on 
current uses, zoning, development potential, etc. From a planning standpoint, the base density 
shown in the table below should be considered the realistic development potential for these sites. 
The table shows development under the base zoning and development under State Density Bonus 
Law and, for the Haven Avenue and MidPen sites, development under the Affordable Housing 
Overlay zone.” 
 

Modification to Appendix A: 
Add maps showing higher density housing sites located outside of the El Camino Real/Downtown 
Specific Plan and the surrounding infill areas to supplement added language on page 113 regarding 
realistic capacity for non-vacant and non-residential sites. 
 
 

PAGE 57



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 58



 
 

  

  
 City of Menlo Park Housing Element   1 
 
 

 

Sites Rezoned for Higher Density Housing 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BA
R

TO
N

GILBERT

M
A

R
M

O
N

A

PERIMETER

HOSPITAL
DURHAM

SA
N

TA
 M

AR
G

AR
IT

A

C
H

AP
EL

SH
IR

LE
Y

O'KEEFE

COLEMAN

R
ES

ID
EN

T

C
O

LE
M

AN

HOSPITAL

O
AK

R
ED

W
O

O
D

W
ILL

OW
 R

D

Veterans Affairs Clinic

Portion of APN:
062470050

±

Date: March 15, 2013
Prepared by: City of Menlo Park Planning Division GIS 0 100 200

Feet

CityLimits

Potential Sites

Veterans Affairs Clinic

IVYC
A

R
LT

O
N

SA
R

AT
O

G
A

W
E

S
TM

IN
ST

E
R

ALBERNI

SE
V

IE
R

M
A

D
E

R
A

HAMILTON AVE

O'BRIEN DR

W
IL

LO
W

R
D

13
00

 B
lk

M
id

-P
en

in
su

la
's

 G
at

ew
ay

A
PN

: 0
55

38
35

60

12
00

 B
lk

M
id

-P
en

in
su

la
's

 G
at

ew
ay

A
PN

: 0
62

10
36

10

±

Date: March 22, 2013
Prepared by: City of Menlo Park Planning Division GIS 0 100 200

Feet

Potential Sites

CityLimits

1200 / 1300 Block MidPen's Gateway

W
IN

D
ER

M
ER

E

FR
O

N
TA

G
E

H
O

LL
YB

U
R

N
E

SE
VI

ER

M
AD

ER
A

C
AR

LT
O

N

HAMILTON AVE

W
IL

LO
W

 R
D

05
53

98
11

0

05
53

98
10

0

05
53

98
09

0

05
53

98
03

0

05
53

98
08

0

05
53

98
07

0

05
53

98
06

0

05
53

98
05

0

05
53

98
04

0

05
53

97
03

0

05
53

97
02

0

05
53

97
01

0

05
53

74
12

0

05
53

97
04

0

05
53

96
03

0

05
53

97
05

0

05
53

96
07

0

05
53

96
06

0

05
53

98
26

0

05
53

98
01

0

05
53

98
24

0

±

Date: March 15, 2013
Prepared by: City of Menlo Park Planning Division GIS 0 100 200

Feet

Owner
MT OLIVE APOSTOLIC ORIGINAL

BAYFRONT INVESTMENTS LLC

CALHOUN JIM & CAROL ANN TRS

CITY OF MENLO PARK/COMM DEV AGENCY

ANGELO PAUL E

Potential Sites

CityLimits

Hamilton Avenue

HOOVER

ALLEY

AN
NE

TT
E

HAVEN

US HIGHWAY 101

US HIGHWAY
101

ROLISON

HAVEN AVE

055170260

05
51

70
27

0

05
51

70
20

0

05
51

70
18

0

05
51

70
33

0

05
51

70
21

0

05
51

70
19

0 05
51

70
08

0

05
51

70
22

0

05
51

70
06

0

05
51

70
32

0

05
51

70
07

0

±

Date: March 15, 2013
Prepared by: City of Menlo Park Planning Division GIS 0 100 200

Feet

Owner
BLACK MOUNTAIN HOLDINGS LLC

BUTLER REALTY LLC

CE NIEHOFF AND CO

SCARLETT HENRY A & P M TRS

Potential Sites

CityLimits

Haven Avenue

PAGE 59



 
 

  

  
 City of Menlo Park Housing Element  2 
 
 

 

MidPen’s Gateway Apartments (1200 Block of Willow Road) 
 

IVYC
A

R
LT

O
N

SA
R

AT
O

G
A

W
E

S
TM

IN
ST

E
R

ALBERNI

SE
V

IE
R

M
A

D
E

R
A

HAMILTON AVE

O'BRIEN DR

W
IL

LO
W

R
D

13
00

 B
lk

M
id

-P
en

in
su

la
's

 G
at

ew
ay

A
PN

: 0
55

38
35

60

12
00

 B
lk

M
id

-P
en

in
su

la
's

 G
at

ew
ay

A
PN

: 0
62

10
36

10

±

Date: March 22, 2013
Prepared by: City of Menlo Park Planning Division GIS 0 100 200

Feet

Potential Sites

CityLimits

1200 / 1300 Block MidPen's Gateway

PAGE 60



 
 

  

  
 City of Menlo Park Housing Element   3 
 
 

 

MidPen’s Gateway Apartments (1300 Block of Willow Road) 
 
 
  

IVYC
A

R
LT

O
N

SA
R

AT
O

G
A

W
E

S
TM

IN
ST

E
R

ALBERNI

SE
V

IE
R

M
A

D
E

R
A

HAMILTON AVE

O'BRIEN DR

W
IL

LO
W

R
D

13
00

 B
lk

M
id

-P
en

in
su

la
's

 G
at

ew
ay

A
PN

: 0
55

38
35

60

12
00

 B
lk

M
id

-P
en

in
su

la
's

 G
at

ew
ay

A
PN

: 0
62

10
36

10

±

Date: March 22, 2013
Prepared by: City of Menlo Park Planning Division GIS 0 100 200

Feet

Potential Sites

CityLimits

1200 / 1300 Block MidPen's Gateway

PAGE 61



 
 

  

  
 City of Menlo Park Housing Element   4 
 
 

 

Veterans Affairs Clinic 
 

  

BA
R

TO
N

GILBERT

M
A

R
M

O
N

A

PERIMETER

HOSPITAL
DURHAM

SA
N

TA
 M

AR
G

AR
IT

A

C
H

AP
EL

SH
IR

LE
Y

O'KEEFE

COLEMAN

R
ES

ID
EN

T

C
O

LE
M

AN

HOSPITAL

O
AK

R
ED

W
O

O
D

W
ILL

OW
 R

D

Veterans Affairs Clinic

Portion of APN:
062470050

±

Date: March 15, 2013
Prepared by: City of Menlo Park Planning Division GIS 0 100 200

Feet

CityLimits

Potential Sites

Veterans Affairs Clinic

PAGE 62



 
 

  

  
 City of Menlo Park Housing Element   5 
 
 

 

Hamilton Avenue East 
 
 

W
IN

D
ER

M
ER

E

FR
O

N
TA

G
E

H
O

LL
YB

U
R

N
E

SE
VI

ER

M
AD

ER
A

C
AR

LT
O

N

HAMILTON AVE

W
IL

LO
W

 R
D

05
53

98
11

0

05
53

98
10

0

05
53

98
09

0

05
53

98
03

0

05
53

98
08

0

05
53

98
07

0

05
53

98
06

0

05
53

98
05

0

05
53

98
04

0

05
53

97
03

0

05
53

97
02

0

05
53

97
01

0

05
53

74
12

0

05
53

97
04

0

05
53

96
03

0

05
53

97
05

0

05
53

96
07

0

05
53

96
06

0

05
53

98
26

0

05
53

98
01

0

05
53

98
24

0

±

Date: March 15, 2013
Prepared by: City of Menlo Park Planning Division GIS 0 100 200

Feet

Owner
MT OLIVE APOSTOLIC ORIGINAL

BAYFRONT INVESTMENTS LLC

CALHOUN JIM & CAROL ANN TRS

CITY OF MENLO PARK/COMM DEV AGENCY

ANGELO PAUL E

Potential Sites

CityLimits

Hamilton Avenue

PAGE 63



 
 

  

  
 City of Menlo Park Housing Element  6 
 
 

 

Haven Avenue 

HOOVER

ALLEY

AN
NE

TT
E

HAVEN

US HIGHWAY 101

US HIGHWAY
101

ROLISON

HAVEN AVE

055170260

05
51

70
27

0

05
51

70
20

0

05
51

70
18

0

05
51

70
33

0

05
51

70
21

0

05
51

70
19

0 05
51

70
08

0

05
51

70
22

0

05
51

70
06

0

05
51

70
32

0

05
51

70
07

0

±

Date: March 15, 2013
Prepared by: City of Menlo Park Planning Division GIS 0 100 200

Feet

Owner
BLACK MOUNTAIN HOLDINGS LLC

BUTLER REALTY LLC

CE NIEHOFF AND CO

SCARLETT HENRY A & P M TRS

Potential Sites

CityLimits

Haven Avenue

PAGE 64



   
CITY COUNCIL  

SPECIAL AND REGULAR MEETING 
DRAFT MINUTES 

 
Tuesday, January 28, 2014 

5:30 P.M. 
701 Laurel Street, Menlo Park, CA 94025 

City Council Chambers 
 
5:30 P.M. CLOSED SESSION (1st floor Council Conference Room, Administration Building) 
 
CL1. Closed Session pursuant to Government Code Section §54957 to conference with labor 

negotiators regarding labor negotiations with the Police Officers Association (POA) and 
Service Employees International Union (SEIU)  

 
REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 
There was no reportable action as the closed session scheduled at 5:30 p.m. was cancelled.  
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS – None 
 
Mayor Mueller called the Study Session to order at 6:20 p.m. Councilmembers Carlton, Keith 
and Ohtaki, were present.  Councilmember Cline was absent. 
 
6:15 P.M. STUDY SESSION (Council Chambers) 
 
SS1. Study Session to review options for appellate procedures in peace officer discipline cases 

(Staff report #14-017) (presentation) 
Human Resources Director Gina Donnelly introduced the item.  
Jeff Sloane of Renne Sloan Holtzman & Sakai, LLP and Michael Rains of Rains, Lucia & Stern 
gave a presentation regarding the Public Safety Officers Bill of Rights (PSOBR), basic 
requirements for appeals from punitive action, range of options for appeals from punitive action 
under PSOBR and the pros and cons of binding arbitration for public safety officers. 
 
Public Comment: 
• Sean Howell of Mastagni Holstedt Amik Miller & Johnson, counsel for the Police Officers 

Association (POA), spoke regarding retired judges as arbitrators, the cost of arbitration 
and protection against due process violations. 

 
7:00 P.M. REGULAR SESSION  
 
Mayor Mueller led the pledge of allegiance. 
 
A. PRESENTATIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS 
 
A1. Proclamation recognizing Hillview Middle School Principal Erik Burmeister (Attachment) 
Erik Buremeister accepted the proclamation, thanked the teachers on his staff and stated that it 
is an honor to serve the community. 
 
A2. Proclamation recognizing Menlo Park City School District Board Member Laura Rich 

(Attachment) 
Laura Rich accepted the proclamation and stated that it has been a pleasure to serve the 
community and that the schools are in great shape for the future. 
  

AGENDA ITEM D-5

PAGE 65

http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_103/2014/01/23/file_attachments/265011/SS1%2B-%2BAppellate%2BProcedures__265011.pdf
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_283/2014/01/29/file_attachments/266633/SS1%2B-%2BAppellate%2BProcedures__266633.pdf
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_283/2014/01/29/file_attachments/266629/012814%2B-%2BErik%2BBurmeister__266629.pdf
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_283/2014/01/29/file_attachments/266630/012814%2B-%2BLaura%2BLinkletter%2BRich__266630.pdf


January 28, 2014 
Minutes Page 2 

  

 
A3. Proclamation for Retirement of Canine Officer Gert (Attachment) 
Police Officer Steve Knoff accepted the proclamation and spoke regarding this bond with Gert 
through the years. 
 
A4. Joint presentation by Menlo Park School District and Public Works Department regarding 

new school on the O’Connor site in the Willows neighborhood  
 (School District presentation) (Public Works presentation)  
 
At 7:41 p.m., Councilmember Keith recused herself from considering this item because she 
resides within 500 feet of the subject location and exited the Council chambers. 
 
Menlo Park School District Superintendent Maurice Geyesels and School Board Member 
Amhad Sheikholeslami gave a presentation regarding benefits of the new school, planning and 
work schedule, school design plans and access design options.   
 
Staff presentation given by Chip Taylor regarding the City’s role in the process, trip comparison 
and traffic impact information, existing and improving access and connectivity.  
 
Public Comment: 
• Noel Berghout made a brief presentation and spoke regarding safety issues (powerpoint)  
• Bob Arabian made a brief presentation and spoke regarding design considerations 

(powerpoint) 
• Todd Brahana spoke regarding traffic mitigation and safety issues, fairness and design 
• Chuck Bernstein spoke regarding the changing traffic patterns, the Willows neighborhood 

character and against access to the school through Oak Court 
• Carrie Farrell spoke regarding traffic and parking, and the amount of time to walk or bike to 

school 
• Judith Jones spoke regarding condensed peak time traffic and safety 
• Shu Rosenthal spoke regarding parking 
• Brenda Kinaan stated to keep the street safe for pedestrians and bicyclists 
 
At 9:55 p.m. this item concluded and Councilmember Keith returned to the Council chambers. 
 
B. COMMISSION/COMMITTEE VACANCIES, APPOINTMENTS AND REPORTS  
 
B1. Consider applicants for appointment to fill two vacancies on the Parks and Recreation 

Commission (Staff report #14-013) 
 
ACTION: Councilmember Keith nominated James Cebrian and Christopher Harris.  Mayor Pro 
Tem Carlton nominated Thomas Stanwood. 
 
ACTION: With a majority of votes (Carlton, Keith, Mueller and Ohtaki) James Cebrian is 
reappointed to a term expiring April 30, 2017. 
 
ACTION: With a majority of votes (Keith, Mueller and Ohtaki) Christopher Harris is appointed to 
a term expiring April 30, 2017. 
 
C. PUBLIC COMMENT #1  
• Kim Rubin made a brief presentation regarding train noise (powerpoint) 
• Omar Chatty spoke regarding extending BART  
  

PAGE 66

http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_283/2014/01/29/file_attachments/266631/012814%2B-%2BOffice%2BKnopp%2Band%2BGert%2B%2B-%2BRetiring%2BK-9__266631.pdf
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_283/2014/01/29/file_attachments/266636/A4%2B-%2BOConnor%2BSchool%2B-%2BSchool%2BDistrict__266636.pdf
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_283/2014/01/29/file_attachments/266635/A4%2B-%2BOConnor%2BSchool%2B-%2BPW__266635.pdf
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_283/2014/01/29/file_attachments/266643/Public%2BComment%2B-%2BOak%2BCourt%2B-%2BNoel%2BBerghout%2B__266643.pdf
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_283/2014/01/29/file_attachments/266642/Public%2BComment%2B-%2BBob%2BArabian%2B-%2BOak%2BCourt%2BDesigns%2Band%2BPhotos__266642.pdf
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_102/2014/01/23/file_attachments/265003/B1%2B-%2BCommission%2BAppointments__265003.pdf
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_283/2014/01/29/file_attachments/266644/Public%2BComment%2B-%2BKim%2BRuben%2B-%2BNo%2BTrain%2BHorns__266644.pdf


January 28, 2014 
Minutes Page 3 

  

 
D.  CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
D1. Authorize the City Manager to submit revisions to the Draft Housing Element to the State 

Department of Housing and Community Development (Staff report #14-015) 
 
D2. Initiate the Menlo Park Landscape Assessment District proceedings for fiscal year 2014-15 

and adopt a resolution describing the improvements and direct preparation of the 
Engineer's Report (Staff report #14-009) 

 
D3. Approve a budget appropriation in the amount of $76,362 from the General Fund balance; 

award a construction contract for the El Camino Real Trees Phase lll Project to Del Conte 
Landscaping, Inc. in the amount of $225,362 and authorize a total budget of $285,362 for 
construction, contingencies, and project management (Staff report #14-010) 

 
D4. Approve a budget appropriation in the amount of $130,000 from the Transportation Impact 

Fee fund balance and authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement with Whitlock 
& Weinberger Transportation, Inc. Consultant to develop the El Camino Real Corridor 
Study in the amount of $459,713 (Staff report #14-012) 

 
D5. Accept minutes for the Council meetings of November 19, 2013 and January 14, 2014 

(Attachment) 
 
ACTION: Motion and second (Ohtaki/Keith) to approve all the items on the Consent Calendar 
passes 4-0-1 (Cline absent) 
 
E. PUBLIC HEARINGS – None  
 
F. REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
F1. Review and approve an agreement for Emergency Preparedness Services between the 

City of Menlo Park and the Menlo Park Fire District (Staff report #14-016) 
Staff presentation by Commander Dave Bertini 
 
ACTION: Motion and second (Keith/Ohtaki) to approve an agreement for Emergency 
Preparedness Services between the City of Menlo Park and the Menlo Park Fire District passes 
4-0-1 (Cline absent) 
 
F2. Request by Mayor Pro Tem Carlton to reconsider approval of the logo update and 

development of graphic standards from the January 14, 2014 Council meeting 
 (Note: Council will not discuss the merits of the item.  If reconsideration is approved, the 

item will be agendized for a future meeting) 
 
ACTION: Motion and second (Ohtaki/Mueller) to reconsider approval of the logo update and 
development of graphic standards from the January 14, 2014 Council meeting and agendize for 
a future meeting.  The motion fails (2-2-1; Keith and Carlton dissent, Cline absent). 
 
G. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT – None 
  
H. WRITTEN COMMUNICATION – None 
 
I. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
No staff presentations. 
  

PAGE 67

http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_97/2014/01/23/file_attachments/265013/D1%2B-%2BDraft%2BHousing%2BElement__265013.pdf
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_101/2014/01/23/file_attachments/265016/D2%2B-%2BLandscape%2BAssessment%2BDistrict__265016.pdf
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_101/2014/01/23/file_attachments/265017/D3%2B-%2BEl%2BCamino%2BTrees%2BPhase%2BIII__265017.pdf
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_108/2014/01/23/file_attachments/265018/D4%2B-%2BEl%2BCamino%2BReal%2BCorridor%2BStudy__265018.pdf
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_102/2014/01/23/file_attachments/265004/D5%2B-%2BMinutes__265004.pdf
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_107/2014/01/23/file_attachments/265014/F1%2B-%2BEmergency%2BPreparedness__265014.pdf


January 28, 2014 
Minutes Page 4 

  

 
I1. 2013 Commissions Attendance Report (Staff report #14-014) 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Carlton stated that consistent attendance is important and supports removing 
Commissioners who fall below the attendance threshold. 
 
I2. Guidelines for use of traffic modeling software in Transportation Impact Analyses (TIAs) 

(Staff report #14-011) 
 
J. COUNCILMEMBER REPORTS 
 
J1. Clarification of C/CAG assignment 
 
There was consensus that Councilmember Keith will remain the C/CAG representative for 2014 
and Mayor Mueller will remain the alternate and that Mayor Mueller will assume the 
representative position in 2015. 
 
Councilmember Keith reported on SFCJPA and flood walls. She stated there will be a meeting 
on January 29th to gather public feedback regarding replacement of the Chaucer bridge.   
 
K. PUBLIC COMMENT #2  
There was no public comment. 
 
L. ADJOURNMENT at 10:55 p.m. 
 

PAGE 68

http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_102/2014/01/23/file_attachments/265012/I1%2B-%2BCommission%2BAttendance%2BReport__265012.pdf
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_108/2014/01/23/file_attachments/265019/I2%2B-%2BTraffic%2BModeling%2BSoftware__265019.pdf


City Council Meeting 
February 11, 2014 
 
At the request of staff, and after reviewing the recording of the June 4, 2013 Council 
meeting, staff recommends Council approve the Errata to the June 4, 2013 Council 
minutes. 
 
 
 

ERRATA 
To June 4, 2013 Council meeting minutes  
to correct clerical error in original minutes 

 
F. REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
F1. Adopt a twenty-seven percent community-wide greenhouse gas emissions reduction target 
(Staff report #13-089)(presentation)  
Staff presentation by Environmental Programs Specialist Vanessa Marcadejas.  
 
Public Comment:  
• Patricia Boyle spoke in support of adopting target  
• Scott Marshall spoke in support of adopting target  
• Chris DeCardy spoke in support of adopting target  
• Gary Hedden spoke in support of adopting target  
• Mitch Slomiak spoke in support of adopting target  
• Adina Levin spoke in support of adopting target  

 
ACTION: Motion and second (Cline/Keith) to adopt a twenty-seven percent community-wide 
greenhouse gas emissions reduction target for 2020 and rename the alternative transportation 
social marketing program to the greenhouse gas emissions target fund passes 4-1 (Ohtaki 
dissents). 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Pamela Aguilar 
City Clerk 
  

PAGE 69



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 70



 

 

OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER 
  

 

 Council Meeting Date: February 11, 2014 

 Staff Report #: 14-026 
 

 Agenda Item #: F-1 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: Consideration to Rename the San Mateo Drive 

Bike Bridge in Honor of Mike Harding 
 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends that the City Council consider a request to rename the San Mateo 
Drive Bike Bridge in honor of Mike Harding, and if approved, direct staff to contact and 
work with the City of Palo Alto to obtain its concurrence. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
At the January 14, 2014, City Council meeting, former mayor Steve Schmidt requested 
that the City Council consider renaming the San Mateo Drive bike bridge in honor of 
longtime resident and former commissioner, Mike Harding.  Since the initial request, the 
City has also been contacted by Transportation Commissioner Adina Levin (although 
she was not representing the Commission), Silicon Valley Bicycle Coalition and 
numerous Menlo Park residents, many of whom live on San Mateo Drive to support 
honoring Mr. Harding by renaming the Bridge.  
 
The bike bridge is jointly owned and maintained by the cities of Menlo Park and Palo 
Alto according to an agreement dated May 25, 1976. 
 
On the Menlo Park side of the bridge, the City of Menlo Park has right of way to the 
centerline of the creek. On the Palo Alto side, the underlining land is owned by Stanford 
to the center line of San Francisquito Creek, however the land is within the Palo Alto city 
limits and Stanford has provided Palo Alto an easement to construct and maintain the 
bridge. Stanford has also given Palo Alto an 8-foot floating pedestrian/bike easement 
from Sand Hill Road to the bridge with Stanford agreeing to maintain the pedestrian/ 
bike path.  
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The City Council does have a policy for the naming and/or changing names of facilities. 
The policy was adopted in February 1986 and last reviewed in January 1997, with no 
changes made at that time.  
 

AGENDA ITEM F-1

PAGE 71



Staff Report #: 14-026 
 

Due to the shared ownership of the bike bridge, it is important to note that renaming the 
entire bridge (in both directions) would require the additional approval of the City of Palo 
Alto. 
 
Due to the recent nature of the request, staff has not yet been able to conduct a 
complete analysis of the estimated costs, consult with staff from the City of Palo Alto, or 
fully research and record the totality of Mr. Harding’s contributions to the community. 
This work will continue based on the outcome of the City Council’s discussion and 
direction. 
 
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 

Fiscal impacts to rename the bridge would include installing signage and updating 
existing reference materials. These costs are unknown at this time, but would likely be 
minimal and could be absorbed into the existing budget. 
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
As the existing policy was previously adopted by the City Council, the City Council alone 
has the ability to affirm, modify, or waive the policy in part or in its entirety. In the last 
several years, the City Council has approved the recommendation of the Parks and 
Recreation Commission to waive aspects of the naming policy in order to name the new 
Arrillaga facilities after the John Arrillaga family, due to the major donations from Mr. 
Arrillaga that funded their construction. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this agenda item being 
listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. City Council Policy for Naming and/or Changing the Name of Facilities 
 

B. Jurisdictional map of the existing San Mateo Drive Bike Bridge 
 
Report prepared by: 
Clay Curtin 
Assistant to the City Manager 
 

PAGE 72



         City of Menlo Park            City  Counci l  Pol icy  

Department 
        City Council 
 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Effective Date 
February 25, 

1986 

Subject 
Naming and/or Changing the Name of Facilities         

Approved by 
      

Procedure # 
CC-86- 

 D e p a r t m e n t  H e a d  
C i t y  M a n a g e r  

 
PURPOSE AND SCOPE  

 
From time to time the City has the opportunity to name a new facility, or is requested to change the 
name of a previously designated park, playground, building or other unit under the City’s jurisdiction. 
 
In order to formalize the City’s consideration of these requests, and to provide better guidelines to the 
public, the City does hereby adopt the following policy guidelines for the naming of facilities. 
 
1.   It shall be the policy of the City not to change the name of any existing recreation and park facility, 
particularly one whose name has City or national significance, unless there is the most extraordinary 
circumstances of City or National interest and no other new facility can so be designated. 
 
2.   The existing place names within Menlo Park shall be deemed to have historic significance  to the 
City.  The City will modify existing names only with the greatest reluctance and only to commemorate a 
person or persons who have made major, overriding contributions to the City and  whose  distinctions 
are as yet unrecognized. 
 
3.   The Park and Recreation Commission, after considering inputs from the community, will 
recommend to the City Council names for new parks, playgrounds, athletic fields, paths, tennis courts, 
flower beds, buildings and miscellaneous facilities.  The naming will recognize:   
A deceased person (no sooner than five years after death, ethnic or other national or community groups 
not yet honored in some fashion, who have made significant contributions to the City and/or the Park 
and Recreation and have not been previously honored in a meaningful way by the City. 

 
4.   It shall be the policy of the City generally to encourage plaques commemorating donations including 
tree memorials, horticultural collections or plant materials. 
 
5.   Where appropriate to the facility, the City encourages the donation of memorial benches. 
 
6.   At those facilities having recreation buildings, the City from time to time may authorize placing of a 
memorial plaque inside a building when that facility is closely identified with a person or group, but the 
policy of the City is to retain the historic name of the facility. 
 
7.   For other than naming a new facility, it is the policy of the City to take no action until at least six 
months from the receipt of a suggested name change or the adoption of these policies. 
 
(Council took a look at this policy again on Jan. 27, 1998 with no changes) 

ATTACHMENT A

PAGE 73



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 74



80

60

1151

101

99

1235

205

1165

1159

248

1161

200

150

1158

120

100

1150245

225

1168

265 1140

SA
N 

MA
TE

O 
 D

R

BAY LAUREL  DR

CITY OF MENLO PARK
LOCATION MAP

SAN MATEO DRIVE BIKE BRIDGE ´

Area or
Interest

DATE: 2/6/14 SCALE: 1" = 200' SHEET: 1

Bike Bridge-Shared Ownership Between Menlo Park and Palo Alto
Bike Paths
County Boundary
City Limits

Lands of Stanford

City of Menlo Park 
City Limits

(County Boundary)

City of Palo Alto
City Limits

(County Boundary)

San Francisquito Creek

ATTACHMENT B

PAGE 75



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 76



 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT   
  

 

 Council Meeting Date: February 11, 2014 

 Staff Report #: 14-028 
 

 Agenda Item #: F-2 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: Authorize Staff to Proceed with the Preparation of 

the Request for Proposal (RFP) for Consultant 
Services for the General Plan Update and M-2 
Area Zoning Update 

 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends the Council consider the staff report, presentation and public 
comment and authorize staff to proceed with the preparation of the request for proposal 
(RFP) for consultant services for the General Plan Update and M-2 Area Zoning 
Update. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 

On December 17, 2013, the City Council conducted a study session on the scope of 
work for the General Plan Update.  The Council provided general comments, including 
general support for a focused update of the M-2 Area, and expressed an interest in 
hearing feedback from stakeholders and the Commissions before providing formal 
direction in February 2014.  Staff conducted the outreach in January and early February 
2014.  A summary of the feedback is included in the Analysis section below. 
 
On January 14, 2014, the City Council appointed Mayor Mueller and Council Member 
Ohtaki to the General Plan Update Subcommittee.  The Subcommittee would meet as 
necessary to provide guidance to staff either as an ad hoc committee or as part of a 
larger advisory body that may be formed later in the process. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 

Outreach Summaries 
 
Commissions 
 
Staff conducted outreach with the six City Commissions with some role in the physical 
development of the City.  Staff made the same presentation at each meeting using the 
presentation given at the December 17, 2013 Council meeting as the template. 
 

AGENDA ITEM F-2

PAGE 77



Staff Report #: 14-028  

The minutes of the meetings are not yet available.  Each Commission expressed an 
interest in the topic, asked questions, and provided individual comments.  The following 
summarizes the collective input from each Commission. 
 

Transportation Commission (1/8/14): The Transportation Commission made the 
following motion that passed unanimously: 
 

Recommend to City Council to include the Circulation Element in the 
General Plan Update and that the City do a thorough job of examining and 
updating its transportation policies so as to achieve the City’s goals for the 
environment, quality of life , and economic development. 

 
Bicycle Commission (1/13/14):  The Bicycle Commission expressed general 
agreement for a citywide, multi-modal approach to transportation, improving 
east/west connectivity, and support for involvement of the Bicycle Commission if 
an advisory committee is formed. 
 
Parks and Recreation Commission (1/22/14):  Based on general consensus, the 
Parks and Recreation Commission expressed an interest in being involved in the 
process as it related to the following: 
 

Explore opportunities for enhanced connections to recreational opportunities 
(e.g., Bedwell Bayfront Park and the Bay Trail) for employees in the M-2 
Area and nearby residents through a cohesive and coordinated 
transportation system. 

 
Environmental Quality Commission (1/22/14):  The Environmental Quality 
Commission formed an ad hoc group comprised of three Commissioners (Chair, 
Outgoing Vice Chair and Incoming Vice Chair) to formulate a recommendation on 
behalf of the entire Commission based on the dialogue at the meeting and related 
to the following topics, which are core to the Commission’s mission:  sustainability, 
water (source, use, conservation, etc.), climate (both mitigation and adaptation), 
and hazardous material use.  The group’s recommendation will be presented at the 
February 11 Council meeting. 
 
Planning Commission (1/27/14):  The Planning Commission provided individual 
comments as summarized in Attachment C, and then communicated the following 
based on general consensus: 
 

Recommend that the City Council establish guidelines for considering 
potential project-specific General Plan Amendments that may come forward 
during the General Plan Update process. 
 
Commissioners Kadvany and Riggs would be willing to serve on a 
consultant selection committee if one were formed similar to the El Camino 
Real/Downtown planning process with the understanding that 

PAGE 78



Staff Report #: 14-028  

Commissioner Riggs’ term is up at the end of April 2014 and would 
potentially serve as an ex officio member. 

 
Housing Commission (2/5/14):  The Housing Commission voted unanimously to 
provide the following feedback to the City Council: 
 

Explore the possibility of including some level of affordable housing as part 
of any residential rezonings considered as part of the General Plan Update. 

 
M-2 Property Owners 
 
Staff met with the following five property owners that control approximately two-thirds of 
the land in the M-2 Area through a series of individual meetings:  Bohannon, Facebook, 
Prologis, TE, and Tarlton/Menlo Business Park.  Two of the entities have representation 
on the Menlo Park Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors.  All of the property owners 
expressed an interest in the update and a willingness to engage in the process.  A 
summary of individual comments is included as Attachment D.  In order to provide context 
for some of the property owner comments regarding thresholds based on floor area, 
Attachment E provides a snapshot of estimated building sizes in the M-2 Area on a 
parcel-by-parcel basis. 
 
Additional Outreach 
 

As part of the Belle Haven Neighborhood meeting scheduled for February 13, 2014, staff 
is scheduled to present on the General Plan update topic.  Staff intends to reach out to 
additional nearby residential neighborhoods, such Lorelei Manor and Suburban Park.  As 
part of the Circulation Element Update, there will be a need to conduct Citywide outreach, 
which will occur at a later point in time. 
 
Initial Givens for the General Plan Update 
 
On December 17, 2013, staff provided the following a set of "givens" or principles that 
would guide the overall development of the General Plan Update: 

 Community outreach and engagement will be an integral and robust component of 
the process to develop the plan; 

 Focus will be given to the M-2 (General Industrial) zoning district, especially the 
evolutions of the area and the appropriateness of land uses, intensity of uses, 
development standards, project review procedures, and use of hazardous 
materials; 

 Throughout development of the General Plan Update, pursue opportunities to 
establish goals and policies that will support streamlining of the development 
review process where appropriate; 

 Inclusion of new concepts and strategies to address emerging needs, including 
Greenhouse Gas Reduction, Sea Level Rise, Complete Streets, and 
Transportation Management Associations; 

 Land use and traffic projections for potential growth would be to the Year 2040 for 
general consistency with other local and regional plans; (e.g., Urban Water 

PAGE 79



Staff Report #: 14-028  

Management Plan, City/Council Association of Governments (C/CAG) Traffic 
Model, etc.); 

 Development of the General Plan will be informed by an Environmental Impact 
Report and a Fiscal Impact Analysis; and 

 General Plan will comply with State law. 
 
RFP Parameters 
 

Staff intends to consider both the individual comments and collective feedback in 
preparing the RFP.  In addition to the givens above, staff will prepare the RFP with the 
following parameters in mind unless directed otherwise by the City Council: 
 

 The Circulation Element update would be Citywide, but the focus would be east of 
El Camino Real. 

 The General Plan would comply with the Complete Street Act of 2008. 
 Potential changes to measuring transportation impacts (Vehicle Level of Service 

vs. Multi-Modal Level of Service) and the City’s roadway classification systems 
(arterials, collectors, etc., as shown in Attachment A) should be considered. 

 Material/substantive changes to the Land Use Element would be limited to M-2 
Area for this phase of the General Plan Update. 

 Increased intensities in the M-2 Area (as shown in Attachment B) in terms of Floor 
Area Ratios (FAR) and opportunities for a mix of land use in select locations would 
be considered through the process with the criteria to be established through the 
process.  (This statement is in lieu of choosing one of the 3 options for the “Extent 
of M-2 Area Changes” presented on December 17, 2013). 

 Zoning Ordinance Amendments applicable to the M-2 Area would be considered 
concurrently with the General Plan Update, and would include potential changes to 
the process for reviewing the use and storage of hazardous materials. 

 Themes of sustainability, integration, connection should be pursued and 
environmental circumstances should be considered prior to preparation of the 
Environmental Impact Report. 

 The Open Space/Conservation, Noise and Safety Elements would be updated as 
needed for consistency or another compelling reason. 

 The Housing Element would only be updated if needed for consistency. 
 The “stretch” goal is to complete adoption of the General Plan Update and Zoning 

Ordinance Amendments two years after award of contract with the understanding 
that this may result in impacts to other City projects. 

 The City is interested in partnering with a consultant team that is knowledgeable in 
best practices, has a proven track record, is innovative and creative, and is tuned 
into the needs of the community. 

 
In addition, staff would recommend that the RFP include consideration of an optional 
element.  Although not part of the short term focus, consideration should be given to the 
potential creation of a Community Character Element as a policy document to incorporate 
community issues such as aesthetics, residential design guidelines, potential historic 
resources, various type of frontage improvements (i.e., sidewalks vs. parking strips), 
street tree canopies, overhead utility lines, neighborhood serving retail, etc.  The 

PAGE 80



Staff Report #: 14-028  

character would be examined on a neighborhood-by-neighborhood basis to understand 
existing conditions and trends.  These various topics reflect topics that have been raised 
in various forums including the Capital Improvement Plan.  By including this concept in 
the RFP, there may be potential efficiencies in terms of data gathering and preparation of 
the Environmental Impact Report. 
 
Staff intends to present a work program/RFP, which incorporates input from the outreach 
to date, for Council consideration at the February 25, 2014 City Council meeting.  The 
work program will include a recommendation or options related to community outreach 
and the potential formation of an outreach and oversight committee, steering committee, 
task force or some other type of advisory body.  In addition, staff intends to recommend a 
process and timeline for screening the proposals and selecting the consultant team. 
 
If there is any other specific consideration that Council would like staff to consider as part 
of the RFP preparation, Council should provide that feedback at the meeting. 
 
Other Emerging Considerations 
 
Priority Development Areas 
 
Established by the Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG), Priority Development 
Areas (PDAs) are locally designated areas within existing communities that have been 
identified and approved by local cities or counties for future growth. These areas are 
typically accessible to transit, jobs, shopping and other services.  The boundaries of the 
El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan are currently a PDA.  This status provides the 
City with benefits when competing for regional grants.  ABAG has recently issued 
guidelines for adding, removing or changing PDAs and Priority Conservation Areas 
(PCAs).  The M-2 Area may be a candidate for a new PDA.  The General Plan Update 
would provide an avenue to consider the pros and cons of submitting an application, 
which ultimately requires adoption of a City Council resolution.  Staff intends to evaluate 
this possibility unless directed otherwise by the City Council.   
 
Complete Streets and Grant Funding 
 
To receive funding through the current One Bay Area Grant (OBAG) program, a 
jurisdiction must have: 1) either updated its General Plan to comply with the “Complete 
Streets” Act of 2008 or adopted a “Complete Streets” Resolution; and, 2) have a certified 
Housing Element.  For future funding cycles, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
(MTC) has provided preliminary guidance that jurisdictions will need to have updated its 
General Plan to comply with the “Complete Streets” Act of 2008 by January 31, 2015, the 
deadline for the next round (5th Cycle) of Housing Element updates for the Bay Area.  The 
City intends to update the General Plan to comply with the Complete Streets 
requirements as part of the General Plan update, but the work would not be completed in 
time.  Staff is in the process of exploring alternative ways to comply, lobbying to extend 
the deadline for cities that are in progress, or exploring alternative work plans to pursue 
the Complete Streets amendment prior to and discreet from the other General Plan 
update.  Staff will keep the Council apprised of the situation as necessary. 
 

PAGE 81



Staff Report #: 14-028  

IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 

The proposed work program would require both staff resources dedicated to the project, 
as well consultant services.  The Council has budgeted $2,000,000 for Fiscal Year 
2013-14 for the General Plan Update for consultant assistance and staff time.  A total of 
3.5 full-time equivalent staff from Community Development and Public Works is 
allocated to the General Plan Update and the Housing Element.  Dependent on the 
scope of the work program, additional funding may be necessary in future years.  
Similar to the El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan, staff will explore options for a 
potential fee that could be imposed as a way to reimburse the City for the expenditure 
related to a specific geographic area. 
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 

The General Plan update process will consider a number of policy issues. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
The General Plan update is subject to CEQA and an EIR will be prepared at the 
appropriate time in the process. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, at least 72 hours prior to the 
meeting, with this agenda item being listed.  In addition, the City sent an email update to 
subscribers of the General Plan Update project pages.  This page will provide up-to-
date information about the project, allowing interested parties to stay informed of its 
progress and allow users to sign up for automatic email bulletins, notifying them when 
content is updated or meetings are scheduled. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Circulation Map 
 

B. Proposed M-2 Area Plan Boundary Map   
 

C. Draft Planning Commission Summary   
 

D. M-2 Property Owner Summary 
 

E. M-2 Building Sizes (Gross Square Footage per Property) 
 

Report Prepared by: 
Justin Murphy 
Development Services Manager 
 
Report Reviewed by: 
Arlinda Heineck 
Community Development Director 

PAGE 82



Æb

Æb

SA
N

TA
 

C
LA

R
A 

AV
E

ROSA

D
RMONTE

CAMBRIDGE AVE

ROBLE AVE

ENCINAL  AVE

MENLO AVE

C
R

AN
E

 S
T

IVY DR

CHRYSLER

DR

H
AVEN

 AVE

£¤ 101

JU
N

IP
ER

O
 S

E
R

R
A

BL
VD

§̈¦280

EDISON W
Y5TH AVE

CLARKE AVE

SANTA CRUZ AVE

OAKDELL DR

U
N

IV
E

R
S

IT
Y 

D
R

E
L

C
A

M
IN

O
R

E
A

L
UNIVERSITY AVE

W SELBY LN LN

U
N

IV
E

R
SI

TY
 

D
R

ALMENDRAL AVE

WILLOW RD

C
O

LEM
A

N
 AV

E

O
LI

V
E

 S
T

BAY RD

STOCKBRIDGE AVE

M
ID

D
LE

FI
E

LD
 R

D

KAVANAUGH
DR

MENALTO AVE

PULGAS AVE

MARSH RD

OAK GROVE AVE

VALPARAISO AVE

RINGWOOD AVE

MIDDLE AVE

AVY AVE

SA
N

TA
CRUZ

AV
E

VALPARAISO AVE
RUNNYM

EDE ST
S

H
A

RO
N

RD

FAIR OAKS LN

WATKINS AVE

MARSH RD

O
'BR

IEN

DR

ATHERTON AVE

FAIR
 O

AKS
 AVE

BAY
R

D

E
L

C
A

M
IN

O
R

E
A

L

N
EW

B
R

ID
G

E ST

HAMILTON AVE

AVY AVE
AVY AVE

D
U

R
H

AM
 ST

WALSH RD

EUCLID AVE

OAK GROVE AVE

C
O

N
S

TITU
TIO

N
D

R

N
 L

E
M

O
N

 A
V

E

GLENWOOD AVE

CHIL
CO

ST

PALMER LN

RAVENSWOOD AVE

WALNUT AVE

E
L 

C
A

M
IN

O
 R

E
A

L

B
OHANNON DR

SAND
HILL RD

ALPINE RD

E O
'KEEFE ST

UNIV
ER

SI
TY

AV
E

SELBY LN

S
E

LB
Y

 LN

M
ID

D
LE

FI
E

LD
 R

D

SH
A

RO
N

PARK
DR

C
HILCO

ST

A
LA

M
E

D
A

D
E

L A
S

P
U

LG
A

S

O'CONNOR ST

M
ID

D
LE

FI
E

LD
 R

D

LA
U

R
E

L 
S

T

G
ILBERT AVE

O
'C

O
N

N
O

R
 ST

E
LE

N
A AV

E

SCOTT
DR

WILLOW  RDAL
M

A 
ST

EL
 C

AM
IN

O
 R

EA
L

C
O

TT
O

N
 S

T

±

0 2,000 4,000 6,0001,000
Feet

City of Menlo Park Circulation Map

Legend
Freeway / Expressway

Primary Arterial

Minor Arterial

Collector

Local

Roads Outside City Limits

City Limits

Sphere Of Influence

Adjacent Cities

Æb Caltrain Station

Prepared: Augustl 22, 2013
City of Menlo Park GIS Planning Divisision

Town of Atherton

Town of 
Woodside

County

City of
East Palo Alto

City of
Redwood City

County

City of Palo Alto

County

O
R

A
N

G
E 

AV
E

Town of Atherton

ATTACHMENT A

PAGE 83

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 84



REDWOOD CITY

ATHERTON
EAST PALO ALTO

San Francisco Bay 

UNINCORPORATED
SAN MATEO COUNTY

BAY

M
A

R
SH

US HIGHWAY 101

STA
TE H

IG
HW

AY 84

U
N

IV
E

R
S

IT
Y

PIERCE

CHILCO

O'BRIEN

15
TH

SE
VI

ER

NEWBRIDGE

17
TH

M
A

D
ER

A
C

AR
LT

O
N

CATALPA

VAN BUREN

HAVEN

ALLEY

JA
M

ES

R
IN

G
W

O
O

D

18
TH

PAGE

IR
VI

NG

G
LE

N

M
E

N
A

LT
O

IVY

SCOTT

EDGE

CONSTITUTION

GREENOAKS

ROLISON
HOOVER

H
ILL

ALBERNI

H
O

LL
YB

U
R

N
E

16
TH

COLBY

BOHANNON

HAWTHORNE

JE
R

VI
S

C
O

O
LE

Y

W
IN

D
ER

M
ER

E

P
O

P
LA

R

R
A

LM
A

R

G
LO

R
IA

LINDEN

BAYSHORE

KAVANAUGH

A
D

D
IS

O
N

LA
U

R
EL

TERMINAL

LA
BU

RN
UM

LORELEI

BE
RK

EL
EY

O
A

K
W

O
O

D

PRIVATE

SO
N

O
M

A

H
ED

G
E

FREDRICK

O
A

K 
G

R
O

V
E

JEFFERSON

LUPIN

ADAMS

W
IL

LO
W

MARKET

C
H

RY
SL

ER

D
U

M
B

A
R

TO
N

MAGNOLIA

ROSEW
OOD SA

R
AT

O
G

A

PE
R

IM
E

TE
R

M
O

D
O

C

C
AM

PB
EL

L

HOLLAND

FL
O

O
D

O
A

KL
AN

D

W
ES

TM
IN

ST
ER

FLORENCE

E
U

C
LI

DTOYON

PE
G

G
Y

WEEKS

HEATHER

FR
O

N
TA

G
E

IRIS

HAIGHT

URSULA

B
AY

LO
R

ENCINO

PA
LO

 V
E

R
D

E

DE
O

DO
RA

D
EL

 N
O

R
TE

AL
M

AN
O

R

INDEPENDENCE

CALLIE

MIDDLEFIELD C
A

P
IT

O
L

GARDEN

E
M

M
E

TT

14TH

TE
H

AM
A

PURDUE

M
ELLO

HAMILTON

PARK

B
R

A
D

LE
Y

XA
VI

ER

PARKWOOD

W
AY

N
E

TI
M

O
TH

Y

H
A

ZE
LW

O
O

D

AC
AC

IA

PLU
M

AS

DUNSMUIR

TULANE

LO
W

ERY

JU
N

IP
ER

A
N

N
A

P
O

LI
S

LI
LA

C

MICHIGAN

ACORN

SANDLEWOOD

SCHEMBRI

TH
ER

ES
A

FA
R

R
IN

G
TO

N

R
EC

R
EA

TI
O

N

HOWARD

LANE

MANZANITA

OAKHURST

SACRAMENTO

H
EN

D
ER

SO
N

K
E

LL
Y

AV
E

LA
R

W
AR

EH
O

U
SE

M
O

S
SW

O
O

D

PLAZA

CASEY

RUNNYMEDE

R
O

B
IN

AT
H

LO
N

E

COMMONWEALTH

H
A

C
K

E
R

BAY

US HIGHWAY 101

ALM
AN

O
R

ALLEY

17TH

H
EN

D
ER

SO
N

BE
R

KE
LE

Y

BAY

W
IN

D
ER

M
ER

E

GARDEN

AL
LE

Y

US HIGHWAY 101

HEATHER

R
A

LM
A

R

P
O

P
LA

R

OAKWOOD

PR
IV

AT
E

WEEKS

FR
O

N
TA

G
E

SE
VI

ER

18
TH

H
O

LL
YB

U
R

N
E

M
A

R
SH

15TH

AL
LE

Y

LA
U

R
E

L

AL
LE

YIVY

W
IL

LO
W

W
IL

LO
W

D
EL

 N
O

R
TE

0 1,000 2,000500
Feet ¯

M-2 Planning Area

BOHANNON 
EAST

FACEBOOK

HAVEN

BOHANNON 
WEST

FACEBOOK

PROLOGIS

MENLO BUSINESS PARK

O'BRIEN DRIVE

£¤101

£¤101

TE

   M2 Planning Area

   City Limits

R2                Low Density

R4S(AHO)   High Density, Special, Affordable Housing Overlay

C2S             Neighborhood Commercial, Special

C4          General Commercial

C4(X)     General Commercial, Conditional

M2          General Industrial

M2(X) General Industrial, Conditional

M3(X) Commercial Business Park

PAGE 85

vmalathong
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT B

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 86



 

   

 
 

DRAFT 
PLANNING COMMISSION SUMMARY 

of Agenda Item E1 
 

Regular Meeting 
January 27, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. 

City Council Chambers 
701 Laurel Street, Menlo Park, CA  94025 

 

 
 
E1. General Plan Update/City of Menlo Park:  Overview of the Proposed General Plan Update and 

Discuss and Potentially Provide Comments to the City Council on the Scope of Work. 
 
The Commission listened to the staff presentation, accepted public comment from one speaker, 
asked questions, and provided comments including the following: 
 

 Include the Lorelei Manor and Suburban Park neighborhoods in the targeted outreach 
similar to the Belle Haven neighborhood. 

 Articulate the City’s vision for the use of the Dumbarton Rail Corridor. 
 Clarify the term “Complete Streets”, clarify whether it is already embodied in the existing 

General Plan, and clarify whether it is a given for inclusion as part of the Update. 
 Examine the regional market trends and economic pressures on the M-2 Area and be clear 

about whether the City intends to change the zoning to be less restrictive (e.g., requiring 
fewer conditional use permits). 

 Focus on what it is the City is attempting to accomplish through a potential change to the 
Roadway Classification System and not simply renaming streets. 

 Consider the comments of the public speaker related to sustainable policies; connections 
with recreational opportunities (e.g., Bay Trail) and regional improvement plans (e.g., Salt 
Pond Restoration, SAFER Bay); and sea level rise. 

 Draw a more direct connection between the relationship of impacts and benefits, with an 
emphasis on real benefits clearly outweighing impacts. 

 Investigate a people mover system or other innovative transportation technology. 
 Explore the introduction of other uses in the M-2 Area in order to reduce the potential 

number of new trips. 
 Avoid introducing new residential uses in the M-2 Area that would be subject to flooding. 
 Create rules that align with categorical exemptions from the California Environmental 

Quality Act (CEQA) in order to achieve streamlining. 
 Clarify early in the process if the City’s goal is to pursue enhancements to the economic 

development potential of the M-2 area so that subsequent decisions align with that goal. 
 Consider community and civic aesthetics in various City decisions related to public spaces 

and private property. 
 Explore self-mitigation of environmental impacts as a concept. 
 Seek out opportunities for pilot projects or testing ideas during the General Plan Update 

process. 
 Pursue new ways to reach out and communicate with people, especially those that do not 

attend traditional meetings. 
 
The Commission also discussed the topic of residential design guidelines.  Individual 
Commissioners expressed varying opinions about whether or not residential design guidelines 
should be considered as part of this phase of the General Plan Update, but at a minimum the 
Commission agreed to continue work by the Commission subcommittee as identified at the August 
19, 2013 meeting.  At that meeting, the Commission discussed the development of residential 

PAGE 87

http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_92/2014/01/23/file_attachments/265048/012714%2B-%2BGeneral%2BPlan%2BScope%2Bof%2BWork__265048.pdf
vmalathong
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT C

vmalathong
Typewritten Text



January 27, 2014 
Summary Page 2 

 

design guidelines for use by staff when working with applicants and the Commission in the review 
of development proposals for single-family homes on substandard lots.  After development of 
guidelines and a period of use, the Commission would consider expanding how the guidelines 
could be used on a broader scale. 
 
Finally, the Commission communicated the following based on general consensus: 
 

 Recommend that the City Council establish guidelines for considering potential project-
specific General Plan Amendments that may come forward during the General Plan Update 
process. 

 Commissioners Kadvany and Riggs would be willing to serve on a consultant selection 
committee if one were formed similar to the El Camino Real/Downtown planning process 
with the understanding that Commissioner Riggs’ term is up at the end of April 2014 and 
would potentially serve as an ex officio member. 

 

PAGE 88



Summary of Feedback from Outreach with Major M-2 Property Owners 
February 2014 

 

 Clarify early in the process whether or not the City is interested in intensification of 
development above the current General Plan standards as an incentive for certain 
types of uses and benefits to the City. 

 Differentiate review processes based on project types and increase the thresholds 
for use permit reviews.  For example, differentiate between existing buildings and 
new buildings.  Increase the threshold size from 10,000 square feet to 25,000 
square feet or 50,000 square feet as the trigger for review. 

 Allow greater flexibility for a building to evolve over time and change use, 
especially for buildings under a certain floor area threshold.  (This flexibility would 
assist with incubator/co-working spaces). 

 Narrow the universe of projects that require Environmental Impact Reports (EIRs). 
 Use parking as a tool for regulating the intensity of the use of a site (consideration 

of minimum and maximum requirement, on-street parking restrictions, etc.) 
 Provide avenues for flexibility through “planned development” zoning. 
 Study the regional pipeline of development between Highway 92 in San Mateo and 

Highway 85 in Mountain View. 
 Continue to pursue a potential transit station near the intersection of Willow Road 

and the Dumbarton Rail Right-of-Way near Hamilton Avenue and explore 
alternative uses of the rail corridor for transportation and recreational purposes. 

 Explore the possibility of increased building heights under existing floor area ratios 
(FARs) provided there is adequate separation from single-family residential uses. 

 Ensure that the process is structured for success in terms of roles for property 
owners, business owners, residents, other stakeholders, staff, and consultants. 

 Some properties are better suited for certain uses based on location for reasons of 
visibility and pass-by trips along a high volume roadway, proximity to the freeway 
interchange or potential transit station, separation from single-family residential, 
and compatibility with existing land use patterns. 

 Opportunities for collaboration and cooperation across various property owners in 
terms of transportation solutions should be explored. 

 Pursue opportunities to improve bicycle and pedestrian amenities and safety. 
 Retail services are important to employees, as well as nearby residents, but the 

key is financial feasibility. 
 High density residential, as part of mixed-use developments in certain locations, 

may be attractive to meeting demand for housing for the local workforce. 
 Recognize the intellectual property generated by Stanford University and the fact 

that many company executives reside in Menlo Park or immediately surrounding 
communities. 

 Consider ways of granting FAR bonuses in exchange for certain commitments that 
would benefit the City. 

 Study the trip equivalent concept and ways of creating incentives for robust 
Transportation Demand Management (TDM) programs. 

 Offices are a complimentary use to other uses such as life sciences in terms of the 
need for financial, legal, marketing and administrative support functions. 

 Explore the concept of Transfer of Development Rights within the M-2 area. 

PAGE 89

vmalathong
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT D

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 90



San Francisco Bay 

0

1,189,929

1,036,000

0

433,656

217,770

0

94,320

54,570
144,787

152,067

136,320

110,019

81,000

0

100,000

71,000

50,267

45,000

0

50,000
50,000

60,748

53,888

50,000

38,500

59,358

43,778

30,240

37,680

33,600

26,400

21,350

0

30,240

24,000

0

24,816

35,324

28,549

19,720

0

23,400

23,450

18,000

31,680

35,125

16,620

21,000

20,700

18,352

32,870

20,500

18,000

20,000

32,000

12,700

17,170

12,100

13,800

12,400

12,000

37,428

10,667

12,560

13,600

210,000

10,000

0

14,000

0
00 017,828

12,800
12,000

12,000

13,3000

122,974

24,340

0

O'BRIEN

CHILCO

U
N

IV
E

R
S

IT
Y

STA
TE H

IG
HW

AY 84

SE
VI

ER

PIERCE

M
A

D
ER

A

W
IL

LO
W

C
AR

LT
O

N

NEWBRIDGE

IVY

H
ILL

ALBERNI

H
O

LL
YB

U
R

N
E

W
IN

D
ER

M
ER

E

VAN BUREN FO
R

D
H

A
M

KAVANAUGH

AL
M

AN
O

R

TERMINAL

US HIGHWAY 101

ADAMS

MARKET

M
O

D
O

C

SO
N

O
M

A

G
LO

R
IA

FR
O

N
TA

G
E

URSULA

B
AY

LO
R

PURDUE

E
M

M
E

TT

TULANE

HAMILTON

H
U

N
TE

R

XA
VI

ER

PLU
M

AS

MICHIGAN

A
N

N
A

P
O

LI
S

R
IN

G
W

O
O

D

H
A

ZE
LW

O
O

D

BIE
BER

BE
R

KE
LE

Y

O
A

KL
AN

D

SANDLEWOOD

FA
R

R
IN

G
TO

N

D
EL

 N
O

R
TE

HOWARD

SA
R

AT
O

G
A

NOTRE DAME

ALLEY

JE
R

VI
S

S
A

G
E

H
EN

D
ER

SO
N

IRIS

M
E

N
A

LT
O

LA
U

R
EL

W
ES

TM
IN

ST
ER

TEHAMA

AL
PI

NE

CASEY

H
AZEL

M
E

N
LO

 O
AK

S

PR
IV

AT
E

R
A

LM
A

R

R
O

S
E

M
A

R
Y

H
A

C
K

E
R

G
IN

G
E

R

K
IR

K
W

O
O

D C
LA

R
E

N
C

E

FR
O

N
TA

G
E

AL
LE

Y

C
H

IL
C

O

M
E

N
LO

 O
AK

S

US HIGHWAY 101 RI
NG

W
O

O
D

W
IL

LO
W

IVY

AL
LE

Y

0 640 1,280320
Feet ¯

M-2 Planning Area Gross Square Footage 

Gross Square Footage
Less than 25,000

25,000 to 49,999

50,000 to 74,999

75,000 to 99,999

100,000 or Greater

Building Footprints

M2 Planning Area

City Limits

ATTACHMENT E

PAGE 91

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text



REDWOOD CITY

193,758

1,189,929

0

210,000

0

165,000

128,614

0

0

122,974

121,960

90,000

150,000

85,500

0

67,845

105,000

0

67,050

0

58,000

0

53,318

44,723

67,161

67,017

41,488

40,000

21,161

43,000

48,228

25,200

31,680

36,387

41,300

6,500

41,284

47,434

31,168

31,680

25,620

38,310

30,425

0

33,936

20,880

33,036

24,340

23,400

29,985

29,520

30,783

27,560

26,600

28,032

24,311

19,890

30,000

31,892

24,080

22,700

15,197

14,000

17,352

13,190

23,732

10,800

20,422

20,128

11,000

23,880

15,376

25,148

34,346

21,250

17,600

12,800

22,500

24,000
16,492

11,333

17,890

11,616

14,959

22,050

16,681

24,084

16,009

15,360

13,840
20,649

10,000

12,052

15,000

2,370

13,600

12,258

11,250

14,000

6,000

15,600

15,000

12,697

11,646

10,329

62,300

0

17,60012,600 5,000

1,000
M

A
R

SH

HAVEN

15
TH

US HIGHWAY 101

ALLEY

17
TH

PAGE

ROLISON

HOOVER

SCOTT

CONSTITUTION

HEDGE

16
TH

BO
H

AN
N

O
N

BAY

R
O

SE

C
H

IL
C

O

14TH

LORELEI

18
TH

PRIVATE

JEFFERSON

C
H

RY
SL

ER

FLORENCE

C
AM

PB
EL

L

STATE HIGHWAY 84

INDEPENDENCE

WAYNE

PE
G

G
Y

OAKHURST

TERMINAL

SPRING

TI
M

O
TH

Y

AN
N

ET
TE

D
EL

 N
O

R
TE

TH
ER

ES
A

ST
 M

AR
Y'

S

H
AR

M
O

N

FRIENDLY

DELMAR

COMMONWEALTH

M
A

R
SH

US HIGHWAY 101

US HIGHWAY 101

H
AV

E
N

US HIGHWAY 101

BAY

0 530 1,060265
Feet ¯

M-2 Planning Area Gross Square Footage 

Gross Square Footage
Less than 25,000

25,000 to 49,999

50,000 to 74,999

75,000 to 99,999

100,000 or Greater

Building Footprints

M2 Planning Area

City Limits
PAGE 92



 

 
 

         Office of Economic Development 

                                                                                                              Quarterly Update Q1 2014  

 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

IN THIS ISSUE: 

  The Economic Haps 'Round                                      
Town 

   Economic Forecast: Sunny with 
a    Slight Chance of Rain 

   Sales Tax Report 

   Vacancy Report 

   Economic Development 
Study  Session 
 
  

February 2014 

The Economic Haps 'Round Town 

  

Tarlton's Capital Infusion 

Once the home of Silicon Valley giant Cisco 
Systems, Tarlton Properties Inc.’s Menlo Business 
Park has played an integral role in the 
development of Menlo Park’s economy.  Now one 
of the premier locations for life sciences, Tarlton 
Properties continues to be critical for Menlo Park, 
housing a number of our top producing sales tax 
generators.  According to a recent article in the 
Silicon Valley Business Journal, written by Nathan 
Donato-Weinstein, the future of Menlo Business 
Park is bright thanks in part to an investment from 
Principal Real Estate Investors.  The article 
references John Tarlton’s rare understanding of 
the needs of life sciences companies and rarer 
ability to meet those needs. 

                                                                    

One of Tarlton Inc.'s properties in Menlo Park, located at    
1490 O'Brien Drive Photo courtesy of Tarlton Properties Inc. 

  

                       —————————————————————————————— 
                 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM I-1

PAGE 93

http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.tarlton.com%2Fabout-tpi.html
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.bizjournals.com%2Fsanjose%2Fprint-edition%2F2014%2F01%2F31%2Fmenlo-business-park-poised-for-growth.html%3Fs%3Dprint


RESOURCES: 

Menlo Park Office of Economic 
Development 

Menlo Park Community Development 

Menlo Park Chamber of Commerce 

Silicon Valley Economic Development 
Alliance (SVEDA) 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

TOP 25 SALES TAX 
GENERATORS: 

 Acclarent 
 Automatic Rain Company 
 Beltramos Wine & Liquor 
 Chevron Service Stations 
 Chevron Service Stations 
 CVS Pharmacy 
 DM Figley Company 
 Draegers Supermarkets 
 Flegel's Home Furnishings 
 Forte Bio 
 OfficeMax 
 Pacific Biosciences 
 Safeway Stores 
 Sand Hill Resort & Hotel 
 Sharon Heights Golf Country 

Club 
 Shell Service Stations 
 Shell Service Stations 
 Shell Service Stations 
 Staples Office Superstore 
 Stanford Park Hotel and 

Restaurant 
 Tesla Motors 
 Trader Joe's 
 Triplepoint Capital 
 Walgreen's Drug Stores 
 Willow Cove Service Stations 

Off The Grid 

2014 jumped off to a tasty start with the Planning Commission’s approval of a proposal from food 
truck event company, Off The Grid (OTG).  OTG organizes food truck markets that have become a 
huge draw for cities around the Bay Area and a bellwether of how hip your town is.  OTG will be 
kicking off their weekly Wednesday evening markets on February 19th.  They told the Planning 
Commission that they expect 500-1000 patrons, and will partner with existing downtown retailers 
to introduce their target demographic to all the other great offerings in Menlo Park.    

                                     
            OTG food truck market at Fort Mason Center in San Francisco.  Photo courtesy of Off The Grid 

  

                —————————————————————————————— 

  

Borrone Market Bar 

Speaking of great offerings, the much anticipated Borrone 
Market Bar will be opening in in the next few weeks.  Now 
you will be able to stop after work and bring home an order 
of your favorite Borrone delights.  According to their 
promotional material, the Market Bar, located right next to 
the Café, will “feature a rotisserie, house-made focaccia, 
full family meals, fresh pasta and pastries for our guests to 
take to their favorite table.  The “Bar Eatery” side is a 
casual space where you can enjoy a classic Italian cocktail, 
an oyster, a bowl of ravioli, or savory meats while soaking 
in the atmosphere: a little of the old world mixed with a 
dash of the new.”  

  

  

                    —————————————————————————————— 

 BBC 

On February 10, 2014, the Planning 
Commission will review exterior improvements 
associated with a new restaurant at 1090 El 
Camino Real (commonly known as the British 
Bankers Club). Having served as Menlo Park's 
first official City Hall, the original two-story 
commercial building (constructed in 1925) is a 
historically significant structure. The applicant, 
Rob Fischer, is proposing exterior 
improvements as part of the proposed 
restaurant use, which would include removing 
an existing arbor in the plaza shared with Menlo 
Center, relocating the main entry from El 

PAGE 94

http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.menlopark.org%2Fdoing_business.html
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.menlopark.org%2Fdoing_business.html
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.menlopark.org%2Fdepartments%2Fdep_planning.html
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.menloparkchamber.com%2F
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.jointventure.org%2Findex.php%3Foption%3Dcom_content%26view%3Dcategory%26layout%3Dblog%26id%3D8%26Itemid%3D37
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.jointventure.org%2Findex.php%3Foption%3Dcom_content%26view%3Dcategory%26layout%3Dblog%26id%3D8%26Itemid%3D37
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.acclarent.com%2F
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2F63.170.254.82%2Fabout_us%2Fhistory.phtml
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.beltramos.com%2F
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.chevron.com%2F
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.cvs.com%2F
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.dmfigley.com%2F
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.draegers.com%2F
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.flegels.com%2F
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.fortebio.com%2F
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.officemax.com%2F
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.pacificbiosciences.com%2F
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.safeway.com%2FIFL%2FGrocery%2FHome
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.rosewoodhotels.com%2Fen%2Fsandhill%2F
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.sharonheightscc.com%2FClub%2FScripts%2FHome%2Fhome.asp
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.sharonheightscc.com%2FClub%2FScripts%2FHome%2Fhome.asp
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.shell.com%2Fglobal%2Fproducts-services%2Fon-the-road%2Fshell-station-locator.html
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.staples.com%2F
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.stanfordparkhotel.com%2F
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.stanfordparkhotel.com%2F
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.teslamotors.com%2F
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.traderjoes.com%2F
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.triplepointcapital.com%2F
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.google.com%2Fsearch%3Fq%3Dwalgreens%26rls%3Dcom.microsoft%3Aen-us%3AIE-SearchBox%26ie%3DUTF-8%26oe%3DUTF-8%26sourceid%3Die7%26rlz%3D1I7ADRA_enUS345%26safe%3Dactive
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Foffthegridsf.com%2F


  

 

  

VACANCY REPORT: 

Retail real-estate in the Bay Area is 
bursting at the seams to keep pace with 
the region’s strengthening 
economy.  According to Terranomics, 
Menlo Park’s Q4 Retail vacancy remains 
low at 1% compared to 1.3% in Q3 2013 
and 2.7% in Q4 2012.  Menlo Park’s low 
Retail vacancy rate tracks with San 
Mateo County’s Q4 2013 2.7% vacancy 
rate; however, overall growth county-wide 
remains slow due to the lack of large-
scale development.  Most of the regions’ 
vacancy is Class C, resulting in demand 
for new or redeveloped high end product 
as retailers continue to look for free 
standing or mixed use locations.  

  

 

 

Vacancy Date Source: Terranomics and Cassidy/ 
Turley 

 

While Office vacancy in Menlo Park 
currently stands at 11.7%, up from last 
quarter’s 10.9%, this is still well below the 
County’s vacancy rate of 
14.6%.  According to Cassidy/Turley’s Q4 
2013 Office Snapshot, there is 2.1 million 
square feet of existing demand for office 
space in San Mateo County, and 133 

Camino Real to Santa Cruz Avenue, installing a new canopy at the main entry, adding a new 
exterior staircase on the Santa Cruz Avenue frontage, and constructing a new rooftop deck at the 
rear of the existing building. The proposed restaurant would include outdoor seating on the ground 
floor in the plaza, as well as on the rooftop deck. A historic resource evaluation was prepared for 
the project, and the proposed modifications would not have any significant impacts to the 
building’s historic status. The new restaurant is a permitted use and does not require additional 
review after is goes before the Planning Commission. 

  

                    —————————————————————————————— 

  

BFD 

In case you missed Elena Kadvany’s December 27th article in The Almanac about Bradley 
Ogden’s proposal for the former Gambardella's at 1165 Merrill St, Ogden’s Bradley’s Fine Diner 
(BFD) is targeting a spring opening.  The 
article quotes Ogden as saying BFD "will be 
my Midwestern approach to my California 
style of food. Food that is inspired 
throughout my decades of cooking with the 
new veil of my son Bryan and the new age 
techniques and everything from wood 
burning suckling pig cassoulet to a whole 
roasted pork rack, to grilled trout, to 
homemade sausages with little stews, 
charcuterie plate with cheese. And there will 
be some fresh pizzas out of the oven to 
great salads and sandwiches, especially at 
lunchtime. Really fresh, fresh approach and 
everything from scratch and made in-house. We want a bar crowd, you know oysters, a fun place 
to hang out." 

If you haven’t already started following Peninsula Foodist, I recommend you do.  It will keep you in 
the know about all of the gourmet fare around town. 

Sales Tax Report 

 
Menlo Park’s most recent sales tax collection reports continue to provide cautious optimism that 
the local economy is stabilizing.  As seen in the Annualized Change in Sales Tax Cash Receipts 
figure below, sales tax collections for Q3 of 2013 are nearly 20% higher than Q3 for 2012; 
however, this increase is attributed entirely to non-recurring taxable sales. When these non-
recurring taxable sales are removed from the equation, Menlo Park’s sales tax collection remains 
relatively even compared to Q2 2013. 

 

                                                        Figure courtesy of Muni Services 

PAGE 95

http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.terranomics.com%2F
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.cassidyturley.com%2Fabout-us%2Fmarkets%2Fnorthern-california
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.cassidyturley.com%2Fabout-us%2Fmarkets%2Fnorthern-california
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.almanacnews.com%2Fblogs%2Fp%2F2013%2F12%2F27%2Fbradley-ogdens-menlo-park-restaurant-delayed-aiming-for-spring-2014-opening
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.almanacnews.com%2Fblogs%2Fb%2Fpeninsula-foodist%3Fi%3D12
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.muniservices.com%2F


potential tenants in the 
marketplace.   Many of these tenants are 
looking for downtown, creative spaces 
under 5,000 square feet and located near 
public transit.  

Menlo Park’s R&D market ended the year 
with a vacancy rate of 11.1%, which 
though up from Q3’s 9.0%, is right on 
track with the County’s 11.0%. Overall, 
the R&D market is strong in San Mateo 
County. This past year the county saw 
the largest total occupancy growth since 
2008, while Menlo Park benefited from 
78,000 square feet of positive growth. 

Menlo Park’s Industrial vacancy rate 
lowered slightly to 10.0% in Q4, down 
from 10.7% in Q3. Although this is higher 
than the County’s Q4 5.2% vacancy rate, 
much of it can be attributed to properties 
in the process of being redeveloped. 

 
  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Economic Forecast: Sunny with a Slight Chance of Rain 

  

Sunny 

They say that economic forecasts exist to make weather forecasts look accurate.  That said, 2014 
is predicted to be a big jobs year and if our development activity is any indication, that is true for 
Menlo Park.  With 1 million square feet of employment space in the pipeline and a demand for 
retail space due to our 1.3% vacancy rate, Menlo Park is poised to have a great year.   

According to economic trend reports, Menlo Park is well situated between two of the strongest 
markets in the nation in terms of job growth, development and investment opportunities. According 
to the Urban Land Institute’s (ULI) Emerging Trends in Real Estate 2014 report, for the second 
year in a row San Francisco is the strongest real-estate market, while San Jose ranks 3rd.  This 
strong real-estate market is driven, in part, by job growth in industries such as energy, technology, 
health care, and biological research, which are traditionally magnets for commercial real estate 
investments.   According to the California Association for Local Economic Development (CALED), 
while 2/3rds of California’s markets are experiencing double-digit unemployment rates, the 
strongest job growth in the state is in the San Francisco Bay Area. 

  

                     

                                                  Signs in Menlo Park (literally) of job growth 

Emerging Trends in Real Estate 2014 identifies meeting the needs of Generation Y (born between 
1979 and 1995) as the single most dominant trend now, and for years to come.  Gen Y is the most 
urban, transient and multi-cultural generation. They prefer less living/working space, more 
collaborative “we and me” space, and greater access to multi-modal transportation and recreation. 
All sectors of the real-estate market are adapting to meet the needs of Gen Y. Retailers are rolling 
out smaller, more urban locations to efficiently serve city dwellers. Multi-family real-estate is 
providing less space per unit, and increasing common space.  Office and R&D space is being 
reconfigured for more collaboration and smaller square footage per worker.  Even Industrial real-
estate is being driven by Gen Y, as customer increasingly demand shorter delivery time for online 
retail.   

PAGE 96

http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fsf.uli.org%2F
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fuli.org%2Fresearch%2Fcenters-initiatives%2Fcenter-for-capital-markets%2Femerging-trends-in-real-estate%2F
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Feconomicdevelopment.caled.org%2F


  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                 

Tenant improvements underway at 3573 Haven Ave. to create smaller, collaborative R&D suites. For more information 
contact Greg DeLong at CBRE 

  

                   

                   

Construction underway at Anton Menlo, a 400 unit multi-family housing development geared towards Gen Y. The 
project includes collaborative spaces such as a pool, roof top deck, yoga room and iCafe. For more information read 

the Silicon Valley Business Journal's recent article on the project.  

But during the Emerging Trends in Real Estate 2014 Silicon Valley Conference, a panel of the 
Silicon Valley’s leading real-estate executives noted, it all boils down to transportation and 
affordability. Can the Silicon Valley provide jobs, affordable housing and amenities within ½ mile of 
mass transit, and will Gen Y be able to afford the lifestyle they are demanding?  The answer to 
these questions will determine the sustainability of Gen Y’s influence over the market for years to 
come. 

PAGE 97

http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.cbre.us%2Fo%2Fpaloalto%2Fpeople%2Fgregory-s-delong%2Fpages%2Foverview.aspx
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.bizjournals.com%2Fsanjose%2Fprint-edition%2F2014%2F01%2F31%2Fmenlo-business-park-poised-for-growth.html


CONTACT US: 

Jim Cogan 

Economic Development Manager 

Phone: (650) 330-6614 

Email: jccogan@menlopark.org 

Web: 
http://www.menlopark.org/doing_business
.html 

  

 

  Follow  the City of Menlo Park  on 
Twitter 

  Send OED an Email 

  

  
 

 

Slight Chance of Rain 

A number of national retailers posted lower than expected numbers for the 4th quarter of 2013.  In 
addition, the Institute for Supply Management Index (ISM) dropped 5.2 points to 51.3 in January 
from 56.5 in December.  

These indicators have inspired twice as many opinions as there are experts to offer them.   But 
generally speaking, January is always soft, there was a lot of snow back East and I think Jupiter 
was in opposition.  We all know how that can affect spending.   The good news is that ISM levels 
higher than 50 signal expansion, while levels below 50 signal contraction.  So you can remain 
cautiously optimistic and, please, shop Menlo Park.   

  

Economic Development Study Session 

There is a City Council Economic Development Study Session scheduled for February 25th.  The 
City Council has prioritized Economic Development efforts to ensure that the City is actively 
attracting and seeking to retain businesses in Menlo Park.  The Council will be reviewing an 
economic trends and opportunities report and providing staff with input on a range of topics all 
geared toward helping Menlo Park be a place where successful businesses locate and thrive. 

If you are interested in providing input on the an economic trends and opportunities report please 
fill out a short survey at www.menloparkbizsurvey.com  and as always please feel free to call me 
at (650)330-6614 or email me at JCCogan@menlopark.org. 
 

 

 

PAGE 98

mailto:jccogan@menlopark.org
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.menlopark.org%2Fdoing_business.html
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.menlopark.org%2Fdoing_business.html
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2FCityofMenloPark
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2FCityofMenloPark
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2FCityofMenloPark
https://app.icontact.com/icp/core/message/preview/content/80011
http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=&msgid=80011&act=11111&c=1381615&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.menloparkbizsurvey.com


  

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES DEPARTMENT   
  

 

 Council Meeting Date: February 11, 2014 

 Staff Report #: 14-023 
 

 Agenda Item #: I-2 
 
INFORMATIONAL ITEM: Quarterly Financial Review of General Fund 

Operations as of December 31, 2013 
 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
This is an informational item and does not require Council action.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 

In order to provide timely information to Council and the public, the City’s Finance 
Department prepares a quarterly report on General Fund operations.  The report 
provides a review of General Fund revenues and expenditures for the most recently 
completed quarter of the current fiscal year.  These results are presented alongside 
results from the same time period for the previous year, with material differences being 
explained in the appropriate section of the staff report.  
 
ANALYSIS 
 

Overview 
The report itself, which is included as Attachment A, was developed to apprise Council 
of the year-to-date status of the General Fund.  Information included in this staff report 
is intended to highlight some of the critical elements of Attachment A and supplement 
that information with explanations of significant differences between second quarter 
results from fiscal years 2013-14 and 2012-13. 
 
It is important to note that the budget-to-actual comparisons shown reflect actual 
transactions through the second quarter of each year as compared to the adjusted 
budget as it stood on December 31st of each year.  The one major budget revision 
typically recorded in the first quarter of each year is the carry-over of expenditure 
commitments funded in the prior year’s budget, also known as encumbrances.  In the 
current fiscal year, $388,033 in commitments has been carried forward.   
 
In addition, throughout the first two quarters, Council approved revisions to the General 
Fund budget to include license plate readers and surveillance cameras for the Police 
Department, additional funding for non-profit agencies, and additional contract services 
for the many planning and building projects currently underway.  In total, nearly $1.7 
million has been added to the expenditure appropriation this year, including the 

AGENDA ITEM I-2

PAGE 99



Staff Report #: 14-023  

$388,033 in encumbrances from the previous fiscal year.  $1.1 million of this amount 
has been offset by increases to development permitting revenues.  A review of other 
General Fund revenues is currently underway as a part of the preparation for the mid-
year report.  That report will include revised revenue projections, as well as an update 
on the expected year-end position of the General Fund. 
 
To the extent that General Fund operations do not vary greatly from year to year, this 
Budget-to-Actual comparative report provides a relatively simple update on the 
performance of revenues and the level of expenditures for the fiscal year-to-date. 

 
Revenues 
The table below shows a summary of second quarter budget-to-actual revenues for 
fiscal years 2013-14 and 2012-13: 
 

 
 
Through the second quarter of fiscal year 2013-14, General Fund revenues are $20.6 
million, a 19.7 percent increase over the same time period in 2012-13.  This increase is 
driven predominantly by one-time revenues ($772,000 sale of property proceeds from 
the Hamilton Avenue sale), and increased building activity for various projects within 
Menlo Park such as Anton Menlo, a 394-unit apartment complex, and the Facebook 
West campus. 
 
Property tax receipts, which represent the largest source of General Fund revenue 
source, are up six percent over last fiscal year and are tracking to expectations. This 
category consists of all property tax revenues, including the secured tax, unsecured tax, 
property transfer tax, and supplemental tax.   
 
Sales tax is also above last fiscal year’s amount through December 31st, although due 
to timing of sales tax remittances, this quarter’s report only reflects actual sales activity 
through September.  
   

 2013-14 

Adopted 

Budget 

12/31/2013

 2013-14 

Adjusted 

Budget 

12/31/2013

Actual      

12/31/2013

% of 

Budget

 2012-13  

Adjusted 

Budget  

12/31/2012

Actual      

12/31/2012

% of 

Budget

Property Tax $13,955,000 $13,955,000 $6,519,957 46.72% $13,658,000 $6,152,172 45.04%

Sales Tax 6,331,400 6,331,400 2,864,126 45.24% 6,330,000 2,685,305 42.42%

Transient Occupancy Tax 3,743,000 3,743,000 1,057,430 28.25% 3,326,000 805,004 24.20%

Utility Users' Tax 1,184,620 1,184,620 442,915 37.39% 1,180,500 389,873 33.03%

Franchise Fees 1,812,300 1,812,300 256,712 14.16% 1,873,500 321,663 17.17%

Charges for Services 7,795,222 7,795,222 3,854,256 49.44% 6,370,600 3,620,466 56.83%

Licenses and Permits 4,459,465 5,559,465 3,316,477 59.65% 4,266,465 2,035,115 47.70%

Interest Income 410,000 410,000 431,121 105.15% 390,000 134,278 34.43%

Rental Income 367,712 367,712 44,197 12.02% 380,018 43,530 11.45%

Intergovernmental Revenue 741,704 794,288 341,095 42.94% 911,263 324,956 35.66%

Fines & Forfeitures 1,319,980 1,319,980 490,789 37.18% 1,085,200 496,024 45.71%

Operating Transfers In/ Other Revenue 429,444 429,444 986,992 229.83% 418,123 208,585 49.89%

Total Revenues: $42,549,847 $43,702,431 $20,606,067 47.15% $40,189,669 $17,216,971 42.84%

PAGE 100



Staff Report #: 14-023  

Transient occupancy tax (TOT) receipts reflected in this report are for the first quarter 
only (September 30, 2013), since TOT is not paid to the City until the month following 
the close of each quarter (quarter ending December 31, 2013 is received at the end 
January). Overall, TOT revenues are up 31 percent over the same period from last 
fiscal year.  This is largely the result of the 20 percent increase in the TOT rate (10 
percent to 12 percent effective January 1, 2013), as well as strong occupancy and room 
rates, reflecting the continued improvement in the economy.   
 
Charges for services are up 6.5 percent over the second quarter of fiscal year 2012-13, 
which was expected based on the high level activity in the Community Services.  The 
majority of the $234,000 increase is the result of recreation fee revenues (up $144,000), 
facility rentals (up $62,000), and child care fees (up $27,000).   
 
License and permit revenues are up significantly, 63 percent, over the second quarter of 
fiscal year 2012-13. This increase is driven by building permits, which are up over 
$1,285,000.  These increased revenues are largely offset by increased expenditures in 
this area. 
 
While interest income appears to be up significantly in the second quarter, this is due to 
an adjustment to reverse the prior year’s “unrealized loss” required for fiscal year-end 
reporting.  As of December 31, 2013, the annualized rate of return for the City’s portfolio 
is 0.52 percent, net of fees.  This is a 0.03 percent increase from same period last year.  
Additional information on the City’s investment portfolio is included in staff report #14-
022, which is also on the February 11, 2014 Council agenda. 
 
The final item of note is in the Operating Transfers In/Other Revenue category.  
Revenues are up significantly in this area due to the City receiving its share of the sale 
proceeds ($772,000) from the sale of the Hamilton Avenue property.  Excluding that 
revenue, this category is tracking closely to the second quarter of the previous fiscal 
year. 
 
Expenditures 
As expected, through the second quarter General Fund operating expenditures are up 
$457,000, or 2.5 percent, over the previous year.  A year-over-year increase in total 
expenditures was budgeted, as the current year’s operating budget as of the second 
quarter is 9.5 percent above the previous year’s operating budget.  In fact, in 
comparison to last fiscal year, expenditures are tracking slightly lower to budget this 
year (41.9% vs. 44.7%) through the second quarter.  It is important to note, however, 
that while total expenditures for the current year are only 41.9 percent of budget 
(through 50% of the fiscal year), due to the lag in when payroll expenditures get 
incorporated into the City’s general ledger, second quarter results shown in the table 
below only include payroll through mid-December.  This is the case for both fiscal years, 
so the year-over-year comparison is still applicable.    
 

PAGE 101



Staff Report #: 14-023  

 
 
As demonstrated in the table above, four departments (Police, Public Works, 
Community Development and Administrative Services) are tracking lower to budget in 
comparison to fiscal year 2012-13.  Based on total expenditures through the second 
quarter, total General Fund operating expenditures are on track to be within budgeted 
amounts for the fiscal year. 
 
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 

There is no impact on City resources. 
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
The quarterly budget-to-actual report is presented to facilitate better understanding of 
General Fund operations and the overall state of the City’s current fiscal affairs by the 
public and the Council.    
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
This report is not subject to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this agenda item being 
listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Comparative General Fund Budget-to-Actual Report as of December 31, 
2013 

   
Report prepared by: 
Drew Corbett 
Finance Director 

 2013-14 

Adopted 

Budget 

12/31/2013

 2013-14 

Adjusted 

Budget 

12/31/2013

Actual      

12/31/2013

% of 

Budget

 2012-13  

Adjusted 

Budget  

12/31/2012

Actual      

12/31/2012

% of 

Budget

Police 14,860,547 15,065,189 6,880,296 45.67% 14,707,833 6,797,605 46.22%

Public Works 5,550,916 5,566,311 2,424,622 43.56% 5,311,333 2,429,258 45.74%

Community Services 7,309,436 7,334,119 3,284,589 44.79% 7,080,558 3,073,648 43.41%

Library 2,109,769 2,109,769 1,033,759 49.00% 2,042,465 971,539 47.57%

Community Development 3,369,769 4,614,041 1,305,165 28.29% 2,987,249 1,144,697 38.32%

Administrative Services 6,682,574 6,784,609 2,255,656 33.25% 5,608,113 2,355,063 41.99%

Operating Transfers Out 2,464,328 2,554,600 1,277,300 50.00% 2,464,328 1,232,164 50.00%

Total Expenditures: $42,347,339 $44,028,638 $18,461,387 41.93% $40,201,879 $18,003,974 44.78%

PAGE 102



A B C D E (E-C)/C G H (H-G)/G G/C G/D H/E

 Adjusted 

Budget as of 

6/30/13

Audited 

Actual           

FY 2012-13 

 2012-13  

Budget  

12/31/2012

 2013-14 

Budget 

12/31/2013

% Budget 

Change 12/31/13 

to Audited 

Actual FY 12-13

Actual     YTD 

12/31/2012

Actual     

YTD 

12/31/2013

%               

Actual        

Change   

% of Actual YTD 

12/31/2012 to 

Audited Actual 

FY 12-13

%                             

Actual-to-

Budget 

12/31/2012

%                            

Actual-to-

Budget 

12/31/2013 Notes 

Property Tax $13,853,000 $15,731,889 $13,658,000 $13,955,000 -11.29% $6,152,172 $6,519,957 5.98% 39.11% 45.04% 46.72%

Sales Tax 6,280,000 6,043,870 6,330,000 6,331,400 4.76% 2,685,305 2,864,126 6.66% 44.43% 42.42% 45.24%

Transient Occupancy Tax 3,326,000 3,468,256 3,326,000 3,743,000 7.92% 805,004 1,057,430 31.36% 23.21% 24.20% 28.25%

Utility Users' Tax 1,165,499 1,095,256 1,180,500 1,184,620 8.16% 389,873 442,915 13.60% 35.60% 33.03% 37.39%

Franchise Fees 1,873,500 1,765,216 1,873,500 1,812,300 2.67% 321,663 256,712 -20.19% 18.22% 17.17% 14.16% (1)

Charges for Services 7,080,246 7,088,405 6,370,600 7,795,222 9.97% 3,620,466 3,854,256 6.46% 51.08% 56.83% 49.44%

Licenses and Permits 4,326,465 4,447,630 4,266,465 5,559,465 25.00% 2,035,115 3,316,477 62.96% 45.76% 47.70% 59.65%

Interest Income 390,000 221,974 390,000 410,000 84.71% 134,278 431,121 221.07% 60.49% 19.44% 105.15%

Rental Income 362,018 346,076 380,018 367,712 6.25% 43,530 44,197 1.53% 12.58% 11.45% 12.02%

Intergovernmental Revenue 838,130 866,288 911,263 794,288 -8.31% 324,956 341,095 4.97% 37.51% 35.66% 42.94%

Fines & Forfeitures 991,400 998,259 1,085,200 1,319,980 32.23% 496,024 490,789 -1.06% 49.69% 45.71% 37.18%

Operating Transfers In/ Other Revenue 420,123 1,178,628 418,123 429,444 -63.56% 208,585 986,992 373.18% 17.70% 49.89% 229.83% (2)

Total Revenues: $40,906,381 $43,251,747 $40,189,669 $43,702,431 1.04% $17,216,971 $20,606,067 19.68% 39.81% 42.84% 47.15%

Police 14,462,753 13,808,138 14,707,833 15,065,189 9.10% 6,797,604 6,880,296 1.22% 49.23% 46.22% 45.67%

Public Works 5,535,335 5,100,295 5,311,333 5,566,311 9.14% 2,429,259 2,424,622 -0.19% 47.63% 45.74% 43.56%

Community Services 7,079,105 6,810,375 7,080,558 7,334,119 7.69% 3,073,648 3,284,589 6.86% 45.13% 43.41% 44.79%

Library 2,042,465 2,011,143 2,042,465 2,109,769 4.90% 971,539 1,033,760 6.40% 48.31% 47.57% 49.00%

Community Development 3,197,249 2,774,032 2,987,249 4,614,041 66.33% 1,144,697 1,305,165 14.02% 41.26% 38.32% 28.29%

Administrative Services 5,898,280 5,314,808 5,608,113 6,784,609 27.65% 2,355,063 2,255,655 -4.22% 44.31% 41.99% 33.25%

Operating Transfers Out 6,252,894 6,404,637 2,464,328 2,554,600 -60.11% 1,232,164 1,277,300 3.66% 19.24% 50.00% 50.00%

Total Expenditures: $44,468,081 $42,223,428 $40,201,879 $44,028,637 4.28% $18,003,974 $18,461,387 2.54% 42.64% 44.78% 41.93%

Preliminary addition/draw on General Fund Reserves ($3,561,700) $1,028,319 ($12,210) ($326,206) ($787,003) $2,144,680

Carry-over encumbrances and Reappropriations from prior 

year subtracted from adjusted budget. 272,551 272,551 388,033

Net addition to/draw on General Fund Reserves ($3,289,149) $260,341 $61,827

Net Operating Revenue ($3,289,149) $260,341 $61,827

NOTES:  

(1) Franchise fees receipts reflect timing issues of when received; prior year first quarter cable franchise fees received in December 2012, have not received first quarter by December 2013.

(2) Operating Transfers In/Other Revenue includes sale of Hamilton Ave property ($772,000).

City of Menlo Park - General Fund                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           

Budget-to-Actual Report, FY 2013-14                                                                                                                                                         

As of December 31, 2013

ATTACHMENT A

PAGE 103



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 104



 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES  DEPARTMENT 
  

 
 Council Meeting Date: February 11, 2014 

 Staff Report #: 14-022 
 

 Agenda Item #: I-3 
 
INFORMATIONAL ITEM: Review of the City’s Investment Portfolio as of 

December 31, 2013 
 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
This is an informational item and does not require Council action. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City’s investment policy requires a quarterly investment report to the Council, which 
includes all financial investments of the City and provides information on the investment 
type, value, and yield for all securities.  The report also provides Council an update on 
the cash balances of the City’s various funds. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Investment Portfolio as of December 31, 2013 
 
Various reports are prepared monthly by Cutwater Asset Management, the City’s 
investment advisory firm, and are attached to this staff report.  The “Recap Of Securities 
Held” confirms that the historical (book) value of the total portfolio at the end of 
December was almost $90.6 million.  The portfolio includes the General Fund, Water 
Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Successor Agency Funds, Capital Projects Fund, and 
funds for debt service obligations.  Funds are invested in accordance with the City 
Council policy on investments using safety, liquidity and yield as selection criteria.  
Approximately $36.7 million (40.5 percent) is invested in the State investment pool, the 
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF).  LAIF is considered a safe investment and it 
provides the liquidity of a money market fund.  Of the remaining $53.9 million, $21.3 
million (23.5 percent) is invested in short-term Federal agency issues (U.S. 
Instrumentality), $2 million (2.2 percent) is in U.S. Treasury securities, $25.5 million 
(28.2 percent) is in medium-term corporate notes, and almost $5.1 million (5.6 percent) 
is in commercial paper.  All the mentioned securities are prudent short-term 
investments, since they generally bear a higher interest rate than LAIF, provide 
investment diversification, and remain secure investment instruments. 
 

AGENDA ITEM I-3

PAGE 105



Staff Report #: 14-022 
 

 

At the end of December, the fair value (market value) of the City’s securities was over 
$156,210 less than the amortized historical cost, which is referred to as an unrealized 
loss.  This is an increase from the end of the previous quarter’s unrealized loss of 
$130,696.  Fair value fluctuates from one period to another depending on the supply 
and demand for bonds and securities at a particular point in time. Therefore, there is 
often a difference between the historical cost (the value at the time of purchase) and the 
fair value (the value of the same security at a specific date), creating an unrealized gain 
or loss.  Since the City’s portfolio is fairly short-term in nature and the City generally 
holds the securities to maturity in order to avoid market risk, the information on the 
unrealized gains or losses is reported in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
but does not represent an actual cash loss to the City. 
 
Current Market Conditions 
 
The U.S. economy continues to grow at a steady pace.  With the partial government 
shutdown in early October, consumer confidence dropped to its lowest level in two 
years, which slowed the growth of the U.S. economy significantly.  However, consumer 
confidence improved over the rest of the quarter with households benefitting from lower 
gasoline prices and higher home values.  The most recent available information shows 
the real Gross Domestic Product (GDP) increased at an annual rate 4.1 percent during 
the third quarter of 2013.  This compares favorably against the 2.5 percent GDP growth 
recorded in the second quarter of the year.  The increase of the GDP during the third 
quarter was due, in part, to increases in private inventory investment, personal 
consumption expenditures, exports, and fixed investments.  
 
The Federal Open Market Committee (FOMC) met in October, December, and January 
to discuss monetary policy.  The U.S. economy saw significant improvement during the 
latter portion the fourth quarter of 2013, with the inflation outlook remaining below 2.5 
percent and the unemployment rate dropping to 6.7 percent.  Encouraged by the 
modest economic recovery, the FOMC has reduced its pace of asset purchases from 
$85 billion per month to $65 billion per month, with the possibility of further measured 
reductions decided upon at future meetings.  However, over the past several months, 
the FOMC still feels it is appropriate for the federal funds rate to remain at the current 
near-zero level.  The FOMC anticipates this rate will continue for a considerable time 
after the unemployment rate reaches the threshold of 6.5 percent.  These actions are 
anticipated to continue to put downward pressure on longer-term interest rates, support 
mortgage markets, and help improve other financial conditions.  The FOMC will 
continue to monitor the market and will discuss appropriate policy actions when it meets 
again beginning on March 18th.  
 
Investment Yield 
 

The annualized rate of return for the City’s portfolio shown on the performance 
summary as of December 31, 2013, prepared by Cutwater, is 0.52 percent, net of fees.  
This rate of return is higher than the rate of the 2-year Treasury-Note (12-month trailing) 

PAGE 106



Staff Report #: 14-022 
 

 

of 0.31 percent and the rate of return earned through LAIF over the past quarter of 0.26 
percent.  
 
Over the fourth quarter of 2013, investment yields increased for short-term and long-
term bonds.  The same is true over the past year as interest rates increased, with only a 
small reduction in rates for short-term securities.  The increase is due to the 
strengthening of the U.S. economy and the decision of the FOMC to taper its monthly 
asset purchase.  While investment opportunities in long-term Treasuries have improved 
compared to last year, they continue to be unattractive compared to agency securities 
and corporate bonds.   
            

 

                           
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
As previously stated, almost 40.5 percent of the portfolio resides in the City’s LAIF 
account, yielding 0.26 percent for the quarter ending December 31, 2013.  Since the 
City does not need all of its funds to be liquid, investments in U.S. Treasury, agency, 
corporate notes, and commercial paper are made in an effort to enhance yields.  The 
difference between the yields earned in the City’s portfolio and those earned from LAIF 
have been more constant over the last year.  The City’s ability to earn a higher yield 
than LAIF is due to the priorities of the investment portfolios.  Since 2009, LAIF’s 
highest priority has been liquidity while the City’s priorities have been safety (protection 
of the principal) and yield.  More liquid securities tend to have lower rates of return.   
 

Treasury Yields 

Term    December 31, 
2012 

   September 30, 
2013 

   December 31, 
2013 

3-month 0.04 0.01 0.07 
6-month 0.11 0.03 0.09 
2-year 0.28 0.32 0.31 
5-year 0.72 1.38 1.74 
10-year 1.76 2.61 3.03 
30-year 2.95 3.69 3.97 

PAGE 107



Staff Report #: 14-022 
 

 

 
Fees paid to Cutwater (totaling $9,891 for the quarter ended December 31, 2013) are 
deducted from investment earnings before calculating the City’s net rate of return.  Staff 
continues to work with the City’s investment advisors to meet the City’s investment 
objectives and rearrange the portfolio for maximum yield while providing safety for the 
principal amount. 
 
Investment Transactions in the Fourth Quarter 
 
Staff, with the assistance of Cutwater, continues to evaluate the purchase of new 
investments as others are called or matured, if the City does not require the liquidity.  
During the fourth quarter, staff re-invested funds from a Treasury bill that matured and 
invested additional funds in commercial paper.  These additional funds were available 
as the result of the City receiving its first property tax revenues in December.  Because 
extra liquidity was not necessary, staff invested the funds in short-term securities.  In 
order to maximize yield while minimizing risk, staff evaluates all available investment 
opportunities.  With interest rates expected to remain at their current low level until 
2015, purchasing short-term securities is a prudent investment to position the City to 
capitalize when interest rates do begin to rise.  With that said, once rates start 
increasing, they are expected to do so only incrementally over a period of time.  
Therefore, utilizing some available funds to purchase longer term investments of 2 to 3 
years, which offer higher current interest rates, will provide the City with higher yields 
without creating significant interest rate risk. 
 
Investments that matured, were called or purchased during the period of October 1, 
2013 through December 31, 2013 are shown in the schedule below: 
 

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

1.2

1.4

1.6
% 

Comparative Rates of Return 

City Portfolio

LAIF Monthly Yield

2 year T-Note (12
mo trailing)

PAGE 108



Staff Report #: 14-022 
 

 

Date Transaction Description Term % Yield Principal 

12/16/2013 Maturity T-Note 3.0 yrs 0.99 $2,000,000 
12/19/2013 Purchase FHLB Callable 3.5 yrs 0.98 $2,000,000 
12/20/2013 Purchase Barclays Commercial Paper 0.50 yrs 0.38 $2,500,000 
12/20/2013 Purchase Soc Gen Bank Commercial Paper 0.50 yrs 0.36 $2,500,000 

 
The average number of days to maturity in the City’s portfolio decreased during the 
fourth quarter. The average number of days to maturity of the City’s portfolio as of 
December 31, 2013 was 430 days as compared to 480 days as of September 30, 2013.  
The average life of securities in LAIF’s portfolio as of December 31, 2013 was 209 days. 
 
Cash and Investments by Fund 
 

Overall, the City’s investment portfolio increased by over $7 million in the fourth quarter 
of 2013.  The schedule below lists the change in cash balance by fund type.   
 

 
 
Cash and investment holdings in the General Fund increased by property tax revenues, 
received in December, and were partially offset by normal operating expenditures.  In 
October 2013, a BMR unit on Riordan Avenue was sold, resulting in an over $1.2 million 
increase in the BMR Housing Fund.  In Other Special Revenue Funds, the Construction 
Impact Fee Fund increased by over $1.1 million for construction fees paid during the 
quarter.  The largest payment was $870,000 in October from Facebook for its West 
Campus project. 
  

Cash Balance Cash Balance %
as of 12/31/13 as of 09/30/13 Difference Change

General Fund 22,427,383 19,832,551 2,594,832 13.08%
Bayfront Park Maintenance Fund 651,828 674,168 (22,340) -3.31%
Recreation -in-Lieu Fund 1,318,624 1,365,467 (46,843) -3.43%
Other Expendable Trust Funds 1,363,420 1,426,516 (63,096) -4.42%
Transportation Impact Fee Fund 4,047,994 4,015,041 32,953 0.82%
Garbage Service Fund 942,209 948,596 (6,387) -0.67%
Parking Permit Fund 3,233,353 2,949,874 283,479 9.61%
BMR Housing Fund 7,396,120 5,967,281 1,428,839 23.94%
Measure A Funds 957,490 982,863 (25,373) -2.58%
Storm Water Management Fund 278,369 212,384 65,985 31.07%
Successor Agency Funds 2,418,251 2,594,729 (176,478) -6.80%
Measure T Funds 288,976 288,292 684 0.24%
Other Special Revenue Funds 11,457,938 10,134,130 1,323,808 13.06%
Capital Project Fund- General 13,231,334 13,316,775 (85,441) -0.64%
Water Operating & Capital 15,469,931 15,111,479 358,452 2.37%
Debt Service Fund 1,454,303 425,987 1,028,316 241.40%
Internal Service Fund 3,615,871 3,282,860 333,011 10.14%
Total Portfolio of all Funds 90,553,394 83,528,993 7,024,401 8.41%

Fund/Fund Type

PAGE 109



Staff Report #: 14-022 
 

 

The City’s Municipal Water Funds increased due to the collection of water service fees, 
which are offset by normal operating costs.  Water fees continue to be higher during the 
fourth quarter of the year due to the recent dry months, which require more water usage 
for landscaping needs.  The City’s Debt Service Funds increased from the tax levies on 
property taxes received in December.  The next semi-annual debt service payment on 
interest for the City’s general obligation bonds was due on January 31, 2014.  The 
increase in the Internal Service Funds is due to collection of internal services charges 
from departments offset by normal operating costs, plus a one-time dividend payment 
from Bay Cities Joint Powers Insurance Authority of over $45,000 in December.   
 
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 
Due to the liquidity of LAIF accounts, the City has more than sufficient funds available to 
meet its expenditure requirements for the next six months. 
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
The City and the Successor Agency funds are invested in full compliance with the City’s 
Investment Policy and State Law, which emphasize the following criteria, in the order of 
importance: safety, liquidity, and yield. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
This report is not subject to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this agenda item being 
listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Cutwater Investment Reports for the period of December 1, 2013 – December 
31, 2013 
 

Report prepared by: 
Geoffrey Buchheim 
Financial Services Manager 

PAGE 110



Cutwater Asset Management
1900 Sixteenth Street, Suite 200

Denver, CO 80202
Tel: 303 860 1100
Fax: 303 860 0016

CITY OF MENLO PARK 

Report for the period December 1, 2013 - December 31, 2013 

Please contact Accounting by calling the number above or email camreports@cutwater.com with questions concerning this report.

( This report was prepared on January 7, 2014 )

ATTACHMENT A

PAGE 111



Fixed Income Market Review 

December 31, 2013 

 

Charts sourced from Bloomberg Finance LP             

 
 

 
 

Economic Indicators & Monetary Policy – Purchases of new homes exceeded 
expectations in November and sales in October were revised higher to show the 
strongest annual pace since July 2008.1 Existing home sales fell 4.3 percent in 
November to an annual pace of 4.9 million properties sold compared to an 
expected 5.1 million units.2 Housing demand remains relatively strong despite 
rising mortgage rates in 2013 that corresponded with the increase in long-term 
Treasury yields-i.e., 10-year Treasury. (See Chart 1) 
 
U.S. retail sales climbed 0.7 percent in November, the largest increase in five 
months.  Sales in October were revised higher to show a monthly increase of 
0.6 percent.  It appears that consumer spending is rebounding from the rather 
lackluster pace during the third quarter.3 Durable goods orders increased 3.5 
percent in November compared to consensus estimates of 2.0 percent.  
Excluding demand for transportation equipment, orders were up 1.2 percent, the 
biggest advance in six months.4 Consumer confidence continues to improve 
with households benefiting from falling gasoline prices and more wealth due to 
higher stock prices and home values. The employment situation has also 
improved, making shoppers feel more comfortable spending money during the 
holiday shopping season.  
 
At the December 17th/18th Federal Open Market Committee (FOMC) meeting, 
policy-makers kept the federal funds target rate at a range of zero to 0.25 
percent.  At this meeting, the Federal Reserve (the Fed) also “decided to 
modestly reduce the pace of its asset purchases” from $85 billion per month to 
$75 billion in January.  In addition, it “will likely reduce the pace of asset 
purchases in further measured steps at future meetings.”  The Fed will continue 
to monitor labor market conditions and inflation.  The FOMC stated that “it will 
likely be appropriate to maintain the current target range for the federal funds 
rate well past the time that the unemployment rate declines below 6 ½ percent, 
especially if projected inflation continues to run below the Committee’s 2 
percent longer-run goal.”5 
 
Yield Curve & Spreads – U.S. Treasury yields increased in December as a 
result of the U.S. economy showing strength and the Fed’s decision to start 
tapering its monthly asset purchases in January.  
 
At the end of December, the 3-month Treasury bill yielded 0.07 percent, 6-
month Treasury bill yielded 0.09 percent, 2-year Treasury note yielded 0.38 
percent, 5-year Treasury note yielded 1.74 percent, 10-year Treasury note 
yielded 3.03 percent, and the 30-year Treasury yielded 3.97 percent. (See Chart 
2)

 

PAGE 112



Additional Information 

December 31, 2013 

 

            

The opinions expressed above are those of Cutwater Asset Management and are subject to change without notice. All statistics represent month-end figures 
unless otherwise noted. 
 
A current version of the investment adviser brochure for Cutwater Investor Services Corp., in the form of the Firm’s ADV Part 2A, is available for your review.  
Please contact our Client Service Desk at 1-800-395-5505 or mail your request to: 
 
Cutwater Investor Services Corp. 
Attention: Client Services 
113 King Street 
Armonk, NY  10504 
 
A copy of the brochure will be sent to you either by mail or electronically at your option. 
 
 
In addition, a copy of the most recent version of the Firm’s complete Form ADV can be downloaded from the SEC website at www.adviserinfo.sec.gov/. 
 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

1 “Sales of New Homes in U.S. Exceeded Forecasts in November.”  Bloomberg Finance LP. December 24, 2013 
2  “Leading Index Gain Signals U.S. Strengthening.”  Bloomberg Finance LP. December 19, 2013 
3 U.S. Adjusted Retail & Food Services Sales for November 2013. December 12, 2013 release. 
4 U.S. Durable Goods New Orders for November 2013. December 24, 2013 release. 
5 “Press Release’, Federal Open Market Committee statement dated December 18, 2013. 
 

 

PAGE 113



Beginning Amortized Cost Value 85,037,922.68 

Additions

Contributions 4,838,292.04 

Interest Received 84,230.33 

Accrued Interest Sold 0.00 

Gain on Sales 0.00 

Total Additions 4,922,522.37 

Deductions

Withdrawals 0.00 

Fees Paid 3,367.44 

Accrued Interest Purchased 0.00 

Loss on Sales 0.00 

Total Deductions (3,367.44)

Accretion (Amortization) for the Period (46,787.02)

Ending Amortized Cost Value 89,910,290.59 

Ending Fair Value 89,754,079.73 

Unrealized Gain (Loss) (156,210.86)

Amortized Cost Basis Activity Summary

Annualized Comparative Rates of Return

Twelve
Month Trailing

Six
Month Trailing For the Month

Fed Funds             
        

0.11 % 0.09 % 0.08 %
Overnight Repo    
            

0.08 % 0.06 % 0.05 %
3 Month T-Bill     
           

0.05 % 0.04 % 0.05 %
6 Month T-Bill     
           

0.07 % 0.06 % 0.07 %
1 Year T-Note       
          

0.13 % 0.12 % 0.13 %
2 Year T-Note       
          

0.31 % 0.35 % 0.34 %
5 Year T-Note       
          

1.17 % 1.47 % 1.58 %

Detail of Amortized Cost Basis Return

Interest
Earned

Accretion
(Amortization)

Realized
Gain (Loss)

Total
Income

Current Holdings

Cash and Equivalents     
     

8,208.18 0.00 0.00 8,208.18 
Commercial Paper          
    

0.00 600.00 0.00 600.00 
U.S. Treasury                 1,684.78 (482.11) 0.00 1,202.67 
U.S. Instrumentality       
   

23,041.97 (6,480.64) 0.00 16,561.33 
Corporate                     54,944.69 (37,125.87) 0.00 17,818.82 
Sales and Maturities

U.S. Treasury                 573.77 181.63 0.00 755.40 
U.S. Instrumentality       
   

0.00 (3,480.03) 0.00 (3,480.03)
Total 88,453.39 (46,787.02) 0.00 41,666.37 

Summary of Amortized Cost Basis Return for the Period
Total Portfolio Excl. Cash Eq.

Interest Earned 88,453.39 80,245.21 

Accretion (Amortization) (46,787.02) (46,787.02)

Realized Gain (Loss) on Sales 0.00 0.00 

Total Income on Portfolio 41,666.37 33,458.19 

Average Daily Historical Cost 87,231,668.14 50,511,552.67 

Annualized Return 0.56% 0.78%

Annualized Return Net of Fees 0.52% 0.70%

Annualized Return Year to Date Net of Fees 0.51% 0.73%

Weighted Average Effective Maturity in Days 430 723 

City of Menlo Park 
Activity and Performance Summary

for the period December 1, 2013 - December 31, 2013

PAGE 114



Beginning Fair Value 85,030,948.05 

Additions

Contributions 4,838,292.04 

Interest Received 84,230.33 

Accrued Interest Sold 0.00 

Total Additions 4,922,522.37 

Deductions

Withdrawals 0.00 

Fees Paid 3,367.44 

Accrued Interest Purchased 0.00 

Total Deductions (3,367.44)

Change in Fair Value for the Period (196,023.25)

Ending Fair Value 89,754,079.73 

Fair Value Basis Activity Summary

Annualized Comparative Rates of Return

Twelve
Month Trailing

Six
Month Trailing For the Month

Fed Funds             
        

0.11 % 0.09 % 0.08 %
Overnight Repo    
            

0.08 % 0.06 % 0.05 %
3 Month T-Bill     
           

0.09 % 0.10 % 0.12 %
6 Month T-Bill     
           

0.16 % 0.16 % 0.35 %
1 Year T-Note       
          

0.25 % 0.30 % 0.24 %
2 Year T-Note       
          

0.29 % 0.58 % -1.30 %
5 Year T-Note       
          

-2.45 % -0.40 % -17.43 %

Detail of Fair Value Basis Return

Interest
Earned

Change in
Fair Value

Total
Income

Current Holdings

Cash and Equivalents         
 

8,208.18 0.00 8,208.18 

Commercial Paper             
 

0.00 738.61 738.61 

U.S. Treasury                 1,684.78 (4,766.00) (3,081.22)

U.S. Instrumentality          23,041.97 (109,337.73) (86,295.76)

Corporate                     54,944.69 (78,403.84) (23,459.15)

Sales and Maturities

U.S. Treasury                 573.77 (390.00) 183.77 

U.S. Instrumentality          0.00 (3,864.29) (3,864.29)

Total 88,453.39 (196,023.25) (107,569.86)

Summary of Fair Value Basis Return for the Period
Total Portfolio Excl. Cash Eq.

Interest Earned 88,453.39 80,245.21 

Change in Fair Value (196,023.25) (196,023.25)

Total Income on Portfolio (107,569.86) (115,778.04)

Average Daily Historical Cost 87,231,668.14 50,511,552.67 

Annualized Return (1.45%) (2.70%)

Annualized Return Net of Fees (1.50%) (2.78%)

Annualized Return Year to Date Net of Fees 0.14% 0.03% 

Weighted Average Effective Maturity in Days 430 723 

City of Menlo Park 
Activity and Performance Summary

for the period December 1, 2013 - December 31, 2013

PAGE 115



Historical
Cost

Amortized
Cost Fair Value

Unrealized
Gain

(Loss)

Weighted
Average

Final
Maturity (Days)

Weighted
Average
Effective

Maturity (Days)

%
Portfolio/
Segment

Weighted
Average
Yield *

Weighted
Average
Market

Duration (Years)
Cash and Equivalents          36,720,115.47 36,720,115.47 36,720,115.47 0.00 1 1 40.55 0.26 0.00 

Commercial Paper              4,989,076.39 4,989,676.39 4,989,815.00 138.61 206 206 5.51 0.37 0.00 

U.S. Treasury                 2,026,015.63 2,012,641.04 2,025,078.00 12,436.96 589 589 2.24 0.71 1.58 

U.S. Instrumentality          21,345,165.06 21,215,149.77 21,073,113.95 (142,035.82) 1,072 969 23.57 0.91 2.51 

Corporate                     25,473,021.85 24,972,707.92 24,945,957.31 (26,750.61) 629 629 28.13 0.88 1.68 

Total 90,553,394.40 89,910,290.59 89,754,079.73 (156,210.86) 455 430 100.00 0.60 1.10 

 Cash and Equivalents          40.6 %

 Commercial Paper              5.5 %

 U.S. Treasury                 2.2 %

 U.S. Instrumentality          23.6 %

 Corporate                     28.1 %

Total: 100.0 %

Portfolio / Segment Diversification

* Weighted Average Yield is calculated on a "yield to worst" basis.

  

City of Menlo Park 
Recap of Securities Held

December 31, 2013

PAGE 116



Maturity Historical Cost Percent
Under 90 Days 40,262,160.47  44.46 %

90 To 180 Days 7,335,003.89  8.10 %

180 Days to 1 Year 7,154,554.38  7.90 %

1 To 2 Years 11,929,831.85  13.17 %

2 To 3 Years 6,149,658.75  6.79 %

3 To 4 Years 9,732,665.06  10.75 %

4 To 5 Years 7,989,520.00  8.82 %

Over 5 Years 0.00  0.00 %

90,553,394.40 100.00 %

Maturity Distribution

  

City of Menlo Park 
Maturity Distribution of Securities Held

December 31, 2013

PAGE 117



CUSIP/
Description

Purchase
 Date

Rate/ 
Coupon

Maturity/ 
Call  Date

Par Value/  
Shares

Historical Cost/
Accrued Interest

Purchased 

Amortized Cost/ 
Accretion

(Amortization)

Fair Value/
 Change In Fair 

Value

Unrealized
Gain 
(Loss)

Interest 
Received

Interest 
Earned 

Total
Accured 
Interest

% 
Port 
Cost Yield

Cash and Equivalents

LAIF - City 98-19-22 12/31/13 0.263V 36,720,115.47 36,720,115.47 36,720,115.47 36,720,115.47 0.00 0.00 8,208.18 23,758.71 40.55 0.26
0.00 0.00 0.00 

TOTAL (Cash and Equivalents) 36,720,115.47 36,720,115.47 36,720,115.47 36,720,115.47 0.00 0.00 8,208.18 23,758.71 40.55
0.00 0.00 0.00 

Commercial Paper

83365SF24      12/20/13 0.000 06/02/14 2,500,000.00 2,496,013.89 2,496,305.56 2,496,992.50 686.94 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.76 0.36
Societe Generale NA 0.00 291.67 978.61 

06737JJG1      12/20/13 0.000 09/16/14 2,500,000.00 2,493,062.50 2,493,370.83 2,492,822.50 (548.33) 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.75 0.38
Barclays US Funding 0.00 308.33 (240.00)

TOTAL (Commercial Paper) 5,000,000.00 4,989,076.39 4,989,676.39 4,989,815.00 138.61 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.51
0.00 600.00 738.61 

U.S. Treasury

912828RB8      08/25/11 0.500 08/15/14 1,000,000.00 1,003,046.88 1,000,634.07 1,002,344.00 1,709.93 0.00 421.20 1,888.59 1.11 0.40
T-Note              0.00 (86.97) (78.00)

912828QX1      08/25/11 1.500 07/31/16 1,000,000.00 1,022,968.75 1,012,006.97 1,022,734.00 10,727.03 0.00 1,263.58 6,277.17 1.13 1.02
T-Note              0.00 (395.14) (4,688.00)

TOTAL (U.S. Treasury) 2,000,000.00 2,026,015.63 2,012,641.04 2,025,078.00 12,436.96 0.00 1,684.78 8,165.76 2.24
0.00 (482.11) (4,766.00)

U.S. Instrumentality

31398A3G5      09/28/11 1.500 09/08/14 1,500,000.00 1,535,565.00 1,508,263.24 1,513,695.00 5,431.76 0.00 1,875.00 7,062.50 1.70 0.69
FNMA                0.00 (1,024.65) (1,548.00)

3136G0KG5      Call 06/05/12 0.625 06/04/15 2,000,000.00 2,001,400.00 2,000,295.75 2,002,680.00 2,384.25 6,250.00 1,041.67 937.50 2.21 0.59
FNMA                06/04/14 0.00 (59.53) (442.00)

3133XWNB1      09/28/11 2.875 06/12/15 1,500,000.00 1,606,845.00 1,541,616.64 1,555,104.00 13,487.36 21,562.50 3,593.75 2,276.04 1.77 0.92
FHLB                0.00 (2,448.04) (4,275.00)

3134G3MK3      Call 02/24/12 1.000 02/24/16 2,000,000.00 2,010,200.00 2,000,753.49 2,002,024.00 1,270.51 0.00 1,666.67 7,055.56 2.22 0.74
FHLMC               02/24/14 0.00 (432.56) (1,110.00)

3136FT3C1      Call 03/05/12 1.000 12/05/16 2,000,000.00 1,996,500.00 1,997,844.76 1,996,036.00 (1,808.76) 10,000.00 1,666.66 1,444.44 2.20 1.04
FNMA                03/05/14 0.00 62.50 (6,340.00)

3135G0VM2      Call 04/03/13 0.750 03/14/17 1,000,000.00 1,000,700.00 1,000,146.09 988,450.00 (11,696.09) 0.00 625.00 2,229.17 1.11 0.68
FNMA                03/14/14 0.00 (62.90) (5,699.00)

3128MBFA0      01/23/13 6.000 04/01/17 1,114,644.78 1,185,355.06 1,169,492.65 1,174,770.95 5,278.30 5,573.22 5,573.22 5,573.22 1.31 2.31
FHLMC               0.00 (1,433.63) (2,369.73)

  

City of Menlo Park 
Securities Held

December 31, 2013

PAGE 118



CUSIP/
Description

Purchase
 Date

Rate/ 
Coupon

Maturity/ 
Call  Date

Par Value/  
Shares

Historical Cost/
Accrued Interest

Purchased 

Amortized Cost/ 
Accretion

(Amortization)

Fair Value/
 Change In Fair 

Value

Unrealized
Gain 
(Loss)

Interest 
Received

Interest 
Earned 

Total
Accured 
Interest

% 
Port 
Cost Yield

3130A0GF1      Call 12/19/13 0.500V 06/19/17 2,000,000.00 1,999,000.00 1,999,010.17 1,989,258.00 (9,752.17) 0.00 333.33 333.33 2.21 0.98
FHLB                09/19/14 0.00 10.17 (9,742.00)

3135G0PP2      04/18/13 1.000 09/20/17 2,000,000.00 2,005,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,974,376.00 (25,624.00) 0.00 1,666.67 5,611.11 2.21 1.00
FNMA                0.00 0.00 (21,704.00)

3137EADN6      01/22/13 0.750 01/12/18 2,000,000.00 1,984,380.00 1,987,338.85 1,945,766.00 (41,572.85) 0.00 1,250.00 7,041.67 2.19 0.91
FHLMC               0.00 266.64 (17,014.00)

3137EADN6      02/15/13 0.750 01/12/18 2,000,000.00 1,980,960.00 1,984,360.00 1,945,766.00 (38,594.00) 0.00 1,250.00 7,041.67 2.19 0.95
FHLMC               0.00 329.37 (17,014.00)

3136G1KN8      Call 05/03/13 1.500 04/24/18 2,000,000.00 2,039,260.00 2,026,028.13 1,985,188.00 (40,840.13) 0.00 2,500.00 5,583.33 2.25 0.50
FNMA                04/24/15 0.00 (1,688.01) (22,080.00)

TOTAL (U.S. Instrumentality) 21,114,644.78 21,345,165.06 21,215,149.77 21,073,113.95 (142,035.82) 43,385.72 23,041.97 52,189.54 23.57
0.00 (6,480.64) (109,337.73)

Corporate

36962G4X9      02/02/12 2.100 01/07/14 1,500,000.00 1,531,845.00 1,500,271.02 1,500,285.00 13.98 0.00 2,625.00 15,225.00 1.69 0.99
GE Capital          0.00 (1,400.28) (2,247.00)

931142DA8      07/26/11 1.625 04/15/14 1,000,000.00 1,020,000.00 1,002,092.56 1,004,051.00 1,958.44 0.00 1,354.17 3,430.56 1.13 0.88
Wal-Mart            0.00 (623.74) (1,413.00)

478160AX2      05/20/11 1.200 05/15/14 1,000,000.00 998,830.00 999,856.30 1,002,986.00 3,129.70 0.00 1,000.00 1,533.33 1.10 1.24
Johnson & Johnson   0.00 33.25 (842.00)

36962GX41      12/14/11 5.650 06/09/14 750,000.00 818,760.00 762,040.57 766,982.25 4,941.68 21,187.50 3,531.25 2,589.58 0.90 1.86
GE Capital          0.00 (2,347.54) (3,714.00)

94974BET3      10/22/12 3.750 10/01/14 2,000,000.00 2,122,880.00 2,047,314.87 2,050,952.00 3,637.13 0.00 6,250.00 18,750.00 2.34 0.56
Wells Fargo         0.00 (5,372.75) (4,088.00)

084664AT8      10/23/12 4.850 01/15/15 3,000,000.00 3,284,850.00 3,132,626.72 3,140,157.00 7,530.28 0.00 12,125.00 67,091.67 3.63 0.56
Berkshire Hathaway  0.00 (10,848.10) (7,623.00)

713448BX5      09/21/12 0.750 03/05/15 1,000,000.00 1,005,430.00 1,002,596.69 1,002,522.00 (74.69) 0.00 625.00 2,416.67 1.11 0.53
PEPSICO Inc         0.00 (188.08) (1,564.00)

717081DA8      04/22/13 5.350 03/15/15 3,000,000.00 3,272,700.00 3,172,604.91 3,169,959.00 (2,645.91) 0.00 13,375.00 47,258.33 3.61 0.53
Pfizer Inc          0.00 (12,216.33) (15,009.00)

36962G5Z3      10/02/12 1.625 07/02/15 1,013,000.00 1,032,236.87 1,023,491.09 1,029,462.26 5,971.17 0.00 1,371.77 8,184.90 1.14 0.92
GE Capital          0.00 (594.56) 705.04 

36962G4P6      09/21/12 1.000V 09/23/15 725,000.00 724,369.98 724,638.18 728,645.30 4,007.12 1,812.50 604.17 161.11 0.80 1.03
GE Capital          0.00 17.80 (286.38)

594918AG9      07/26/11 1.625 09/25/15 1,000,000.00 1,003,400.00 1,001,411.83 1,020,828.00 19,416.17 0.00 1,354.16 4,333.33 1.11 1.54
Microsoft           0.00 (69.25) (2,453.00)

38259PAC6      10/16/12 2.125 05/19/16 1,000,000.00 1,053,370.00 1,035,376.45 1,033,129.00 (2,247.45) 0.00 1,770.84 2,479.17 1.16 0.62
Google              0.00 (1,261.99) (3,592.00)

  

City of Menlo Park 
Securities Held

December 31, 2013

PAGE 119



CUSIP/
Description

Purchase
 Date

Rate/ 
Coupon

Maturity/ 
Call  Date

Par Value/  
Shares

Historical Cost/
Accrued Interest

Purchased 

Amortized Cost/ 
Accretion

(Amortization)

Fair Value/
 Change In Fair 

Value

Unrealized
Gain 
(Loss)

Interest 
Received

Interest 
Earned 

Total
Accured 
Interest

% 
Port 
Cost Yield

459200GX3      11/09/12 1.950 07/22/16 2,000,000.00 2,076,820.00 2,053,051.86 2,054,556.00 1,504.14 0.00 3,250.00 17,225.00 2.29 0.89
IBM Corp            0.00 (1,762.71) (8,562.00)

084670BD9      02/02/12 1.900 01/31/17 1,500,000.00 1,528,050.00 1,517,306.47 1,533,994.50 16,688.03 0.00 2,375.00 11,954.17 1.69 1.51
Berkshire Hathaway  0.00 (476.46) (655.50)

88579YAE1      12/19/12 1.000 06/26/17 2,000,000.00 2,014,560.00 2,011,224.44 1,974,494.00 (36,730.44) 10,000.00 1,666.67 277.78 2.22 0.84
3M Company          0.00 (273.55) (12,826.00)

037833AJ9      05/20/13 1.000 05/03/18 2,000,000.00 1,984,920.00 1,986,803.96 1,932,954.00 (53,849.96) 0.00 1,666.66 3,222.22 2.19 1.16
Apple Inc           0.00 258.42 (14,234.00)

TOTAL (Corporate) 24,488,000.00 25,473,021.85 24,972,707.92 24,945,957.31 (26,750.61) 33,000.00 54,944.69 206,132.82 28.13
0.00 (37,125.87) (78,403.84)

GRAND TOTAL 89,322,760.25 90,553,394.40 89,910,290.59 

(43,488.62)

89,754,079.73 

(191,768.96)

76,385.72 87,879.62 100.00(156,210.86)

0.00

290,246.83

V = variable rate, current rate shown, average rate for Cash & Equivalents

  

City of Menlo Park 
Securities Held

December 31, 2013

PAGE 120



CUSIP Type Coupon
Maturity
   Date Call Date

S&P 
Rating

Moody
Rating

Par Value /
Shares

Historical
Cost

% Portfolio 
 Hist Cost

Market
Value

% Portfolio 
Mkt Value

Weighted Avg
Mkt Dur (Yrs)

LAIF

Cash and Equivalents          0.263 01/30/3100             36,720,115.47 36,720,115.47 40.55 36,720,115.47 40.91 0.00

ISSUER TOTAL 36,720,115.47 36,720,115.47 40.55 36,720,115.47 40.91 0.00

FNMA

3136G0KG5      U.S. Instrumentality          0.625 06/04/2015 06/04/2014 AA+   Aaa   2,000,000.00 2,001,400.00 2.21 2,002,680.00 2.23 0.42

31398A3G5      U.S. Instrumentality          1.500 09/08/2014 AA+   Aaa   1,500,000.00 1,535,565.00 1.70 1,513,695.00 1.69 0.68

3136FT3C1      U.S. Instrumentality          1.000 12/05/2016 03/05/2014 AA+   Aaa   2,000,000.00 1,996,500.00 2.20 1,996,036.00 2.22 2.88

3135G0VM2      U.S. Instrumentality          0.750 03/14/2017 03/14/2014 AA+   Aaa   1,000,000.00 1,000,700.00 1.11 988,450.00 1.10 3.15

3135G0PP2      U.S. Instrumentality          1.000 09/20/2017 AA+   Aaa   2,000,000.00 2,005,000.00 2.21 1,974,376.00 2.20 3.63

3136G1KN8      U.S. Instrumentality          1.500 04/24/2018 04/24/2015 AA+   Aaa   2,000,000.00 2,039,260.00 2.25 1,985,188.00 2.21 4.15

ISSUER TOTAL 10,500,000.00 10,578,425.00 11.68 10,460,425.00 11.65 2.50

FHLMC

3134G3MK3      U.S. Instrumentality          1.000 02/24/2016 02/24/2014 AA+   Aaa   2,000,000.00 2,010,200.00 2.22 2,002,024.00 2.23 0.15

3128MBFA0      U.S. Instrumentality          6.000 04/01/2017 AA+   Aaa   1,114,644.78 1,185,355.06 1.31 1,174,770.95 1.31 1.66

3137EADN6      U.S. Instrumentality          0.750 01/12/2018 AA+   Aaa   4,000,000.00 3,965,340.00 4.38 3,891,532.00 4.34 3.93

ISSUER TOTAL 7,114,644.78 7,160,895.06 7.91 7,068,326.95 7.88 2.48

Berkshire Hathaway

084664AT8      Corporate                     4.850 01/15/2015 AA    Aa2   3,000,000.00 3,284,850.00 3.63 3,140,157.00 3.50 1.00

084670BD9      Corporate                     1.900 01/31/2017 AA    Aa2   1,500,000.00 1,528,050.00 1.69 1,533,994.50 1.71 2.97

ISSUER TOTAL 4,500,000.00 4,812,900.00 5.31 4,674,151.50 5.21 1.65

GE Capital

36962G4X9      Corporate                     2.100 01/07/2014 AA+   A1    1,500,000.00 1,531,845.00 1.69 1,500,285.00 1.67 0.02

36962GX41      Corporate                     5.650 06/09/2014 AA+   A1    750,000.00 818,760.00 0.90 766,982.25 0.85 0.44

36962G5Z3      Corporate                     1.625 07/02/2015 AA+   A1    1,013,000.00 1,032,236.87 1.14 1,029,462.26 1.15 1.48

36962G4P6      Corporate                     1.000 09/23/2015 AA+   A1    725,000.00 724,369.98 0.80 728,645.30 0.81 1.71

ISSUER TOTAL 3,988,000.00 4,107,211.85 4.54 4,025,374.81 4.48 0.78

FHLB

3133XWNB1      U.S. Instrumentality          2.875 06/12/2015 AA+   Aaa   1,500,000.00 1,606,845.00 1.77 1,555,104.00 1.73 1.42

3130A0GF1      U.S. Instrumentality          0.500 06/19/2017 09/19/2014 AA+   Aaa   2,000,000.00 1,999,000.00 2.21 1,989,258.00 2.22 3.41

ISSUER TOTAL 3,500,000.00 3,605,845.00 3.98 3,544,362.00 3.95 2.54

  

City of Menlo Park 
GASB 40 - Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosure

December 31, 2013

( PAGE 121



CUSIP Type Coupon
Maturity
   Date Call Date

S&P 
Rating

Moody
Rating

Par Value /
Shares

Historical
Cost

% Portfolio 
 Hist Cost

Market
Value

% Portfolio 
Mkt Value

Weighted Avg
Mkt Dur (Yrs)

Pfizer Inc

717081DA8      Corporate                     5.350 03/15/2015 AA    A1    3,000,000.00 3,272,700.00 3.61 3,169,959.00 3.53 1.16

ISSUER TOTAL 3,000,000.00 3,272,700.00 3.61 3,169,959.00 3.53 1.16

Societe Generale NA

83365SF24      Commercial Paper              0.000 06/02/2014 A-1   P-1   2,500,000.00 2,496,013.89 2.76 2,496,992.50 2.78 0.00

ISSUER TOTAL 2,500,000.00 2,496,013.89 2.76 2,496,992.50 2.78 0.00

Barclays US Funding

06737JJG1      Commercial Paper              0.000 09/16/2014 A-1   P-1   2,500,000.00 2,493,062.50 2.75 2,492,822.50 2.78 0.00

ISSUER TOTAL 2,500,000.00 2,493,062.50 2.75 2,492,822.50 2.78 0.00

IBM Corp

459200GX3      Corporate                     1.950 07/22/2016 AA-   Aa3   2,000,000.00 2,076,820.00 2.29 2,054,556.00 2.29 2.48

ISSUER TOTAL 2,000,000.00 2,076,820.00 2.29 2,054,556.00 2.29 2.48

Wells Fargo

94974BET3      Corporate                     3.750 10/01/2014 A+    A2    2,000,000.00 2,122,880.00 2.34 2,050,952.00 2.29 0.74

ISSUER TOTAL 2,000,000.00 2,122,880.00 2.34 2,050,952.00 2.29 0.74

T-Note

912828RB8      U.S. Treasury                 0.500 08/15/2014 AA+   Aaa   1,000,000.00 1,003,046.88 1.11 1,002,344.00 1.12 0.62

912828QX1      U.S. Treasury                 1.500 07/31/2016 AA+   Aaa   1,000,000.00 1,022,968.75 1.13 1,022,734.00 1.14 2.52

ISSUER TOTAL 2,000,000.00 2,026,015.63 2.24 2,025,078.00 2.26 1.58

3M Company

88579YAE1      Corporate                     1.000 06/26/2017 AA-   Aa2   2,000,000.00 2,014,560.00 2.22 1,974,494.00 2.20 3.41

ISSUER TOTAL 2,000,000.00 2,014,560.00 2.22 1,974,494.00 2.20 3.41

Apple Inc

037833AJ9      Corporate                     1.000 05/03/2018 AA+   Aa1   2,000,000.00 1,984,920.00 2.19 1,932,954.00 2.15 4.21

ISSUER TOTAL 2,000,000.00 1,984,920.00 2.19 1,932,954.00 2.15 4.21

  

City of Menlo Park 
GASB 40 - Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosure

December 31, 2013

PAGE 122



CUSIP Type Coupon
Maturity
   Date Call Date

S&P 
Rating

Moody
Rating

Par Value /
Shares

Historical
Cost

% Portfolio 
 Hist Cost

Market
Value

% Portfolio 
Mkt Value

Weighted Avg
Mkt Dur (Yrs)

Google

38259PAC6      Corporate                     2.125 05/19/2016 AA    Aa2   1,000,000.00 1,053,370.00 1.16 1,033,129.00 1.15 2.32

ISSUER TOTAL 1,000,000.00 1,053,370.00 1.16 1,033,129.00 1.15 2.32

Microsoft

594918AG9      Corporate                     1.625 09/25/2015 AAA   Aaa   1,000,000.00 1,003,400.00 1.11 1,020,828.00 1.14 1.71

ISSUER TOTAL 1,000,000.00 1,003,400.00 1.11 1,020,828.00 1.14 1.71

Wal-Mart

931142DA8      Corporate                     1.625 04/15/2014 AA    Aa2   1,000,000.00 1,020,000.00 1.13 1,004,051.00 1.12 0.29

ISSUER TOTAL 1,000,000.00 1,020,000.00 1.13 1,004,051.00 1.12 0.29

Johnson & Johnson

478160AX2      Corporate                     1.200 05/15/2014 AAA   Aaa   1,000,000.00 998,830.00 1.10 1,002,986.00 1.12 0.37

ISSUER TOTAL 1,000,000.00 998,830.00 1.10 1,002,986.00 1.12 0.37

PEPSICO Inc

713448BX5      Corporate                     0.750 03/05/2015 A-    A1    1,000,000.00 1,005,430.00 1.11 1,002,522.00 1.12 1.17

ISSUER TOTAL 1,000,000.00 1,005,430.00 1.11 1,002,522.00 1.12 1.17

GRAND TOTAL 89,322,760.25 90,553,394.40 100.00 89,754,079.73 100.00 1.09

Highlighted totals are issuers representing 5.00% or more of the portfolio's market value

  

City of Menlo Park 
GASB 40 - Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosure

December 31, 2013

PAGE 123



CUSIP/ Description
Purchase

 Date Rate/Coupon
Maturity/ 
Call Date

Par Value/
Shares Unit Cost

Principal 
Cost

Accrued
Interest Purchased Yield

Commercial Paper

06737JJG1      12/20/2013 0.000 09/16/2014 2,500,000.00 99.723 2,493,062.50 0.00 0.38
Barclays US Fun

83365SF24      12/20/2013 0.000 06/02/2014 2,500,000.00 99.841 2,496,013.89 0.00 0.36
Societe General

TOTAL (Commercial Paper) 5,000,000.00 4,989,076.39 0.00

U.S. Instrumentality

3130A0GF1      Call 12/19/2013 0.500V 06/19/2017 2,000,000.00 99.950 1,999,000.00 0.00 0.98
FHLB           09/19/2014

TOTAL (U.S. Instrumentality) 2,000,000.00 1,999,000.00 0.00

7,000,000.00 6,988,076.39 0.00GRAND TOTAL 

V = variable rate, current rate shown, average rate for Cash & Equivalents

Securities Purchased
December 1, 2013 December 31, 2013-

City of Menlo Park 

PAGE 124



CUSIP/
Description

Sale or 
Maturity 

Date
Rate/ 

Coupon
Maturity/ 
Call  Date

Par Value/  
Shares Historical Cost 

Amortized Cost
at Sale or Maturity 

/
Accr/ (Amort)

Sale/ 
Maturity 

Price

Fair Value 
at Sale or 

Maturity / Chg.In 
Fair Value

Realized 
Gain 
(Loss)

Accrued 
Interest 

Sold 
Interest 
Received

Interest 
Earned Yield

U.S. Treasury

912828PL8      12/15/2013 0.750 12/15/2013 2,000,000.00 1,985,781.25 2,000,000.00 100.00 2,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 7,500.00 573.77 0.99
T-Note         181.63 (390.00)

TOTAL (U.S. Treasury) 2,000,000.00 1,985,781.25 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 7,500.00 573.77
181.63 (390.00)

U.S. Instrumentality

3128MBFA0      12/01/2013 6.000 04/01/2017 68,921.46 73,293.66 68,921.46 100.00 68,921.46 0.00 0.00 344.61 0.00 2.31
FHLMC          (3,480.03) (3,864.29)

TOTAL (U.S. Instrumentality) 68,921.46 73,293.66 68,921.46 68,921.46 0.00 0.00 344.61 0.00
(3,480.03) (3,864.29)

GRAND TOTAL 2,068,921.46 2,059,074.91 2,068,921.46 2,068,921.46 0.00 0.00 7,844.61 573.77

(3,298.40) (4,254.29)

V = variable rate, current rate shown, average rate for Cash & Equivalents

City of Menlo Park 
Securities Sold and Matured 

December 1, 2013 December 31, 2013-

PAGE 125



Date CUSIP Transaction Sec Type Description Maturity PAR Value/Shares Principal Interest Transaction Total Balance

12/01/2013 3128MBFA0      Paydown INS FHLMC               04/01/2017 68,921.46 68,921.46 5,917.83 74,839.29 74,839.29 

12/04/2013 3136G0KG5      Interest INS FNMA                06/04/2015 2,000,000.00 0.00 6,250.00 6,250.00 81,089.29 

12/05/2013 3136FT3C1      Interest INS FNMA                12/05/2016 2,000,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 91,089.29 

12/09/2013 36962GX41      Interest COR GE Capital          06/09/2014 750,000.00 0.00 21,187.50 21,187.50 112,276.79 

12/12/2013 3133XWNB1      Interest INS FHLB                06/12/2015 1,500,000.00 0.00 21,562.50 21,562.50 133,839.29 

12/15/2013 912828PL8      Maturity TSY T-Note              12/15/2013 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 0.00 2,000,000.00 2,133,839.29 

12/15/2013 912828PL8      Interest TSY T-Note              12/15/2013 2,000,000.00 0.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 2,141,339.29 

12/19/2013 3130A0GF1      Bought INS FHLB                06/19/2017 2,000,000.00 1,999,000.00 0.00 (1,999,000.00) 142,339.29 

12/20/2013 06737JJG1      Bought CP Barclays US Funding 09/16/2014 2,500,000.00 2,493,062.50 0.00 (2,493,062.50) (2,350,723.21)

12/20/2013 83365SF24      Bought CP Societe Generale NA 06/02/2014 2,500,000.00 2,496,013.89 0.00 (2,496,013.89) (4,846,737.10)

12/23/2013 36962G4P6      Interest COR GE Capital          09/23/2015 725,000.00 0.00 1,812.50 1,812.50 (4,844,924.60)

12/26/2013 88579YAE1      Interest COR 3M Company          06/26/2017 2,000,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 (4,834,924.60)

Portfolio Activity Total (4,834,924.60)

4,838,292.04Net Contributions:

0.00Net Withdrawls:

Fees Charged: 3,367.44

Fees Paid: 3,367.44

  

City of Menlo Park 
Transaction Report

for the period December 1, 2013 - December 31, 2013

PAGE 126



City of Menlo Park
Securities Bid and Offer

for the period 12/1/2013 - 12/31/2013

Trans Settle Description Call Date Broker Par Value Discount Price YTM/YTC Competitive Bids

BUY 12/19/2013 FHLB .5 06/19/2017 RBC     2,000,000 99.950 CIT - FHLMC 7/28/17 .96% YTM
WSF - FNMA 7/13/17 .94% YTM

BUY 12/20/2013 BCSFUN 0 09/16/2014 BARCP   2,500,000 0.370 99.723 WSF - RABO BANK 8/21/2014 @ .26%
BAML - TORONTO DOM 9/15/2014 @ .29%

BUY 12/20/2013 SOCNAM 0 06/02/2014 BAR     2,500,000 0.350 99.841 JPM - JPM CP 6/02/14 @ .25%
WSF - HSBC 6/13/2014 @ .22%

.98 /.57

.38

.36

PAGE 127



Date Transaction CUSIP Description Coupon
Maturity

Date
Next

Call Date Par / Shares Principal Interest
Transaction

Total
01/02/2014 Interest 36962G5Z3 GE Capital                    1.625 07/02/2015 1,013,000.00 0.00 8,230.63 8,230.63 

01/07/2014 Maturity 36962G4X9 GE Capital                    2.100 01/07/2014 1,500,000.00 1,500,000.00 15,750.00 1,515,750.00 

01/12/2014 Interest 3137EADN6 FHLMC                         0.750 01/12/2018 2,000,000.00 0.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 

01/12/2014 Interest 3137EADN6 FHLMC                         0.750 01/12/2018 2,000,000.00 0.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 

01/15/2014 Estimated Paydown 3128MBFA0 FHLMC                         6.000 04/01/2017 1,114,644.78 38,329.96 5,573.22 43,903.18 

01/15/2014 Interest 084664AT8 Berkshire Hathaway          
  

4.850 01/15/2015 3,000,000.00 0.00 72,750.00 72,750.00 

01/22/2014 Interest 459200GX3 IBM Corp                      1.950 07/22/2016 2,000,000.00 0.00 19,500.00 19,500.00 

01/31/2014 Interest 912828QX1 T-Note                        1.500 07/31/2016 1,000,000.00 0.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 

01/31/2014 Interest 084670BD9 Berkshire Hathaway          
  

1.900 01/31/2017 1,500,000.00 0.00 14,250.00 14,250.00 

  

City of Menlo Park 
Upcoming Cash Activity

for the next 45 days

PAGE 128



Colorado Office
1900 Sixteenth Street, Suite 200

Denver, CO 80202
Tel: 303 860 1100
Fax: 303 860 0016

For any questions concerning this report please contact accounting either by phone or email to camreports@cutwater.com. 

END OF REPORTS

New York Office
113 King Street

Armonk, NY 10504
Tel: 866 766 3030
Fax: 914 765 3030

PAGE 129



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 130


	021114 - Agenda
	D1 - Emergency Services JPA
	D1 - Emergency Services JPA
	Att A - 1997 San Mateo Area OES Joint Powers Agreement
	Att B - 2014 Proposed First Amendment to the OES JPA
	Att C - Resolution

	D2 - Sand Hill Road and Branner Drive Traffic Signal
	D3 - Ringwood Pedestrian Overcrossing
	D-3 Execute updated Agmt Ringwood
	Att A - Resolution


	D4 - Draft Housing Element
	Draft Housing Element
	Att A - Supplemental Revisions to the Draft Housing Element

	D5 - Minutes
	CITY COUNCIL 
	SPECIAL AND REGULAR MEETING
	DRAFT MINUTES

	Tuesday, January 28, 2014
	701 Laurel Street, Menlo Park, CA 94025


	F1 - Bike Bridge Renaming
	F1 - Bike Bridge Renaming
	Att A - Naming or Changing the Name of Facilities Policy
	Att B - San Mateo Bike Bridge

	F2 - General Plan
	Att B - Proposed M-2 Area Plan Boundary Map
	Att C - Planning Commission Summary
	Att D - M-2 Property Owner Summary

	I1 - Economic Development Quarterly Update
	I2 - General Fund Operations
	I3 - Investment Portfolio



